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Making life better
by entertaining and
connecting people

We make Iife better by entertaining and connecting people
We are part of everyday tife for millions of customers and
we wark hard to meet therr needs and earn their trust.

We believe in better That means offerning a better choice of
high-gqualty entertainment for the whole family and using
technology to put them in control, whenever and wherever they
want. Our home communications services make 1t simple, safe and
reliable for customers to connect to each other and to the world

We make our products affordable so millions can join in We are
commutted to providing exceptional customer service And we are
always looking for ways to improve in everything that we do

Seeing the bigger picture is fundamental to how we do business
We are committed to behaving responsibly and doing the nght
thing for the communities where we live and work

Our people are critical to our success We aim to foster a culture
where they can do therr best work, fulfil theirr potential and achieve
great things together

We want to build a business that 1s durable for the long term
Delivering for our customers, our employees and the wider
community 1s how we will create a more valuable business
for our shareholders and sustain success into the future

Believe In better.

British Skv Broadeasung Group ple
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Sky s reaching a whole
new set of customers
with NOW TV

Turn to page 20

Sky 15 creaung opportunities for
one milion young people to bulld

skills and experience by 2020
Turn to page 27

Sky Broeadband Shield
means customers can enjoy
surfing the nternet safely
Turn to page 23

For mere nformation about Sky g0 to sky som/corporate

Sky Sports set new audienge

records this season

Tum to page 14

Cur new EPG 15 helping
customers to get even
more from their subseription
Turnto page 19

Qur Software Engineenng
Academy 15 training the
developers of the future
Turn to page 32

To find cut more about our approach te buiiding a sustainable business and our progress Nthe year go ta
sky com/biggerpicture where you can alse download the Seeing the bigger picture Surnmary Report 2014
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StratepC report - AL a glance

Sky at a glance

Consumer business

We are Britain and Ireland's leading home
entertainment and communications company,
providing services to more than 40% of homes

Sky TV

Sky gives milhons of families a better
choice of TV to enjoy on their terms
at home or on the go watching
fve or on demand

Content business

We own and operate Britain and Ireland’s largest
portfolio of pay TV channels across entertainment,
sports, movies and 24-hour news

Sky Sports

Sky Sports seven channels broadcast
awide range of Iive and exclusive sport
news and analysis, from football
and goif to encket and tennis

Our other businesses

We operate a number of businesses in adjacent
sectors that draw on our core strengths in content,
mnovation and customers

Sky Media

Sky Media 1s our advertising sales
house, of fenng advertisers access to
125 TV channels Sky Medias portfolio

15 watched by over 0% of the populauon
each week on TV online and on the go

Financial performance

£76bn

Revenue

Contribution

We make a significant and growing economic
and social contnbution te life in Britamn and
ireland, directly employing over 25000 people

£6bn

Sky's contribution to UK GDP

02 Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group pke
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Sky Broadband

Sky s Bntain and lreland s fastest-growing
home cammuincations provider connecting

maore than 5 milhon customers with broadband

and telephony serwces

NOWTV

NQW TV 1s our over-the-top streamuing
service providing low-cost, low-commitment.
access to the best of Sky s content

Strategic report - At a glance

34.8m

Paid-for subscnption products

11.5m

Customers

Sky Entertainment

Sky has four main entertainment channels
Sky 1 Sky Living, Sky Atlantc and Sky Arts
These showcase our own UK-commussioned
content, alongside the best of the US

Sky Movies

Sky Movies Is Europe’s largest in-home
mowvie service with over BOO film titfes
from the major Hollywood studios
and independent distributors

Sky News

Sky News reaches over t00 millon
homes on multiple platforms across
18 countnes with its combination
of breaking news and analysis

Sky Business

Sky 8usiness provides Sky s TV and
Wi services to a range of commeraial
businesses, ncluding offices retail outlets
hotels and licensed premises

Sky Bet

Sky Bet offers arange of online betting
and gaming services under the Sky Bet
Sky Poker, Sky Vegas and Sky Binge brands

Content Distnbution

Sky wholesales its channels to
third-party pay TV platforms aswell
as selling a wide range of programming
nternationally through Sky Vision

£1.3bn

Operating profit

60.0p

1177000

Total number of UK jobs
supported by Sky

£2.7bn

Total annual tax contribution
to the UK Exchegquer

03

* From net VAT, corporation taxes
and ermployee income taxes

105,000

Number of young people who partiapated
in Sky Academy initiatives last year

British Sky Broadcasting Groupple 03

20031 %Bayens

BIURLIINOD

SIUBLLDIETS |BOUR UL

HORBULICUI ISPOURIRLS




Apnual Report 2014

Strategic report - Charman s statement

A year of outstanding progress

2014 has been a year of outstanding progress for Sky
Executing well against a clear and consistent strategy,

the Company has delivered strong operational growth and
an excellent financial performance in a year of investment

Nick Ferguson, CBE
Chairman

Qur results show there 1s very good momentum in Sky s business with
strong customer demand for our products and rapid growth in new
services such as On Demand and NOW TV This has been achieved
against a challenging backdrop where there has been continued
pressure on household budgets and it s testament to the rebustaess
of the strategy and the exemplary way in which management has
executed their plans

This year's results build on a proven track record of delivery Over the
past few years we have transformed the size and scale of the business
mare than doubling earnings per share since 2005 This has enabled
the Company to return a total of £3 4 billion to shareholders over

that five-year period through a combinatien of share buybacks

and dwidends

The Board 1s confident that Sky s well placed to take advantage of
the growth opporturities ahead The conditional acquisition of 100%
of Sky itaha and 57 4% of Sky Deutschland from 21st Century Fox,
announced on 25 July will enable Sky to build on the strength of

the business in Bntain and Ireland to create even greater value

for shareholders as a wader intemational business

As Sky has grown, so has its economic contribution to Britain and
treland Sky is the biggest commeroal supporter of the UK creative
imdustnes investing more than £2.6 bilhon thus year in ugh-quality
sports news and entertainment content As a successful company
Sky contnbutes £6 bilhon to UK GDP supports 117000 jobs and
generates a total of £2 7 bilhon in tax revenues for the Exchequer

Sky also makes a considerable sooial contnbution We tock a g step
forward this year with the launch of Sky Academy a groundbreaking
set of Ntiatives to nspire young pecple and give them the skills and
confidence they need to participate more Fully in a changing werld
Cur aim 13 to ¢reate opportunities for up to one millon young people
to build skills and expenence by 2020

Over the past year, there have been anumber of changes to the
Board We were very pleased to welcome Adine Grate an expenenced
finance and Investment professional, to the Board last July Twould
ke to thank Danny Rimer far his contnbution as Chaiman of the
Remuneration Committee He stepped down from this role at the
AGM 0 Novemnber and has been sucreeded by Tracy Clarke | would
particularly Iike to thank Andy Higginson our Senior Independent
Director for hig outstanding contnbution to the Company in the last
ten years Andy will retire from the Board at the AGM in Navember

Finally in ight of the Company s strong performance the Board
proposes a 7% increase 1n the full-year dwvidend to 32 O pence
tha tenth consecutive year of growth

On behalf of the Board twould ke to thank shareholders for their
continued support and to extenic my thanks to all of my colleagues
across Sky For their commitment and ther invaluable contnbution
to another excellent year for the business

04 Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc
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Strategic report ~ Our business model

Our business model
How we create value

We create sustainable value by pursuing broad
growth opportunities and achieving competitive
advantage through our core strengths and the
way we do business

Our growth
opportunities

» Expanding in pay
TV and home
communications

* Opening up
emerging market
segments

« Exploiting
opportunities Iin
adjacent sectors

We have an attractive
market opperturity that 1s
getting bigger and broader

We are expanding In our
core business of pay TV
and home communications

We are opening up new
emergng areas of the
market In the ‘pay hght and
transact:onal segments

We are exploiing
opportunit:es (n adjacent
sectors such as targeted
advertising and betung
and gaming

Our
strengths

» Delivering great
content

» Market-leading
Innovation

« Focusing on
customers

Sky's competiive
advantage comes from
a unigue combinatuon of
strengths in three areas

We defiver the best and
broadest range of content
for the whole family

We harness new technclogy
to give custemers the

best viewing experence
wherever and whenever
they want

We combine these with

a deep understanding of
customer needs and best-
in-class customer service

Howwedo
business

« Investing for
the long term

+ Driving efficiency

+ Seeing the
bigger picture

* Investing In
people

Because we want to build
a bustness that s durable,
we invest for the fong term

We underpin everything
that we dowith a ngorous
focus on operating
efficiency

We make a positive Impact
on the communities where
we live and work We call
this seeing the bigger
picture

We invest In our people
recogrising that ther
talent and commitment
are cntical to Qur success

A bigger, more
profitable
business
delivering
increased
returns to
shareholders
and making
a positive
impact

on society

Briush Sky Broadcasung Group plc
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Our strategy

Strategic report - Chief Exacutivas statement

As we mark our 25th anniversary, Sky i1s performing strongly
and our potential for future growth is as exciting as it has
ever been We had a very good year in 2014 with more people
choosing Sky and taking more of our products The business
IS delivering strong financial results and we enter the new year

with good momentum

Jeremy Darroch
Chief Executive

We operate in an attractive and dynammc marketplace that 1s opening up
a bigger and broader opportunity one that we are uniquely positioned
to take advantage of In today s connected world home entertanment
and communications are central to people s ives and they are willing
to commit an Increasmg proportion of their household spend on these
senvices In this environment our strategy 15 to deliver market-leading
content innovation and customer service, while operating as a
responsible business and making a positive impact on saciety

We beleve this appreach will allow us to continue to grow and

create value for shareholders

Qur growth opportunities

Sky s willingness to embrace that change and innovate 1s opening
up exciiing new oppartunities and gnang us mare ways £ grow
We see an expanding opportunity to sarve the market broadly
through multiple channels and, for the first time to provide

Sky for Everyone based on multiple platforms and services

This epportunity for growth lles in three areas

First and feremost we see an opportunity to sell more products
to more customers by meating the significant demand that exists
for our core TV and home communications products

Notwithstanding the excellent progress that we have made over the
last 25 years 13 milion households in Britain and Ireland have yet to
pay for TV and over S milion of our customers have yet ta switch their
home commuriacations service to Sky Qur successful transition to

a mult-product strategy has enabled us to sell more products to
more customers and with an average of three pawd-for products

per customer at the end of June 2014 there remains plenty more
growth to go for Qur perfarmance in the last year demonstrates

that consumers’ appetite to take more from Sky remains as strong

as ever and this gives us an important platform from which to build

Second we see significant addrtional potenbal for growth In new
segments af the market that we are only just starting to address
NOW TV our over-the-top streaming service gves us the chance to
unlock new pockets of demand In an emerging pay light sector and
extend our reach In Freeview hornes - many of whom are locking for
an easy and flexible way to enjoy a better TV experignce Our NOW TV
Box offers alow-cost low-commitment way far these households to
enjoy Sky's content with a choiee of movies, sport and entertainment
passes [naddibon we continue to roll out NOW TV to more connected
devices taking advantage of the growth in video consumption aver
smartphaones tablets and games consoles

Alongside this we also have an apportunity to extend the Sky brand
inte the transactional market by accelerating the move from physicat
DVDs to digital This s a market worth an estimated £16 bilion a
year in the UK and while we have been growing our share of the
rental part of this market well with Sky Store, the launch this spring
of our Buy & Keep serwce lets us tap into the much larger purchase
segrnent of the market We seeg strong potential for growth given
our long-standing refationships with the major Studios and the
strength of the Sky brand in home entertanment

Brkish Sky Broadcasting Groupple 07
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Strategic report - Chief Executve's statament

Our strategy

(continued)

Sky Arts Portrast Artist of the Year presented by Joan Bakewel and Frank Skinner

Third we are cpening up new growth opportunities in our portfolio of
busmesses in adjacent sactors These are businesses where Sky often
has & small share today in what are large and vatuable addressable
markets This includes Sky Bet, our betting and gaming business, which
has delivered sustained double-digit growth i revenue and profit and
yet still only has 6% of a £3 billlon market We see another significant
opportunity in targeted advertising with the launch this year of Sky
AdSmart Combining the power scale and immediacy of TV advertising
with the segmentation and targeting of direct mail and regional
advertising, Sky AdSmart opens up a £6 bilion market that we have
been unable to reach until now

Taken together these represent a broad opportunity for growth
through multiple services and routes to market Each of these areas
15 additive and highly complementary tagether, they offer aroute
to bulding a bigger and more profitable business

Qur strengths

Skys success in exploing the growth opportunity that hes ahead
rests on our unique combination of strengths in three areas content
InRovation and customers These are areas in which Sky has developed
significant capabilities which are hard to rephicate

In content, we have made huge stndes in recent years toincrease

the range and quality of the programmes we put on screen nght
across our channel portfoho We have developed our suite of
entertainment channeis, strengthened our relationships with the
major movie studios and signed new nghts deals in sport to expand
our offenng. In particular this year we have increased ourinvestment
i onginal Bntish programming with a focus on comedy and drama

This 15 because we know that our ability to offer the best and broadest
range of content for the whole household s a fundamental advantage
in an emvronment where customers have more choices than ever before

Sky's ability to innovate across multiple technologies allows us to build
on the strength of our content and take our business into new areas
Our focus in the last year has been aceelerating the take-up and usage
of new connected TV sernices Connecting customers’ Sky+HD boxes
to broadband opens up a whole range of new on demand services
which atlow customers to choose how when and where theywatch
that content. Services ke NOW TV and Sky Store delivered over the
internet enable us to extend our business into new areas reaching
custemers that may not otherwise have taken Sky and opening up new
revenue opporturities We have also grown ow home communications
business to become Bntains second -biggest, broadband provider

Our strengths In content and Innovaticn are only relevant because
they matter to customers Anditis because we combine them with
a deep understanding of customer needs that we are able tobring
together home entertainment and communications better than
anyone else

We have established direct, Jong-term relationships with 115 milkon
households across Britain and Ireland These relat:onships mean

we know what our custorners want and ensble us to stay focused

on providing the sennces that best meet their needs The strengtih
of our brand and the capabiiity that we have developed means we
can bnng prociucts to market swiftly and at scate And everything we
do 1s supported by best-in-dass customer service As the connected
home becomes mare established and consumers are faced with

an increasing array of chaices service delivery has become a more
important differentiator than ever before Sky's expertise 1s a source
of competitive advantage

The acquisition of Sky Italta and a 57 4% stake in Sky Deutschland

will give us a platform to take the strengths we have developed in the
UK and Ireland and apply them across abroader field of cpportunity
The enlarged business wll have siguficantly expanded headroom for
growth bringing together best-n-class capabihties and experience
from all three businesses to serve customers better accelerate
mnovation and grow faster

How we do business

Underpinning our strengths in content ninovation and custormers
15 our desire to build a business that is durable for the long term

To achieve sustanable success we know that howwe do business
1s as important as what we do This s at the heart of our Believe i
Better ethos a commitment te constant renewal and improvement
0 everything we do

Investment in our people is fundamental to the creation of a durable
business At Sky,we suppert traiming and development for al! of our
pecple and strve to create a culture where they cando their best
work and fulfil their potenual

We also understand that we need to bewlling to look beyond the
delivery of short-term results to consider the impact that we have on
the wider communities in which we live and work We cali this seeing
the bigger picture

As a successful company we make a signficant and growing economsc
and sociat contribution to Britain and Ireland supportung thousands
of jobs and investing billions in the creatve Industries and sport.

We are commutted to behaving responsibly in all that we do and

our high ethical socal and environmental standards underpin the
decisions that we take every day

But we also know that we have the opportunity to use our position

as a leading media and communications compary to reach beyond our
business to make a positive iImpact on society This is why we launched
Sky Academy in November 2013 a unique set of initatives that uses
the power of TV creativity and sport toinspire young people and help
them reach ther potential Binging together established programmes
with a series of Inluatives where we re just getting gong, we feet very
exoted about how Sky Academy will be able to make a difference to
young people s ives

08 BriushSky Broadcasting Group plc
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Qur performance

The success of our strategy 1s reflected in the strong performance of
the business over the past year Against a challenging economic and
competitive backdrop we added 23% more products than the prior
year and achieved the highest rate of customer growth for three
years (excluding the acquired O2 customers and product base)

Strong demand across the board translated to a 7% Increase in
revenue (excluding ESPN) Combined with a continued focus on
operating efficency this meant we ended a year of Investment

with earnings per share flat year on year This is an exceflent result

In a perod where we absorbed a one-off step up In Premier League
costs and invested to accelerate take-up of new connected services
and t reflects the strength of the underlying business

In hight of thus performance the Board has proposed a dundend
of 32 0 pence an increase of 7% on the prior year and the tenth
consecutive year of growth

We continued to reap the benefits of our broadly-based approach

to growth as more people chose to come to Sky and take more of our
products We added a tatal of 31 million new patd-for subseriptton
products cver the 12 months to take our total base of subscription
products past 34 mithon At the same time we added 342,000 new
customersto reach 11 Smition refiecung a continuing appeute Wo
switch services from other providers to Sky At the end of the year
37% of our customers took all three of TV broadband and telephony
from Sky extending our lead as Britains favourite triple-play provder

Gome of Thrones became the highest-rating show ever on Sky Atlantic.

Wae saw a particulasly good performance in TV adding twice as fmany
new customers as last year This growth was underpinned by the
quality and range of content we offer the whote famity This is our
biggest year in entertainment yet as we target a spend of £600 million
try the end of 2014 on arginal British programmes  Highlights from

the past 12 months induded Anglo-French cnme drama The Tunne!

a co-production with Canal Plus, and Penny Dreadful a psychological
thrilier produced by Oscar winner Sam Mendes

We also strengthened our refatronship with some of the world s
leading content producers sigmng major new partnerships with

ITV and MBO and renewing a multi-year movies agreement veth
Paramount thereby increasing aur range of exclusive content
Meanwhile, Sky Sports enjoyed its highest share of viewing for seven
years with the best-ever Premier League season in terms of audrences
while at the same time strengtherung its offening for the future with
30 new sports nghts agreements

Strategic report - Chief Executve's statement

o £7.6bn
S 34.8m
11.5m

Customers

Meanwhile our investment to accelerate take-up and usage of our
connected TV service delivered excellent results increasing the value
we offer to customers and opening up new sources of revenue

Qver the year the tatal number of connected Sky+HD boxes more
than doubled ta 5 7 millon eguivalent to 57,000 new households
being connected everyweek This means that more than 50% of TV
custamers were connected at the end of June, making Sky Britamns
most popular connected TV platform

This explosive growth has transformed the wiewing expenence

On Demand downloads grew threefold aver the year as customers
responded to greater flexibility and chaice Our expanded Box Sets
service proved particularty popular with viewing to top titles ke

24 and Game of Thrones up fourfold in Q4

At the same tme, the number of households registered for Sky Go cur
mobile TV senice grew 19% to S Smilllon helping push viewing figures
o new highs We saw particutarly strong growth in entertainment

with entertanment and movtes accounting for two-thirds of afl viewing
to Sky Go at the end of the year

Through all this we continued to extend our lead In customer service
Ininatives ke bringing our entire engineer workforce In-house and the
roll-out of our One Service operating model, where we join up different
elements of the service expenence more effectvely has helped delwer
record levels of customer satisfaction As aresult Sky agan earned
the top ranking frorn Cfeom for quality of service by a provider of TV
breadband and horne phone services

Underpinning evarything we achieved aperationally was aur continued
work to reach beyond our business and make a positive Impact on the
wider community We launched Sky Academy i Novernber and were
dehghted that over 105 000 young people took part in a Sky Acadermy
mitanve dunng the year

Of course none of what we do would be possible without the dedication
and hard work of pur people They are vital to our success and | would
like to thank each and every one of them for their contribution in the
last 12 months

With their continued support the outlook for the business is very
positive Qurstrategy 1s defivering and there 1s a broad and growing
market opporturuty that Sky with our unigue combination of
strengths is best placed to take advantage of Qur track record

of success In Bitain and lreland 1s the starting pomnt as we expand
Into Eurepe The opportunity 1s substantial and this 15 good news
far our people, good for customers and good far cur sharehalders

8ritish Sky Breadcasting Groupplc 09
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Strategic report - Our performance

Our performance

Operational key performance indicators

Total products

Retail customers

Description

Total products is defined as the total of
all paid-for subscription products takern
by our customers and inchsdes TV HD
Multiscreen, Sky Ge Extra Broadband
Telephony and Line Rental

Chum

Analysis

A key glernent of our strategy 1s to
ercourage new customers Lo take
multiple products when joning and te
sellmere preducts 1o existing CUStomers
1N 2014 we added 3 1milllon products
23% more than the prior year (excduding
the acquired 02 customer base).

Descrniption

Aarstomer 15 defined as a subsariber to
one of our TV packages of standalone
home commuNICations Services

Content. Sky channel distnbution

Analysls

Animpartant part of our strategy s
o continue adding new Customers.
In2014, we added a totalof 342000
new austomers 33% more than the
prioryear (excluding the acquired 02
customer base) and the highaest rate
of growthan thwee years

«10.9%

Description

Churn represents the number of Lotal
customers over a given period who
terminated they subscnptions net

of farmer qustomers who reinstated
their subscription (within 12 months of
tarmimating their orignal subscription)
expressad as anannualised percentage
of total average customers

2:10.8%

Analys:s

Churn s & good measure of customer
satisfaction which s a key driver

of value for our business Churn for
the year 2014 was stable at 10 9%

Innovation Connected Sky+HD box and Sky Go customers

2o I 147m
203 ol 141m

2012 LT B

Description

The number of households in the UK
and Ireland that have access to Sky
pay channels included as part of their
pay TV subscription service whether
that is directly purchased from Sky
of from another operatos to whom
Sky wholesales its channels

140m

Analysis

Total reach of Sky channelsis an
ymportant measure because broad
distribution drives reavenue growth
oppar tunities for the Group

Th Group inereased the totat reach
of its pay channels by 4% in 2014

Customers Customer service satisfaction (NPS)

2014 o .. 57m
r a6m
2013 1 27m
F 35m
22 S 10m

M Sky Go customers.

Description

A connected Sky*tHD box s one that s
connected to the internet and therefore
has access to Sky's full On Demand
subsaniption and transactional servicas.
Sky Go housaholds are those that have
registered to use the Sky Go service

1 Connected Sky+HD box

Analysis

Ineavation agoss multiple technologies
enables the Group Lo expand INto New
areas develop new revenue Streams

and explot adjacent sacters In2014

we connected a further 3 muion Sky+tHD
boxes and registered 1milion mare
homes for Sky Ge

2010 N 24
013 = BN 13

—
2002 Ew

Description

Net Promater Score (MPS) s a
standardrsed measurs of customer
eyalty and satisfaction. A survey

15 sent to the customer fallowing a
contact centre Ntaraction with Sky
NP5 15 calculated by subtracting
the percertage of Datractors from
the percentage of Promoters

Analysis

Mantaming 2 diract and long-tenn
relationship wath customers s
fundamental ta the sutcrss of our
business We believe customer service
dekvery s an unportant differentiator
Our NPS for service calls has dramatcalty
wnproved over the last thvee years

10 Brbsh Sky Broadeasting Group plc
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Bigger Picture Sky Academy participation

People Employee engagement

Strategic report - Cur performance

- 105,000

Description

Sky Academy (s a ground@reaking set
of mitiatives that use the power of
TV creativity and sport toinspire
young people and give them the
skills and confidence to succeed

n achanging world

Analysis

Sky Academy tracks the number af
young peaple taking part in Sky Academy
mitiatrvas We have made a strong stast
towards our target of reaching up to

one muilion young people by 2020

We have over 40 independently assured key performance indicaters that
we use to measure our sustainability performance These can be found at

sky cormbiggerpicture

2014 8 %

Sky engagerment

Description

To measure employee engagement

we undertake aninternal survey of

our employees and benchmark theur
answers extemnally As part of abread
array of topics surveyed employees are
asked asenes of guestions designed
to guantify engagement.

Financial key performance indicators

Adjusted revenug’

Adjusted operating profit’!

o 33%

Natonal benchmark

Analysis

Employee engagement Is a good
ihdicator of how our amployees feel
about tha Company As well as reaching
a high performance indicator for
employee engagement, we have
improved from 2012 and outperformed
an independent external benchmark
of other blue chiup comparues

2014 m

2013 E5i

202 TR

Description

Adjusted revenue includes revenue
from ratail subseription, wnolesale
subsaription, advertssing and
instaliation, hardware and service

Adjusted EPS!

£7617m
E7235m
EE791m

Analysis

Adusted revenue s a key measura
of how the Group s delivering on
1ts strategy to grow the business
in 2014 adjusted ravenue grew by
5% with good grewthinboth retal
and cormmeraal aperations
Exciuding ESPN adjusted revenue
grew by 7%

2014 w

203 LLaEr
o2 WS

[

Description

Adusted operaung profitis a measure
of the proft generated by the business
from its revenues and excludes itermns
that may distort comparabibity from
year to year

Total shareholder retum

£1,260m
£1330m
£1223m

Analysis

Adpusted operating profitis akey
measure of the underfying business
performance in 2004 adjusted operating
profit was down by 5% on the pravious
year as the Group absorbed an increase
in the cost of Premier Leagus foothall
rights the consolidation of the acquired
02 consumer broadband and fixed line
business and our planned Investment
n connected services

..60.0p

Description

Adpisted basic EPS 1s the profit after
tax for the year excluding adjusting
items and related tax effects dwided
by the weighted average number of
ordinary sbares

2013 60 Op
2012 50 8p

Analysis

Adyusted basiCEPS provides a
measure of sharehalder return that
s comparable over time The Group
generated the same earnings as
last year despite making several
invastments for growth and
abscriing the Premier League cost
increase in the current financial year

1 Areconcliation of statutary te adjusted measures is Shown onpage 139

5Yr CAGR

TYrCAGR .,
W BSkyB A FTSEIQ0

Description
Total shareholder return [TSR)

represents the change nvalue of a share

held For & 12-month period to 30 June
assuming that dividends are renvested
to purchase addtional shares at the
close price appheable on the ex-dmvidend
date The valugof the share s based on
the avarage share price ovar the thrae
menths prierte 30 June Thechart
above shustrates the TSR performance
for the 12 months te 30 June 2014

and an average annual performance
compeunded over five years to

30 June 2014

18%
14%

12%
9%

Analysis

TSR represents a comparable measure
of sharehclder raturn over time

BSkyB shares outperformed the

FTSE 100 index by 3 percentage ponts
1 the year to 30 June 2004 and by

4 percentage points over frve years
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Digging in
The Tunnel our gnpping crime
drama from the makers of
Broadchurch, became Sky Atlantic s
highest-performing onginal senes
when It arred in the auturmn A

ca-production with Frances
CANAL+ and based on Danish

series The Bridge the story followed
the uneasy relationship between
detectives from the UK and France
as they investigate the discovery
of the body of a prominent French
poltcran in the Channel Tunnel

Cntically acclaimed and a ratings
success, the series was a great
example of the way that we present
our content to work across all
platforms The series peaked at one

million viawers on inear TV but
the same number again watched
1t On Demand and on Sky Go

The Tunnefwas just one example
of our Increased commitment
todrama In all we screened
rmore than 60 hours of our own
commissioned drama 1n the year
over 60% rmore than the previous
year There is much more to come
next year with our largest

Strategic report - Content

commission to date Fortrtude

due to arr on Sky Atlanticin 2015
Starnng Michael Gambon Sophie
Grabel and Stanley Tuce Fortitude
shows our ambition in drarma

We are excrited about its potential
ooth for our customers at home
and for viewers around the

world as we sellit on to other
broadcasters wia our mternational
distrbution business Sky Vision

Bnush Sky Broadcasting Group plc
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Content

(continued)

The single biggest reason that
customers choose to take Sky Is
for a better choice of TV Inthis,
our biggest year of content yet,
Sky’s on-screen offering Is larger,
more diverse and of a higher
quality than ever before

Unbelievable, Jeff

Sky Sports set new records for hve Premier League footballin the

We invest more on s¢reen than anyone else in Bnizamn and Ireland

- more than £2 6 bilhion this year - with the aim of offenng the best

and broadest range of programming for everyonen the family A big
part of this strategy in recent years has been about bulding out our Sky
entertanment channels bringing to them the same sense of ambition
that has been se fundamental to our success In sport, movies and news

We have made huge stndes expanding our portfolio of entertainment
channels strengthening the capabiity of cur team and significantly
Increasing our investment in onginal production By the end of calendar
year 2014 we will have spent £600 milllon on home-grown British
programming acoss our channels anincrease of more than 50% over
threeyears

As part of this drive to increase investment in onginal British commissions
we have put a particular focus on drama Since last July we have
screened more than 60 hours of new drama programming across our
four entertainment channels - Sky 1 Sky Atlantic Sky Living and Sky Arts

matches than ever before - 116 kve | And the exatement didn t stop

2013/14 season, with more fans enjoying our unnvalled coverage
than everbefore at home oronthe go

As the most exaing seasonin
recent years came toits thnling
conclusion Sky Sports was the one
place to watch the title race unfold
In the final weeks of the season
Sky Sports was the only
broadcaster to show games
featuning the top four sides -

Manchester City Liverpeol Arsenal
and Chelsea - and was the exclusive
Ive venue for all three matches on
the final day as Manchester City
chinched the title

Across the season average Premier
League audiences on Sky Sports
were up 7% as we showed more

fixtures including 49 of the 50 most
watched Premier League matches

Sky Sports enhanced its coverage
by adding Liverpool legend Jamie
Carragher to its outstanding
hne-up of experts and launching
new shows including Saturday
Night Football

there The football season was
followed by another busy summer
on Sky Sports indluding England
cricket, the US PGAGolf and the
Ryder Cup every Formula 1 weekend
and US Open tenrus Theres hardly
tme to take a breath before the
start of the new season
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Let’s work
together

At Sky we're proud of the many
strong partnerships that we've
developed over the past 25
years Working dosely with other
content businesses, whather
broadcasters, nghts holders or
content creators, has been
crucial to our success nght from
the very start halping us to bnng
our customers the very best
programming from around the
world Channels hke National
Geographic. History and Discovery
broaden our offering and are
hugely valued by customers

Strategi report - Content.

This year, we tock our relationship
with seme of the world s leading
content creators to another level
In January we announced a broad
new partnership with TV grving
Sky customers unnvalled access
1o TV programmung This has
Included the launch of a brand
new pay channel ITV Encore
dedicated to drama and exclusive
intally to Sky

We also extended our partnership
with HBO Building on the success
of Sky Atlantic, Sky will remain the
exclusive home of HBOHn Brtan
and ireland untit 2020 making

1t the only place to enjoy new
series of global hits such as

True Detective and Grrlsor
much-anticipated new shows like
Sihcon Valley and The Leftovers
Significantly the new agreement

will also see Sky and HBO
co-produce major new anematic
drama senes

Qur deal wmithHBO 15 Just oneof a
growing number of co-production
partnerships that we are bulding
We know that f wa want to deliver
the best content from around the
world we cantdothat alone Thats
why we worked with Showtime on

and with NBC Universal on Drocuia
starring Jonathan Rhys Meyers
And it s why we are partnenng
with FX Networks to develop
brand new post-watershed
comedy for audiences on both
sides of the Atlantic.

The customer response has been very positive We have had our best
year of TV growth in three years adding more than a quarter of a million
new TV customers since July 2013 At the same trme Sky 1, Sky Atlantic
and Sky Living account for three of the top four slots in customers
ranking of must-have pay TV channels and Sky Arts has developed
areputation for having some of the best arts programmes on TV

Because our channels have distinct and complementary identities

we are able to offer a diverse range of programming to suit the whole
family Successful shows this year range from Karl Pikington's factua
entertainment series The Moaning of Life whuch attracted 2 5 mullion
viewers to its opening episode on Sky 1 to the critically-acclaimed
Victonan thriller Penny Dreadful Created by three-time Oscar® nominee
John Logan and £o-produced with Showtime for Sky Atlantie, it notched
up 15 milion wewers forits opening episode

our Victoran theller Penrty Dreadful

QOur commitment to banging our customers new and distinctive content
extends to our acquired programming, where we continue to offer many

of the biggest and most talked about US shows Sky Lving s The Blackhst
starring James Spader was one of the stand-out hits of the year launching
with an audience of 1 7 million viewers Meanwhile the fourth series of the
epic Game of Thrones became the highest-rating show ever on Sky Atlantic
wnth 2 2 muthon viewers for the first episode alone

The success of Game of Throaes illustrates how our Investment to grow
take-up and usage of new connected TV services Is transforming the
viewing experience, with customers taking advantage of the flexibility
to watch their favourite programmes when and whera they choose

In the run up to the launch of senes 4 Senes 1-3 of Game of Thrones
became our most downlcaded box set ever

Briush Sky Broadcasung Groupplc 15
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(continued)

Sky Mowies |s another area where the benefits of our connected

TV strategy have been tranisformaucnal Two-thirds of Sky Movies
customers had a connected box at the end of the year helping to
increase On Demand views on Sky Mowvies by 60% on the prior year
Cwver the Chnistmas penod Sky Movies customers downloaded

twice as many films as the previous year This was helped in part

by a dedicated Chnstmas Movies On Demand section complementing
the return of the Sky Movies Chnistmas pop-up channel

We also took steps to strengthen the range and quality of titles
avatable on Sky Mowies with the renewal of our output deal with
Paramount which gives us exclusive rights across all platforms to
blockbusters like Nooh and Anchorman 2 This means that we have
secured new agreements with five of the six major Hollywood studios
in the last two years

Sky Sports had another great year enjoying its highest audience share
m seven years We had an outstanding football season thanks to one
of the moast exeiing Premier Leagues in recent tmes and a great end

to the Football League This performance was boosted by sports
customers choosing Sky Go towatch matches on the move Werecerded
the three biggest-ever Sky Go audiences inthe year including a peak

of 379 000 viewers for Manchester City aganst Chelsea in February

As the football season ended Sky Sports customers could sulliook
forward to anincredible summer of ive cncket rugby and Formuta One
with the Ryder Cup — the tenth ta be shown live on Sky — coming in
September Sports customers can also now enjoy a brand new channe!
Sky Sports 5 which will screen up to 600 Ive European foatball matches
over the 2014015 season

Meanwhile we continued te broaden the Sky Sports offering sigring
30 nghts deals over the course of the last 12 months This indudes new
deals for IPL cricket Super League Rughby, Topl4 Rugby Gaelic Athletic
Assoctation and the Masters and PGA Tour golf ait of which gives us
certainty over 90% of our sports costs through to 2016

And the Winner is...?

We all know that winning isn t everything and we use lots of measures at Sky to assess
our perfoarmance But, it's still great to know that the effort and investment we've put
into creating world-class content has been recogrised and celebrated by our peers

Three BAFTA TV Award wins Internat:onal Emmy*
« Aleague of their Own + Moone Boy Best Comedy
E:;ri:mt‘:nd Comedy Three Royal Television
Society Awards
* Dawid Attenborough s Natural » Game of Thrones Best
History Museum Alive 3D International Programme
Specalist Factual

+ Sky Sports coverage of

Sky Sports coverage of last

r's Ashes Best S last year's Ashes

3l es Best rt

rr:\d Lrve Event P + Best Sports Presenter
Gary Newlle

Bnitish Broadcasting Press Awards

Sperts Industry Awards

~ Sky Sports Digital Media, + The Tunnel Best Multichannel
Digital Platform of the Year Programme

Broadcast Awards Broadcast Digital Awards

« SkySports Ryder Cup coverage « Bradley Wiggins A Year in Yellow
Best Sports Programme Most Popular Factual

+ ATouchofCloth i
Best Comedy Programme

+ A Young Doctor s Notebook Best
Maultichannel Programeme
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The Chancellor George Osbome, 1s quizzed by readers of chiidrens newspaper First News o an mtenview for Sky News

Twenty-five years after gmng Britamn its first taste of 24-hour roliing
news Sky News has lost none of its appeute for innovauon The launch
of Sky News on Catch Up TV in May 1s just the latest example of the

way that Sky News has embraced new technology to enable customers
to curate the news in the way that they want it. Sky News mobile
applications have been downloaded over 10 mifhon times while Sky News
for iPhone has been named in Apple s top ten free UK apps of all time

All this has helped Sky News become the European news channel of
choice according to the 2014 Eurepean Medra and Marketing Survey

As we InCrease our Investment on screan, It s become Increastngly
important that we monetsse that content effectively One of the ways
we have done that s by increasng the distnbution of our content across
the marketplace

In October we took a significant step forward with the launch of the
Entertainment Month Pass on our over-the-top streaming service
MOW TV This offers a simple contract-free way to access ten of the
top subscnplion TV channels Including Sky 1 Sky Atlantic Disney and
Discovery allowing customers to stream episodes of the latest senes
Iive and on demand on a pay-as-you go basis

We also extended our content distribution through a series of new
wholesale agreements These included a major new five-year channe!
distribution deal with Virgin Media giving Virgin customers an additional
selectron of HG channels more content on the go and access to the Sky
Sports and Sky Movies apps In addition we agreed a new distnbution
deal with TalkTalk which significantly extends the take-up of our basic
channels We also added the NOW TV Sports Day Pass to TalkTalk s
YouView platform

British Sky Broadrasting Group pic
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Guiding the way

If getung customers connected to
On Demand was our first prionty
for the year helping them to enjoy
the full range of services on offer
was the next The launch of the
new heme page on our Electronic
Programme Gultde (EPG)in

the spring was a crucial step

to achieving that,

For the very first time we maved
away from linear viewing as the
default optionin order to showcase
all our On Demand content

The new EPG gives Box Sets Catch
Up and Sky Store much greater
visibibity encouraging customers

to engage with the full breadth

of cantent now available to them

Thé new EPG also increases the
prominence of our new search
functionality which delivers
integrated search results across
linear and On Demand making

it much easier for customers to
find the programme that they
are looking for

It 5 early days but the yutial
response fromcustomers has been
very strong with On Demand
downloads higher and customer
satsfaction up

Strategic report - Innovation

And there s more to come Cur next
software update later this year will
enabie us to dynamically change
the home page to do things Lke
prometing the launch of a new
show or fitm For the first time
wel also be able to make
recemmendations on programmes
that customers might ike to watch
based on what they are choosing
to record on therr planner

British $ky Broadeasting Group plc
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Innovation

(continued)

Sky’s ability to innovate across multiple
technologies allows us to provide
customers with the very best viewing
experience, wherever and whenever they
want it 1s also enabling us to take our
business INto new areas, opening up New
revenues In emerging segments of the
market and exploiting adjacent sectors.

Great TV,
NOW

This year NOW TV changed the game in 'smart’ TVswith the launch
of the new NOW TV Box. Availabte for just £9 53 this compact and
easy-to-use box prowides alow-cost, low-commitment way for
customers to start streaming programmyng fromthe internet
direct to their TV Andit's a brilhantly simple way for Sky to attract
new customers in the 13 million homes yet to pay for TV

We have a proven track record of harnessing the latest technology and
driving new trends in TV viewing, such as gving customers more control
with Sky+ or a step changein picture quahty with High Defimtion This year,
we built on that track record by investing to accelerate the take~up and
usage of our new connected TV services Qur aim 1s to put Sky at the

heart of the connected household’ meeting customers growing desire

to consume content. on therr own terms

Akey Focus has been getting customers connected In the last 12 months
we have connected 3 milhon Sky+HD boxes to broadband equivalent to
57000 new households everywaek This explosive growth means that
mere than half of our 10 7 millon Sky TV customers now have access

to the full range of On Demand senaces This 1s more than double the
number in the prior year and makes Sky Britain and Ireland’s most

popular connected TV platform

The NOW TV Box can be up

and rupning In minutes Once
connected homes get instant
access to the Full NOW TV
expenence which includes Sky
Sports and Sky Mowvies as well
as a huge range of Catch Up TV
from poputar online services ke
BBC Player, 400 and ITV Player
In October, we extended the
range of content available on
NOW TV wath the launch of the
Entertainment Month Pass This
provides customers with instant
access to ten of the top pay TV

channels such as Sky 1 Sky Atlanuc
Dismey and Discovery, making more
of the best TV available to anyone
with a connected device

It s just one way that NOW TV

15 appealing to a new group of
customers - people who love the
quality of Sky content but want
amore flaxible approach than
the full-service Sky subscription
NOW TV )15 also availlable on a broad
range of Internet-connected
devices that includes tablets

PCs and consoles with PS4 being
added to the st this summer
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Everything we see tefls us that customers love the benefits that come with
the connected box Connected customers can access a much richer range
of content Including Britains biggest Catch Up TV service and Box Sets of
hit saries like Game of Thrones Stella Prison Break Mad Dogs and 24 With
On Demand usage up more than threefold in the last year theimpact on
the viewing expenence has been transformational Evidence shows that
connected TV customers are watching more TV - at average of 20 minutes
more per day - as they respend to the greater choice of content available
and tha greater flexibiiity over how they watch They are alse more satisfied,
more likely to stay with Sky and more likely to recommend Sky

More customers than ever before are also choosing cur mebile TV senace
Sky Go to watch content both in and out of the home The number of
househokis registered for Sky Go rose by a fifth over the year ta 5 S milion,
helped by the addition of 22 new channels and the launch of the service on
more devices including Andraid tablets We ended the year with more than
1 mulhon customers taking Sky Go Extra, our paid-for service which offers the
ability to watch on more devices and download content to watch offane

As well as increasing the value that customers get from their Sky
subscription the new connected TV services are apening Up new revenue
opportuniues for the business With our expanded Box Sets offering
incuded within cur HD package we have seen more and more customers
upgrading to HD while revenues from movie rentals wa Sky Store have
doubled in the year In the spring we also launched our Buy & Keep service
enabling customers to buy a fitm from Sky Store and downtoad it to keep
on their set-top box aswell as receving a DVD in the post It's early days
but we are very excited about the opportunity for Sky to enter the
purchase segment of the film market, estimated to be worth E16 billion

a year in the UK

Far the first time, we are using innovation te provide Sky for everyone

We are addressing the emerging ‘pay ight segment in the marketplace

by rolhing out. our over-the-top streaming service NOW TV This is proving
an effective newway of growing our TV customers among the 13 million
homes that dont yet take a pay TV service Among new developments this
year the launch of the new NOW TV Box and sur monthly Entertainment
Pass have attracted mncreasing numbers of customers to the service

Of course our success In accelerabing take up and usage of connected

TV services has been helped by our strength tn home communications
Continued growth in this area meant we surpassed 5 millon broadband
custarners in the year maintaining our lead as Bntains favounte tnple-play
provider In all, we sold 13 milhon home communicauons products over the
12 months as customers' appetite to switch from other providers to save
money vath Sky remained strong We also successfully ntegrated the O2
broadband customers we acquired in April 2013

We know customers hike our market-leading quality and value proposition
and we continue to find new ways to give them more value and improve
the quahty of the communications product This year for example we
introduced a WiF booster for broadband customers te help them make
the most of their service throughout thetr home With more than 60%

of our customer base yet to take all three of TV telephony and broadband
from Sky there s plenty more growth to come

Targeting

Strateght report - innovation

new revenue

Sky s abnlity to innevate adds value to our content and changes
the wiewing expenence for customers It's also enabling usto
open up hew revenue opportunities by extending our business
into adjacent sectors Sky AdSmart, our new targeted advertising
service, is a great example of the way in which we are opening

up markets that we've been unable to reach untif now

Launched at the start of 2014
Sky AdSmart enables advertisers
to target their campaigns more
accurately by talonng whats
shewnin TV ad breaks according
to a household s profile and
location Indoingso its
increasing the size of our
adverusing oppertunity by
attracting new brands to
adverbise on Sky This includes
local busnesses that may have
conduded TV advertising wasnt
for them and krands that have
previousty tried TV but left.

In just six months almost 600
advertising campagns have
been runacross 180 adverusers
of which i5% are new to TV and
68% are new to Sky This indudes
brands ke Aud, Dyson Lego,
Prime Lecation and Chester Zoo

Qur new strategic partnership
with Johnston Press further
strengthens the Sky AdSmart
offenng by enabling local
companies to ¢reate and
delver campaigns that
combine Johnstons

regional print titleswith

TV advertising focused

on specific local markets

Sky AdSmart s another

first for Sky - the first
broadcaster in Europe to
introduce targeted advertising
- and It s already been
recognised, wminning Bast
Techneolegy and Best innovaton
at the MediaTel Connected
Consumer Awards and
Achievement in Advertising at
the Connected TV World Summit
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Customers

Sky Broadband Shield

As the UK s second largest broadband provider, we take

our responsibilities to our customers extremely seriously
We want them to enjoy the best of what theinternet offers
while giving them the ability to enjoy [t in a safe environment

The launch in November 2013 of
Sky Broadband Shield was a big
step forward in achieving this

aim Free to all Sky Broadband
customers Broadband Shieldisa
brilhiantly simple tool which enables
customers to filter website content
across all Internet-connected
dewvices in the home gnang parents
in partreular greater control over
how their children use the web

Customers can filter websites
by age-bandings similar to
mowvie classifications or exclude
sites that contan pernography
of other categories of content
identified by customers as a
potenbal cause for concern

At the moment, Sky Broadband
customers are asked to make
an active choice about the

filters when gang online with
Sky for the first time, or when
they upgrade their router

Later thus year we will ensure
that all remaining customers
will have madea cholce about
whether or not to apply
whole-home filters Even those
homes without chitdren can
benefit as Sky Broadband
Shield also helps prowide
protection against phishing
sites and maliacus websites
contaning vinuses

we think that using technology
11 this way makes a real
difference to our custemers

as theylook to protect their
family However we also know
that technology doesnt
provide all the answers which
15 why we've Jained forces with
the other leading ISPs to launch
acampaign called Internet
Matters designed to promote
awareness of intemet safety
For further information go to
Internetmatters org
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Customers

(continued)

Our direct, long-term relationships

with over 11 5 milllon households across
Britain and lreland are fundamental

to the success of our business
Customers value what we offer and
trust Sky to keep meeting their needs,
from the content we put on screen to
the products that we put Iin their hands

As the connected home becomes more established and customers are
faced with ever-greater choice of products and providers we beleve

that service delivery Is becoming an increasingly important differentiator
The strength of the Sky brand in home entertainment and communications
and the capability that we have developed In the past 25 years means

that we are able to bnng new products to market quickly and at scale
supported by best-in-class customer service This is a great source of
compeutive advantage

We understand the vatue of good customer service and have continued
to raise the bar In this area Much of our focus thus year has been on
simplifying the customner expenence Our'One Service model was
developed to Join up different elements of the service expenence

more effectively Pilloted fast year ‘One Service puts customers straight
through to an expert agent who can manage the case from start to
finish coordinating directly with our engineers on the ground This year
we have been steadily rolling out One Service across our ontact centres
50 that 1t now covers around 20% of all nbound calls

As part of our move towards One Service we brought a further 740
engineers into Sky in Qctober This means that Sky people now complete
almost all UK serwice visits and installations giving us greater control over
the customer experience and helping us 1o dnve continued Improvement.

In Octobar 2013 we expanded our service delivery capabihity by
bringing in house 740 engineers - the people who install and service

Sky customers in-home equipment The transfer of the engineers
and other key personnel from our cutsource partner AVC meant
we were able to create one integrated nationwide team within Sky
of around 3 000 engineers This has had animmed:ate positive
Impact on our customer service operation

Hawving one integrated team all
working from the same systems
and under the same terms helps
us to deliver a consistent level

of sernce to all custormers every
day And it s not just about fixing
faults All our engineers spend six
days a year ensunng they areup
to speed with the latest preducts
and developments This means
that they can take the time when
they are In homes to showthe

customer around all the content
and services they can get from
ther subscription For example,
using IPads engineers are now
able to demonstrate the benefits
of Sky Go - avallable at no

extra cost to all Sky customers
This helps us ensure that our
tustomers get the best value
from thewr subscrtption, improving
satisfaction and tncreasing loyalty

Getting closer to customers
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We are also investing more than £20 million a year in training to ensure
that our people have the right tools and skills to do their jobs well

After ther mitial traiming all our call centre staff now spend an average
of one day ameonth learning about new developments and bullding their
expertise of Sky products so that more of our customers get their issues
resolved inone call

The mpact on the customer @xperience has been significant According to
our own internal performance measures, customer satisfaction (s at record
levels Meanwhite, we have retained our service leadership in the tnple-play
sector ranking number one In this year's Ofcom survey with the highest
satisfaction scores for customer service We have alsc won recognition
from consurmer group uSwitch winning four awards in all including Britamns
best tnple-play provider

Help yourself

Cne of the big shufts t our business has been the growing number of
customers that want to help themselves when they have a problem
or query about their service We've responded to this by developing
andincreasing the range of customer help services we offer onfine

Over thelast year we have
provided more informatuon and
tools te help ¢customers to resolve
many of the common problems
that arise By cutting out the
muddle man were empowering
the customer But it s also saving
Ws money reducng the number
of calls to our contact centres
and ensuring that the time that
our serwice teams spend with
customers is focused on helping
those with more senous issues
We also provide speafic gudance

for customers with disabilities
on how to get the most out
of our services through our
bespoke Accessibility website

Qur online helpvisits have
doubled over two years to more
than 12 milion visits a week
Thrs summer we are taking
another important step forward
with the launch of a dedicated
customer service smartphone
app making all of our help topies
even easter to access

Strateghc report - Customers

Of course, equally important to the delivery of a good customer expenence
15 making sure we are dong everything we can to prevent things going
wreng One of the ways we are achiewng this s by continuing to drive
penetration of our most reliable Sky+tHD bax which was in 83% of homes
at the end of June versus 75% n the prior year Combined with the growing
populanty of our online self-help function this has led to a sigrmificant
decline in the number of calls we receive from customers and the number
of engineer visits we need to make Over the last four years, both have
fallen by mare than a third despite the continued growth of our customer
and product base

Servi

ithout
limit
Our home commurwcations business is a great example of the way in
which we innovate and work hard to offer our customers great value
We have invested heavily in aur network, which now serves more than
90% of UK homes And seven years after we launched, customers’
appetite to switch from other providers to save money with Sky
remamns strong: we are number two in the broadband market and 37%

of our customers take the triple play of TV phone and broadband
from Sky

To make sure we give customers
great value we have arange

of productsto suit all needs

and budgets Sky Broadband
Unhmitedisdeal for surfing

and downlcading music and
mowvies Sky Fibre Unlimited with
download speeds of up to 38Mb,
15 perfect for families who have
lots of devices on the go at once
It means meore online games

the ability to stream mowvies as
well as non-stop music playlists
We also have Sky Broadband Lite
for people who just occasionally
want to browse the internet and
check a fewemails

We know that to make the maost
of the connected home you need
a great broadband service

So that s why our unlimited
services are genwnely unhmited
with no usage imits and access

to over 20000 Sky Wik hotspots
around the country - great

news for our milons of Sky Go
customers We continue to
develop eur kit to make sure
everything s easy to use and
customers can get the best
performance Sowe have designed
routers that customers can install
themnselves and wireless boosters
that extend the WiFi signal
further With more than Smillion
of our customers yet to switch
their home communications
service to Sky thereis plenty
more room to grow
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Strategic report - Bigger Picture

Sky Academy

Awhole generation has been born since Skylaunched in 1989
Theyand ther famiies are the bedrock of our business 50, inour
25th anniversary year, we decided to make a step change to the
support thatwe give young people across Britain and treland

This 1s arole that we are well
placed to play The nature of our
business spanning TV sport

and technology 1s a geod fit with
young people and we know the
Sky brand resenates strongly
with them Asamajor employer
we understand that young
people need more than academic
quakfications to reach their
potenual - its also about things
like team work self-confidence
and self-awareness We want

ta play our part in gnvang young,
pecple the help and opportumities
they need tosuccead in a
changing world

This 1s where Sky Academy comes
in Branging together a range of
imitiatives - some well-established
others just getung going - Sky
Academy aims to use the power
of television creativity and sport
to inspsre young people and help
them build skills and confidence
Just as Sky Azademy s about
encouraging the under-28s (o

aim high we are also ambitious

N Our targets Wewanttocraate
opportupes for up to one mithon
young people by 2020
Headguartered 1n our new Believe
in Better bulding, due to open

i the autumn at the heart of

our West London campus, Sky
Academy 1s comprised of four
Inuatives Sky Sports Living for
Sport, Sky Academy Skills Studios
Sky Academy Schotarships and
Sky Academy Starting Out

Sky Academy Skills Studios has
welcomed over 20000 students
aged 8-18 1o the purpose-buit
faality In West London in less
than two years since launch

The Sky Acagemy Skills Stuaios
experience takes schools behind
the scenes at Sky gvng them
the apportunity to use the latest
technology to creare their own
news reports on subjects theyre
studying We will be taunching cur
second Skills Studios in Livingston
Scotland in 2015

Sky Academy Scholarships
provide financial assistance and
mentonng to support some of
the most exating emerging talent
Insport telewston and the arts
Thus year we have helped 17 young
artists and athletes and this
spring, we launched a brand new
scheme with the Natonal Film
and Television School to provide
support to young people from
economucally-disadvantaged
backgrounds considenng a career
n television

Sky Academy Starting Out helps
prepare young people for work

by offenng arange of work
expenence apprenticeships and
gracduate roles Reaching almost
600 young pecple In the last year
we aim to double the humber of
places across the business over
the next three years, helping to
create the next generabion of
talent at Sky and gmng more
young people a head start in their
careers As part of this wereset
tolaunch a new one-day career
expenence for 16-18 year olds

this autumn

Brush Sky Broadcasting Group pic
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Bigger Picture

(continued)

Seeing the bigger picture is fundamental
to the way we do business at Sky

It means making a positive impact on
the communities where we live and work
and being willing to look beyond the
delivery of short-term results in order

to build a better business that I1s durable
for the long term This approach helps
us build long-term relationships and
earn the trust of our customers,
employees and partners. And It's an
area in which we made mportant
progress In the past year

Road to nowhere

Through Sky Rainforest Rescue, our partnership with WwWF,
we re working together to heip protect cne billion treesin
the Amazon rainforest n Brazil

Socaal and econemig contrbution

As Sky grows so does the positive socal and economic contnbution
we make to Brnitain and Ireland According to this year s research

from the Independent consultants, Oxford Economics, we contnbuted
an estimated £6 bilion to UK GDP in 201314 and worked with

7000 supplers

With more than 25000 empleyees, we are one of Bntain s largest
companies However our tatal impact 18 much wider than this ncluding
suppliers and partners 1170400 jobs in Britain were dependent on

Sky in the last year In all Sky generated £2 7 billion of tax revenues

1n the year equivalent to £42 for every person in the UK

As well as baing a valued part of everyday ife for milhions of customers,
we are the biggest commercaial supporter of the creative and sports
industries in the UK. Within our £2.6 billion investment in content,

we are on track to spend a record £600 million on UK-produced content
across our channels {excluding sports rights) by the end of December
2014 This has seen us work with more than 150 independent production
companies in the last 12 months providing a platform for therr creatiity

and helping them grow therr businesses

Our presencein 115 milien homes
across Britan and Irefand gives
us & wigue oppertunity to raise
awareness of the 1ssue of cmate
change cne of the world sbiggest
challenges and something we feel
passionate about Self-confessed
environmental sceptic Freddie
Flintoff may not have been an
obvious first chowe for afilm
about the work that we are doing
n the Amazon rainforest But
when we gave him a ¢chance

to embark on the journey of a
Ifetime, he jumped at the chance
Never one to turn down a tough
physical test Freddie hadan

added reasento gveitago -

his daughter had been learmng
about the rainforest at school
and was desperate to try to help

The resulting two-part Sky 1
documentary Flintoff's Rood
To Nowhere followed Freddie
and extreme cyclist and
emaronmentalist Rob Penn

as they cycled Brazl s Trans-
Amazoman Highway explonng
one of the world s most
enigmatic regrons atatime

of unprecedented change

It was just one way that we
sought to raise awareness about
chmate change over the year
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Changing the game

Sky Sports Living for Sport)s now
inits 1ith year and is ourlongest-
running imtiative Delivered in
partnership with Youth Sport
Trust, aver 35,000 students from
pnmary and secondary schools
across Bntain and Jreland have
taken part i a Sky Sports Living
for Sport acuvity this year

At the heart of the programme s
our team of over 90 world-dass
athlete mentars headed up by our
ambassadors, Qlympic athletes
Jessica Ennis-Hill, Carren Campbell
and Katie Taylor as well as our Sky

Academy Ambassador David
Beckham Curmentors gomta
schools and use sports skills

to help buld young people s
confidence and life skills whatever
their athleuc ability We also

host Sky Sports Living for Spert
Community Games events in logal
communities throughout the

UK for primary scheol chidren

We re proud of what we've achieved
with Sky Sports Living for Spart
but we wanted to go further
mncorporating Sky Sports Living for
Sport arid the ethos that underpins

1Tinto our TV schedtlle 5o last
autumn we launched Game
Changers, a brand new TV show for
kids that introduces msprational
role models and encourages
them to try out different sports
Recorded live in front of a studic
audience of chiidren the show
goes aut on Sky Sportstand
Sky 1 on Saturday mornings
presented by i Dougherty and
Sky Sparts Lvng for Sport
Ambassador Darren Campbell
one of Britains most successful
and well-known sprinters

Strategcreport - Bigger Pitture

The show marked the end of its
first season in Maywith a live
Game Changers Specialto celebrate
the achievements of the young
peaple and teachers imolved
1n Sky Sports Limng for Sport.
With awards presented by our
Ambassadors David Beckham
and Jessica Ennis-Hill it was a
fitting end to a successful first
season for Game Changers

Briush Sky Broadcastng Group plc
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(continued)

In spert, we continued to strengthen our relationships at all levels
helping to improve performance partcipation and infrastructure
through the investment and pramotion that we provide One area of
particular focus In the past year has been womens sport In the last 12
months Sky Sports concluded new nghts deals to broadeast England
Netball and Women s Rughby and extended its relatronship with the
Ladies Professional Golf Association Reflecting its commitment to the
area Sky Sports launched a new weekly show in September dedicated to
women s sport as well as supportng The Sunday Times as the exclusive
partner for the 2013 Sportswomen of the Year Awards in December

A responsible busimess day to day

Of course we understand that what we do as a business 15 only part

of the answer We know that how we do business is just as important
For Sky believing in better also means doing the right thing and acting
responsibly in all that we do This approach s integral to the culture and
values we seek to promote among our people The millions of customers
across Britain and Ireland that choose Sky for their home entertainment
and communications have high expectations of us and it s our job to
maintain their trust in the decisions we take every day

Powering down

We have set out ambitious targets to reduce ourimpact onthe
environment, induding a target to improve energy efficiency
across all our bulldings by an average of 20% by 2020 (compared
to the 2008/09 basehne) One way we are doing this s to improve
the effictency of our data centres, the buildings we use to house
the milliens of pieces of data that help our business work

We've nstalled monitoring tools
to measure the performance of
our data centres and we re making
the most of virtual servers and
coud-based technology By the
end of 2014 we will have moved
almost all of our servers into

our newer more energy-efficient
data centres

By 2017 we hope te have

closed our smaller data centres
completely reducing costs and
gving us greater control over
our IT systems This s a big step
towards building a more durable
business for the long term

One example of the way in which we do that1s in our work to make
our products and services accessible to everyone including those
wath disabilifies We provide subtithng and audio description on

24 of our Sky-owned TV channels with over 80% of Iinear content
delivered with subtitles and over 20% with audio description

The new Electronic Programme Guide that we rofled out this

year was designed in consultation with the Royal National Institute
of Blind People Andin May we strengthened the capabilities of our
90-strong accessbility customer service team when we extended
the use of our Video Relay Service to enable hard of heanng customers
to call In and use sign language

We continue to make good progress against our ambitious 2020
environmental targets Our greatest operationalimpact is in our

own enargy use sowe re aiming to halve our carbon intensity

(CO,e emissions relative to revenue) by 2020 As at the end of 201314
we've already achieved a 40% reduction against our 2008/09 baseline
Over the same time period our absolute gross enmissions have
decreased by 10% to 85 000 tonnes CO,e Where we have unavoidable
emissions we offset and continue to be carbon neutral More detail
anound our greenhouse gas emissions can be found on page 79
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We are committed to bulding preductive far and ethical relationships
with our suppliers and distnbutors - relationships on which so much
of the success of our business relies We set out our expectations

1 our Responsible Souraing Pokcy whichs available on our website
Qver the past year we have assessed 100 per cent of our strategic
suppliers against cur responsible sourcing questionnaire

while we do not have a specific human rights policy, we have a strong
commitment to upholding the principles of human nghts across our
business Qur commitments to human rights are included within our
Environment Policy and our Responsitie Sourang Policy These prninciples
are also cuthned in Sky s Ways of Working This 1s the code of conduct
that everyone who works at Sky is expected to adhere to Further
Information 1s available on our website at sky com/biggerpicture

Inspiing action

We know that we have the cpportunity te use our position as a leading
media and communications company to reach beyond our business
and make a positive impact on society

We made a step change In our approach this year with the launch of

Sky Academy in November This 1s a unigue and groundbreaking set of
initiatives that use the power of TV, creativity and sport to Inspire young
people and give them the skills and confidence they need to succeed

Sport s at the heart. of what we do and we believe in its power to change
lives Our partnershup wath British Cyefing now in its sixth yaar, has got
rmore than one mihon people on ther bikes since 2009 and the elte
success of Team Sky delivered a British winner of the Tour de France

for the second consecutive year in 2013

Strateglcreport - Bigger Pictura

Sky Rainforest Rescue s our partnership with WWF and the State
Government of Acre in Brazil which aims to save a billion trees |n the
Amazon rainforest Through the campaign, we re also Insping our
customers in Britain and Ireland to take action to address climate change

With the partnership now in its fifth year, more than 1,500 famihes in
Brazil have registered to take part in a voluntary land certification scheme
ta help give local people ways of making a lving from the forest without
cutting down trees As a result of knowing about Sky Rainforest Rescue
27% of pecple are now more aware of the 1ssue of deforestation The
partnership has raised a total of over £4 milion with Sky then matching
every contrbutton pound for peund

We are proud of our work to make a positive cantribution to society and
we are committed to doing more n the future

Carbonintensity’
Target 50% reductionn gross CO.e enmissions relative to revenue®

2013n4

124
01203 T AR 128
— 139
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2008/08 SFTT TR NAE oo
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201314 data s independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can ba viewad
online at skycom/biggerpicture

Relative to 2008/09 baseline

Gross CO,# emissions nciude amissions from premises and company owned
vehicles {(Scope tand 2)
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People

Future proofing

We knowwe're only as good as
the people that work forus and
nowhere 15 this more true than
in technology where our ability
to stay one step ahead depends
onattracting the best talent
with the most up-to-date skills

Our requirement for software
developers has grown in the past
few years with the expansion

of aur connected TV services
However it s also been clear

that we re not the only company
out there looking in whats

an increasingly competitive

Jobs market

So we took the decision to develop
more of our talent in house

In 201 we set up the Sky Software
Engineenng Acaderny This takes
24 graduates every July fresh out
of university and passionate about
technology and over the course

of seven months helps turn them
into fully-fledged developers

The new starters beginwth a
four-week boot camp to get them
all up to the same level We then
get them out on the job working
onlive projects to apply what
they have leamt under the close
supervision of one of our experts

Over the next five months

they work in small teams on
avanety of different tasks to
help get them ready for a career
In Sky At the end we sit down
with them to help them decide
where in the business they
might want to pursue a career

Two yearsin and theschemes
beena great success so,last
September we decrded to accept
a further 12 young people inta
the programme

In addition we recruited 12 people
Inte a newly-created Davelopment
Operations Academy wath the aim

of training up graduates to work
on our hardware and infrastructure
requirements

with almast 100 bright young
graduates through its doors in
the first three years our Software
Engineering Acadermy is one of
the many ways Sky s building
skills for the future
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People

(continued)

Our people are critical to our success
We aim to foster a culture where
they can do their best work every
day, fulfil their potential and achieve
great things together

In a fast-mowing industry, we know that success comes from awilingness
to embrace change We want Lo encourage our people to strive for

continual improvement In everything that they do That s at the heart of
our Believe in Better ethos and has been the basis of Sky's achievements
over the past 25 years We believe it1s the best foundation for the future

Qur aim s to create an environment where all of our people can fulfil thesr
potential To help them progress we provide a wide range of opportunities
for development such as mentonng and new skills training The Sky

Space to work

For our pecple to flourish and do the best they can 1t's important that
we provide them with the best working environment. This summer we
opened a brand new buiding, known as Tha Hub nght at the heart of
our campus in West London, in the latest stage of the redevelopment
of the Osterley headquarters where we have been based since 1589

The Hub s Sky's first major flexble
workspace, housing around 450
employees over three floors Next
on the list s the new headquarters
for Sky Academy and construction
has also begunon afurther phase
of development. In inewith our

commitment to sustainatakity all
the new buildings are designed to
have minimal environmental impact,

This project which started in
2010 wath the construction

of Sky Studios represents a
transformation of the working

Development Studic, for example 15 an onkne learming portai which
provides access to a huge choice of learning resources and courses
avatlable to all Last year this delivered more than 75000 hours of

e-learning across the business

Because we know that the quality of our managers has a biginfluence

on perfarmance and engagement, we launched a new two-day traming
programme this year for newly promoted managers 'Sky Management
HD covers everything from intervtew techmques to objective seting

over the two-day programme More than 600 managers have completed
the programme in the first year, contnbuting to a total of 100 000 traimng
days in the last 12 months across the company

However learning 1s not just about formaltraining As a large and diverse
company we are also able to offer our people the opportunity to broaden
their experience through exposure to different parts of the business

We actively encourage internal moves and job rotations at all levels of

the orgarisation, from project wark and short-term placements te new
full-timeroles This helps us to build a broader skills base and strengthens
coltaboratton across depariments

environment for the thousands of
our people now based at Osterley
We am to create astate-of-the art
media and technokogy campus to
support Sky's growth far into the
future ahd are confident that the
new facilities will have a positive
Impact on our people our business
and on our local community

provided access to gyms to keep
our people it and refurbished

&l our cafés and restaurants

We know how tmportant the
working environment 1s and

we re always changing and adapting
Itto create the best workplace for
our people This year we've Invested
nour sites across the UK and
Ireland from Livingston to Victona

It 5 not just in Osterley where were
and from Dublin to Newcastle

constantly trying to make Sky a
great place towork This year we ve
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A Sky for everyone

Because we want Sky to be a great place to work we offer a comprehensive
reward package which includes generous holiday entitiement and maternity
leave allowance a pension and healthcare as well as free Sky+HD Sky
Broadband and discounted Sky Talk

As well as developing and rewarding the people who already work at Sky
we want o encourage new talent to join us We continue to grow aur
employee base adding more than 4 500 new jobs in the [ast three years
to take our total employee base to 25 400

The launch of Sky Academy in Novernber 2013 has brought a step change
In our commitment to provide opportunities for young people within the
business Through Sky Academy Starting Qut we will more than double the
size of our work expenence and employment programmes over the next
three years across a range of work experience placerment, apprenticeship
and graduate schemes

Thts means growing the size of our existing programmes but it also means
we'lllaunch a brand new programme offenng thousands of teenagers

the opportunity to spend a day at Sky for a hands-on expenence of the
workplace This will open Sky to even mare young people and help them
prepare for the world of work To underline our commitment Sky Academy
will be headquartered in a new building at the heart of our Osterley
campus Thiswill also serve as a space where Sky people will come together
for tratning development and mentonng

Strategic repan - People

We know that we will be better placed for success as abusiness
if we have a balanced and diverse workforce that reflects our
customers and includes the most talented people, regardless

of gender or ethnicity That 5 why we are committed to improving

diversity inour industry

One way that we are seeking to
Improve is by increasing diversity
onscreen induding on Sky News
for example where we have
increased the representation of
women as expert commentaters

Ancther wayis the introduction
this year of five Sky Academy

TV Seholarships Available to
successful applicants on courses
un by the Nationak Film and TV
School (NFTS) the schalarships
will be offered to young peopie
from economically-disadvantaged
backgrounds We will fully fund
three places at the NFTS on the
Broadcast Production course and
two on the Digtal Content and
Formats course, which we already
support through placements

and mentonng

The am1s to encourage Individuals
who may not otherwise have
considered a ¢career in the media
with a particular focus on
supporting students fram

black, Asian and minenty ethnic
backgrounds and those with
disabiities Added to extsting
initiatives hike our partnership
with MAMA Youth Project where
Sky spensors 12 young people
from minonty and disadvantaged
backgrounds the NFTS
scholarships are another step
towards increasing diversity In
the broadcasting industry

We believe that a diverse workforce creates a stronger business and
therefore we work to create an environment that encourages diversity

and innovation

We are committed to increasing female and ethnic representation in
our employee base and in particular in leadership roles The ratto of male
to female colieagues based on the number of employees as at 30 June

2014 1s outlined below

Diversity gender

Male Female
Board of Directors 13 87% 2 13%
Serior managers 105 74% 36 26%
All employees' 14,740 66% | 7508 34% ,

1 Based on full-time equivalent ernployess from continuing operabons ang excluding

people wha work for our jont ventures

2093114 dataisindependently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed onling at

sky coméiggerpicture
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Financial review

We have delivered an excellent year of operational and
financial growth Continued demand across the board
translated into strong revenue growth which, combined
with a continued focus on operating efficiency, meant
we absorbed our investment in connected services and
matched last year’s record adjusted earnings per share

Andrew Gnffith
Chief Finanaial Officer

Financial performance

We delivered a good finanwal performance for the twelve months to
30 June 2014 Adjusted revenue growth was 5% (or 7% after excluding
the impact of ESPN) and this together with continued discipline on
costs allowed us to delwver adjusted EBITDA of £1667 million down
only 1% dlespite our connected services investment and the step

up in Premier League amorusabion Adjusted basic earnings per
share were 60 0 pence flat on the prior year s record leve!

Unless otherwise stated all figures and growth rates exclude adjusting
items A reconciliation of statutory to adjusted figures s detalled
on page 139

Revenue
2014 2013

For the year to 30 June £m % £m %
Retai! subscnption 6255 82 5951 82
Wholesale subscription 407 6 356 6
Advertising 472 [ 440 6
Installation hardware & service B85 1 87 1
Other 398 5 361 5

TE17 100 7235 100

Revenue increased by 5% to £7617 milkon (2013 £7235 milion)} with
continued strong growth in both our retait and commercial businesses
Revenue grew by 7% excluding the impact of the discontinued retaling
of the ESPN channel in both 2074 and 2013

Retail subscription revenue after excluding E6 milkion of ESPN revenue
(2013 £85 mullion) grew by 7% to E6 249 milhon (2013 £5 B62 mullior)
reflecting strong product and customer growth and pnee nsesinthe
year Qurinvestments in connected services are paying back dnven
by a strong performance from Sky Store which saw revenues more
thandouble on last year

Our commercial businesses also performed well Advertising revenue
was up 7% to £472 milion {2013 E440 milion) through a combination
of market growth share gains through our consolidaton of two small
sales houses in this finanaalyear and a first time contrbution from
Sky AdSmart Wholesale subscnpUion revenue increased by 3% to
E407 milion (2013 £396 millor) as renewed carnage agreements
and price Increases were partially offset by lower customer volumes
on third-party platforms

Other revenue increased by 10% to £398 mithon (2013 £361 milion)
with continued strong performance from Sky Bet which saw mebile
users up 29% dniving revenues up 18% to £183 million

Qur statutory reported revenue grew 5%
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Adjusted
£1.67bn
-
Adjusted - y .
L]
Dividend ’ 32 ’ O
¢ I
Costs
2014 2013
For the year to 30 June Em % £m %
Programming 2662 42 2486 42
Direct networks 819 13 715 12
Marketing 1199 19 1916 19
Subscrniber managementand
supply chain 688 n 647 il
Transrisston technolegy and
fixed networks 447 7 401 7
Admirustration 542 B8 540 9

6,357 100 5905 100

Excluding the one-off step up in the new Premier League deal and the
discontinuation of ESPN carriage (2014 £223 million 2013 £78 miflion)
programming costs of E2 439 million (2013 £2.408 millen) were up 1%
i the year as we made disupbned choices across our diverse content

peortfolio Sports accounted for the majonty of the increase given our

investment in a farge number of renewed and new rights agreements

Maovies costs increased from a broader grant of nghts faclitating new
propositions ike NOW TV Sky Go Extra and Sky Store while payments
to third-party channel providers were lower than the prior year as we

negotiated more favourable terms on several renewed agreements

Direct network costs of £819 million were up 15% (2013 £715 million)
as we continugd Lo grow our customer base and absorbed the
acquired 02 customer base onto our netwark

Marketing costs of £1193 milkon (2013 £1136 milhion) were driven by
the increased growth of paid-for products compared to last year and
promotions behind our drive to connect our base of set-top boxes
Above the line marketing was alse lugher as we maintained our share
of voice in the market with targeted campaigns throughout the year

Subscrniber management and supply chain casts were up 6% at £688
milken (2013 E£647 million} as we continued ta see strong growth In
products and customers invested in our connected services and
integrated the acquired O2 customers into the Sky base

Transmission technology and fixed netweork costs increased by
11% to £447 mullon (213 £401 milhion) [argely due to the first time
consolidation of the cost base assocated with the acquired 02
broadband business Admiristration costs of £542 mifion were
broadly flat onlast year {2013 £540 mithon)

Strategic repoert - Finanaal reviaw

Profits and earnings

Adjusted EBITDA of £1667 mullion (2013 £1692 mullion) and adjusted
operatng profit of £1260 mithon {2003 £1 330 rmuton) 1s an excellent
resultin a period where the business absorbed a one-off step up in
Premuer League costs and invested to accelerate take-up and usage
of new connected TV services

Depreciation and amortrsation was up 12% at £407 millien (2013 £362
milion) due to the integration of the acquired O2 business a higher
base of depreciable assets with more unbundled exchanges network
upgrades carmed out across the year and a higher fixed asset base

as we begin to depreciate the development costs of products such

as NOW TV and Sky AdSmart

Profit before tax was E¥186 million (2013 £1254 milhon) which
included the Group’s share of joint ventures and assoclates’ profits of
£35 million (2013 £37 million) and a net interest charge of £109 milion
{2013 £103 miltion) Taxation for the period was £249 million (2013
£295 million), at an adjusted effective tax rate of 21% (2013 23%)
mainly as aresult of the reductionin the rate of UK corporation tax

Profit after tax for the yzar was £937 millien (2013 £969 millior)
generating adiusted basic earrungs per share of 60 0 pence (2013
600 pence) Over the year the weighted average number of shares
excluding those held by the Employee Share Ownership Plan { ESQP )
for the settlement of employee share awards was 1562 mifhion (2013
1614 miflion) The closing number of shares excluding the ESOP shares
at 30 June 2014 was 1546 million (2013 1573 mithion)

Adjusting items

Statutory operating profit of £1161 milhien (2013 £1251 milien)
Includes a net exceptional cost of £99 miliion (2013 £39 mihon)
which reflects integration costs of the acquired O2 business and the
angolng amortisation of acquired intangbles (€72 million) the costs
of & corporate efficiency programme undertaken through the year
(£4C million) offset in part by a net gain from the termination

of an escrow agreement with a wholesale customer {E13 milion}

Statutory profit after tax of £865 million (2013 £979 million) also
includes a net axceptional gain of £27 million due to a tax credit and
the tax effect on all adjusting items (£32 million) partially offset by a
£5 milhon costrelating to mark te market values of denvative financial
instruments

In the prior year statutory profit after tax inciuded a net exceptional
gain of E10 millon consisting of a gan of £32 million relating to a credit
note receved from BT follewing an Ofeem determination that BT had
overcharged for Etherret services a gain of £33 million following final
settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set~top boxes
and a gain of £9 million on the dispesal of ourinvestment in MUTY
Limited These gains were offset by costs of £56 million for a one-off
upgrade of set-top boxes and a progranmime to offer wireless
connectors to selected Sky Movies customers, i addition to costs

of £33 million for a corporate efficiency programme and costs of

£15 rullan inrelation to the acousition and integration af Q2s
consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony service Other adjusting
itemsn the prior year were a £23 milion gain relating to mark to
market values of dervative financial nstruments and a £17 million
credit relating to the tax exceptionals and the tax effect on all
adjusting items

Areconciliation of statutery to adjusted numbers i1s shown on page 139

British Sky Broadcasting Groupple 37

wodaisiBaens

FANPUIIADD

SJURWB]ETS [enleLly

UONBUHOJUL IBP|OUSIBYS




Aannual Report 2014

Strategik report ~ Financial revew

Financial review

(continued)

Cash flow and financial positilon

Adpusted free cash flow excluding campus redevelopment investment
eosts of £62 million (2013 £12 millon) was 3% lower at £1 006 millon
{2013 £1040 million) reflecung lower EBITDA and higher capital
expenditure offset by a positive working capital movement and

lower cash tax

Capital expenditure increased by E89 million to £543 mitlion

(2013 £454 milion) due to the phasing of campus redevelopment
Investment, the Integration and migration of acquired O2 customers
and product development investmeant Excluding the campus
redevelopment, underlying capital expenditure was E481 million
(2013 €442 milion)

Non-
Asat1 Cash cash Asat
July  move- move- 30June
2013 ments ments 2004

Em £m Em £m
Current barmowings n - - n
Non-current borrowings 2908 - (251) 2658
Borrowings-related denvative
financial Instruments (327) - 247 80
Gross debt 2,593 - (4) 2,589
Cash and cash equivalents (815} (267 - (1082
Short-term deposits {595) 300 - (295)
Netdebt 1183 33 4y 1212

Net debt increased shghtly to £1 212 million (2013 £1183 million}asa
result of the £750 miion cash returned to shareholders wa dwvidends
and share buy-back In the year Gross debt was £2 589 millon with
£1,377 milien of cash and cash equivatents and short-term deposits at
30 June 2014 The Group s iquidity and headreom remain comfortable

Balance Sheet

Duriag the year total assets increased by £104 million to £6 449 milon
at 30 June 2014 Non-current assets increased by £100 millon to

£3 876 mithien primarily due to an inerease of £139 mithon in intangible
assets and property plant and equipment as a result of campus
redevelopment investment the integration and migration of acquired
QR customers and product development investment an increase of
£111 muliion In avallable-for-sale investments mainly resulting from the
Inerease in the value of our Investment in ITV ple, offset by £165 million
decrease In non-current denvative financial assets which offsets
against movements In non-current borrowings Current assets
intreased by E4 milian to £2 573 milhen at 30 Jupe 2014

Total labilities increased by £44 millien to £5 377 million at 30 June
2014 Current habilites increased by £202 milhon to €2 519 millon
pnmarily due te a £263 million increase in trade and other payables
offset by a £48 millicn decrease in current tax habilities Non-current
lhabilities decreased by £158 million to £2,858 rulbon principally due
to a £251 million decrease in the Group s non-current borrowings
as aresult of the strengthening of pounds sterling against the US
dollar and fair value movements In the value of bonds offset bya
£100 millien increase in non-current denvative finanaal labilities

Distributions to Shareholders

We have once again increased our ordinary dwvidend The Directors
proposed final dmdend of 20 0 pence per share takes the total
dimdend payable in respect of the financal year to 32,0 pence per
share an increase of 7% on last vear and double the fevel of seven
years ago Shareholders have now benefited from a decade of
sustained divdend groewth such that a holder of a single Sky share
over that penod would have recewed over 200 pence tn dwdends

The ex-dvidend date will be 13 Novemnber 2014 and subject to
shareholder approval at the 2014 Annual General Meeting the
final dadend of 200 pence will be paid on 5 December 2014 to
sharehalders appearing on the register at the close of business
on 14 November 2014

At the Company’s AGM an 22 Novernber 2013 we received shareholder
approval to retum up to £500 nullion of capitai to shareholders via a
share buy-back On 25 July 2014 the Company suspended Its share
buy-back programme

Post balance sheet events

On 17 July 2014 the Group sofd a shareholding of approamately
6 4% in ITV ple consisting of 259,820 065 ITV shares for an aggregate
cons:deration of approximately £481 million

The Company announced on 25 July 2014 that it has condiionally
entered Into share purchase agreements (the “Acqursition
Agreements”) with 21st Century Fox (and its relevant subsicianes)

to acquire its 100% stake in Sky Itaha 51l and 1ts 57 4% stake in Sky
Deutschland A G The Company further announced its Intention te
make a voluntary cash offer (the "Offer”) to the minonty shareholders
of Sky Deutschland A G The Acquisiticn Agreements and the Offer
(together the “Transactions™) are conditional on, amongst other things
their approval by the Company s independent shareholders and
regulatory dearances

The total consideration for the acquisition of Sky Italiais £2 45 bilion
with approximately £2 07 billon to be paid in cash and the balance to
be satisfied through the transfer of the Group s 21% stake in Natonal
Geographic Channel to 21st Century Fox ("21CF") The acquisition of
21CF's shareholding in Sky Deutschland AG 1s for a consideration of
£29 billion in cash, valuing Sky Deutschland at €6 75 a share Subject
to the number of Sky Deutschland AG minonty shareholders that
accept the Offer the total consideration for the transacuon wili range
from £29 bdlionto £5 billion

For further detalls see note 29 to the consolidated financal
statements
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Strategw report - Principal rrsks snd uncertanties

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group risk register 1s reported formally to the Audit Committes
twice a year and focused nsk reporting on selacted themes oceurs

on aquarterly basis Addivonalinformaton on the Group s internal
contro! and nsk management, processes Is set cut in the Corporate
Governance Report and the Audit Committee Report (See page 54)

This section descnbes the current principal nsks and uncertainties
facing the Group In add.tion to summansing the material nsks and
uncertainties the table below gives examples of how we mitigate
those nsks

The Group has a formal nsk management framework embedded within
the business to support the identification and effective management
of nsk across the Group

The dwisions within the Group are each responsible for managing and
reporting rnsk in accordance with the Group s nsk management policy
and standards that have been approved by the Audit Committee
The risks are then consolidated Into a Group nsk register which
provides an overview of the Group risk profile

Descnption of nisk

Mibigaton

Market and competition

The Group operates in a highly competitive ermaronment and faces
competition from a broad range of organisations Technalogical
developments also have the ability to create new forms of quickly
evohang competition

A failure to develop the Group s product propesitionin ine with
changing market dynamics and expectations could erede the
Group s competitive position

Great content 1s central to Sky s product proposition and increased
competition could impact the Group's ability to acquire content that
Its customers want on commercially attractve terms

Economic conditions have been challenging in recent years and the
future remains uncertain A significant economic decling could impact
the Group s ability te continue to attract and retain customersg

The Group continues to make significant Investments in Innovation

The Greup's product development strategic aimis to be at the
forefront of progressive technology

Please see the Innovation section for further detaits of these
products

The Group regularfy reviews its pneing and packaging structures
to ensure that its product proposition s appropriately placed
within the market,

The Group works closely with its marketing partners to ensure that
the value of its offering 1s understood and communicated effectivety
1o its customers

The Group makes significant investment In the ongination of
UK content as well as in acquisition from across the world

The Group also works to develop and maintain the brand value
associated with its individual channels

Regulatory breach and change

The Group s subject to regulation pamarily under UK, Insh and European
Union legislation

The regimes which apply to the Groups business include but are not
imited to

Broadcasting - the Group 1s subject to Ofcom s licensing regme under
the Broadeasting Acts 1990 and 1996 and the Communications Act
2003 These obkgations include the requirement to comply with the
relevant codes and directions 1ssued by Ofcomn, including for example
the Broadcasting Code the Cede on the Scheduling of Television
Advertsing and the Cross Promotions Code

Gambling - Alderney Gambling Central Commission ("AGCC™) regulation
and Gambling Act 2005 (UK},

Platform services - as a provider of EPG and CA services the Group

1s subject to regulation under the Communications Act 2003 which
amongst other things requires it to prowde EPG and CA services to
other broadcasters on faw, reasonable and non-discrimmatory terms
and

Telecommunications - the Group is subject to the General Conditions
of Entitlement adopted under the Communications Act 2003 which
impase detatled requirements on praviders of communications
networks and services

The Group manages theserisks through active engagement in the
regulatory processes that affect the Group s business

The Group actively seeks to identify and meet our regulatory
obligations and to respond to emerging reguirements This indudes
for example

= Broadcasting - complhance contrels processes and conkacts
are In place in Entertainment, Mowvies, Sports and News services
[nteraction with Cfcom 1s co-ordinated between the Compliange
Regulatory and Legal departments

Gambling - controls and processes arein place to monitor our
comphance with and our adherencs to our obhigations under the
AGCC regulatons and the Gambhing Act 2005 We are subject to
regular independeant audit by the AGCC against the Alderney
regulatrons and wall e apphlying te the UK Gambling Commission
fora UK Remote Gambiling Licence in accordance with recent
amendments to the Gambling Act 2005

* Platform services - processes aren place to maonitor third-party
broadcaster access to the digital satelite platform and to ensure
that this1s provided on far reasonable and nen-discnminatory
terms

Telecommunications - compliance controls processes and
contacts aren place overseen bythe Customer Compliance
Committee to momtor compliance and performance against
the General Conditions of Entitlemant
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Strategc report - Princpal nsks and uncertarties

Description of risk

Mitigation

Regulatory breach and change continued:

The Group I also subject to generally applicable legislation induding,
but not bmited to competition {antitrust) consumer protection data
protection and taxation

The Group s currently and may ben the future subject to proceedings
and/or investigation and enquines from regulatory autherities

The Group s ability to operate or compete effectively could be adversely
affected by the outcome of investigations or by the introduction of new
laws policies or regulations changes in the interpretation or apphcation
of extstuing laws polrctes and regulations or failure to obtamn required
regulatory approvals or licences

Please see page 44 of the 'Regulatory Matters section for further details

The Graup maintains appropnate oversight and reporting, supported
by training to provide assurance that 1t 15 compliant with regulatary
requirements.

Customer service

The Group’s business 1s based on a subscnption medel and its future
success refles on building long-term relationships with Its customers
A fallure to meet its customers eapectations with regards to service
could negatively impact the Group s brand and competitive position

The Group stnves consistently to exceed Its customers
expectauons to put its customers first, to understand what
they want and to be responsive to what they say

The Group makes significant investments in order to delver
continuous development and improvement to iIts customer
service capabiites incduding investment inits contact centres
across the UK and Ireland and imptementing ongoing training
and develapment plans

The Group tracks Its customer service performance, benchmarks
Its customer service experience and straves to be best in class

Technology and business interruption

The products and services that the Group provides to Its customers
are refiant on complex technical infrastructure

A fajlure in the operation of the Group's key systems or Infrastructure
such as the broadcast platform customer management systems OTT
platforms or the telecommunications netwerks on which the Group
relies could cause a failure of service to our customers and negatively
tmpact our brand

The Group makes significant Investment tn technology infrastructure
te ensure that it continues to support the growth of the business

The Group s committed to achieve best-in-class business continuity
standards and makes significant investments in the resihence and
robustness of Its business infrastructure

The Group also organises regular scenarno based group-wide
business continuity exercises to ensure ongoing readiness of
key staff systems and sites

Supply chain

The Group relies on a number of third parties and eutsourced supphers
coperatngacross the globe te support its supply chain

Asignificant failure within the supply chain could adversely affect
the Groups ability to deliver products and service Lo its customers

The Group continues to invest in its supply chain infrastructure
to support itsbusiness plan commitments

A robust supplier selection pracess 15in place with appropriate
ongoing management and monitonng of key partners and suppliers

The Group performs regular audits of key suppliers and of their
installations and wharever possible has dual supnly capability
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Strategic report ~ Prinapai nsks and uncertanties

Principal risks and uncertainties

(continued)

Desanpbion of nsk

Mitigation

Financial

The effective management of its financial exposures s central to
presenang the Groups profitability

The Group Is exposed to finanaal market nsks and may be impacted
negatively by fluctuatrons in foreign exchange and interest rates
which create volatility in the Group s results to the extent that

they are not effectively hedged

The Group may alsc be affected adversely by hquidity and
counterparty risks

The Group s finance teams are embedded within the business to
provide support to management and toensure accurate financial
reporting and tracking of our bustness performance Reporting
on finanaal perfaormance 1s provided on amonthly basis to semor
management and the Board

The Group continually Invests in the improvement of 1ts systems
and processes inorder to ensure sound financial management
and reportng

The Group manages treasury nsk by mamimising nsk to capital
and providing appropriate protection aganst foreign exchange
and interest rate movements

Cash investment 1s made in ine with the Group s stnct treasury
policy which is approved by the Audit Committee and sets kmits
on deposits based on counterparty credit raings Mo more than
10% of cash deposits are held with a single bank counterparty
with the exception of overmight deposits which are iInvested

in a spread of AAAF rated iquidity funds

All nen-sterling debt 15 swapped at inception to ensure appropnate
currency and interest rate protection s in place and trading currency
sk 1s hedged up to five years in advance

The Group manages its tax nsk by ensunng that risks are igentified
and understood at an early stage and that effective compliance and
reporung processes are ih place

The Group contnues to maintain an apen and proactive relattonship
with the regulating tax authonties, pnmarily HM Revenue & Customs
The Group awns to deal with taxation 1ssues wherever possible

as they arise In order to avoid unnecessary cisputes

Secunty

The Group must protect its customer and corporate data and the
safety of its people and infrastructure as well as needing to have
In place fraud prevention and detection measures

The Group s responstble to third-party intellectual property owners
for the secunty of the content that it cistnbutes on vanous platforms
(Skys own and third-party platforms)

A sigrificant breach of security could mpact the Group s ability
to operate and deliver against Its business objectives

The Group takes measures ranging frem physical and logical access
controls to encryption or equivalent technologies to manage its
secunty nsks

The Group continues to nvest In new technological controls and

n improving broader business process and works closely with law
enforcement agencies and policy makers in order to protect its
assets and to comply with its contractual obligations to third parties

Projects

The Group Invests in and delivers significant capital expenditure
projects in order tocontinually dnve the business forward

The fatlure to deliver key projects effectively and efficiently could
rasult in significantly increased project costs and impede our ability
to execute our strategic plans

Acommon project management methedology is used to enable the
Group to manage mertor and controlits major capital expenditure
projects and strategic programmes This includes standardised
reporting and monthly reviews by senior management as well as
cross-functional executve steering groups for major projects

Third-party partners will where appropnate be engaged to pronde
support and expertise in our farge stratege programmes complex
imitiatives and for emerging technologies
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Descriptan of rsk

Mungatian

Inteflectual property protection

The Group 1n commonwith other service providers, refies an intellectual
praperty and other proprietary nghts including s respect of
programming content, which may not be adequately protected under
current faws or whth may be subject to unauthorsed use

We maintain an ongoing programme to support appropriate
protections of cur intellectual property and other rights

This iIncludes for example, the use of automated online monitorng
tools themplementation of on-screen mpnnting of content
together with an active programme to protect our trade marks

People

People at Sky are critical to the Group s ability to meet the needs
of Its customers and achieve its goals as a business

Fallure to attract or retain suitable employees across the business
could imit the Group s atubty to deliver 1ts business plan commitments

Making Skya great place to work is central to the Group s strategy
The Group champrons diversity and develops talent through
anumber of actvties induding the Graduate programme
Development Studio an apprenuceship stheme and aleaderstip
programme

The Group has well established channels and procedures to recrurt
and retain its employees and to ensure that an adequate number
of suitable employees work within (ts customer service teams

and across all ks operations

Further detail on our people (s set out on pages 32 to 35

The Company announced on 25 July 2014 that it has conditionally entered into share purchase agreements (the "Acquisition Agreements”)
with 2ist Century Fox {and its relevant subsidiaries) to acquire its 100% stake in Sky Italia Srfand its 574% (on a fully-diluted basis) stake

in Sky Deutschland A G The Company further annsunced its intention to make avoluntary cash offer (the “Offer”) to the minonty shareholders
of Sky Deutschiand A G The Acqursition Agreements and the Offer (together the "Transactions™) are conditional on, amangst other things
approvat by the Company’s independent shareholders and regulatory clearances The nsks relating to the Transactions and their mpact if all
relevant conditions are satisfied and they proceed to completion, will be set out In 2 circular which will be sent to the Company's shareholders
together with a notice of a general meeting of the Company containing the resolutions seeking shareholder approval for the Transacions
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Strategic report - Regulatory matters

Regulatory matters

Below Is an overview of the ongoing
Investigations and reviews of
regulatory and competition matters
Involving the Group

European Commission Investigation

On 13 January 2004 the European Commission opened a formal
antitrust investigation into cross-border provision of pay TV services
in the EU The CommIssion IS eXxamining certain provisions refating

to territonial protectionin lcence agreements between major US

film studios (Twentieth Century Fox, Warner Bros,, Sony Pictures,
NBCUnversal and Paramount)} and key European pay TV broadcasters
(the Group Canal Plus, Skyitalia Sky Deutschland and DTS, operating
under the Canal Plus brandin Spain) The Commission has not reached
any conclusions at this stage and the Group 15 not yet able to assess
whether, or the extent to which this revew will have a matenal effect
onthe Group

Wholesale must-offer obligations

©On 31 March 2010 Ofcom published its decision to impose wholesale
must-offer obligations on the Group (the “WMO Obhgatians”) for the
channels Sky Sports 1, Sky Sports 2, Sky Sports 1 HD and Sky Sports
2 HD ({the "Affected Channels™) The WMC Obligations require the
Group, amongst other things to offer the Affected Channels on

a whotesale basis to third parties which satisfy various minimum
qualifying cntena (including financial technical and securty critena)
The WMO Obligations specify maximum prices that the Group

may charge for Sky Sports 1 and/or Sky Sports 2 Under the WMO
Obhgations the wholesale pricess linked to the Group s retai price
The WMQ Obligations do not speafy a maximum price for Sky Sports
1HD and/or Sky Sports 2 HD Rather, the Group is required to offer
these channels on a Fair reasonable and non-discnminatory basis

In Apnl 2010, the Group applied tothe Competition Appeal Tribunal
(the “CAT™) for a suspension of the implementation of the WMO
QObligations On 29 April 2010 the Group s application was resolved
by way of an agreed Order from the President of the CAT (the "Order”}
The terms of the Order resulted in the suspension of certain aspects
of Ofcom s decision pending the outcome of the Group s substantive
appeal Insummary the effect of the Orderis as follows

+ The Group s required to offer subject to certain pre-condittons
being met the Affected Channels to each of BT Top Up TVand
virgin Media {*VM”) for distribution via DTT and to M for distribution
wia cable Other parties may apply to the CAT to be added to the
Iist of persons to whom the Group 1s required to offer its channels
(on 23 November 2010 REAL Digital EPG Services Limited was added to
the list in respect of DTH satellite distnbution but has not commenced
distribution of any Sky Sports channels)

In the event that BT, Top Up TV or VM enter into a distnbution
agreement for Sky Sports1and/or Sky Sports 2 under the WMO
Obligations the distnbuter is required to pay the Group the
equivalent of the maximum price the Group may charge for the
chanrel(s) under the WMO Obhgatiens The difference between
that price and the rate card price set by the Group will be pard
into escrow

On 8 August 2012 the CAT handed down its judgment on the Group s
appeal against Ofcomn s decision to impose the WMO Obligations
(the "Pay TV Judgment™} publishing sts full judgrnent on 26 October
2012 The CAT found that "Ofcom s core competition concern is
unfounded” (Qfeom had found that the Group deliberately withheid
wholesale supply of its Premium Channels) and that accordingly

the Groups appeal must be allowed

On 26 Aprii 2013 BT was granted permission to appeal the Pay TV
Judgment to the Court of Appeal The Court of Appeal handed down
Judgment in BT s appeal and the Groups cross-appeat on whether
Ofcom had the power to impose the WMD Qbligations on 17 February
2014 The Court of Appeal dismissed the Group s cress-appeal and
allowed BT's appeal The Court of Appeal found that Ofcom s decistan
contained a further competition concern (0 relation to the Group s rate
card pnces and discounts to those prices and that the CAT shoufld
have considered that concern It therefore renmutted that issue Lo the
CAT for further consideration While the CATs finding that Ofcoms
core competition concern was unfounded remains undisturbed the
WMO Obligations (as modified by the Order) continue in force pending
the CAT consideration of the furtherissue remitted te 1t However

the Group has agreed wath a major wholesale customer to terminate
the escrow agreement and release funds (n escrow to the parties

The Group has appled for permission to the Supreme Courtto

appeal the judgment of the Court of Appeal and adeasion on that
application 1s pending The CAT has wdicated that it 1s not muinded

to hear the remitted 1ssue until the outcorme of the Group s application
to the Supreme Court 15 known

Ofcom has, separately announced that it will revsew the WMO
Obligation in hght of sector developments since Ofcom s decision
to impose the WMO Obligation in 2010

BT also made an apphcation on 11 Apni 2014 to the CAT to vary the
Order such that the WMC Obligations would extend to distribution
on BT’s Internet Protocol Television ( IPTV") platforms "Cardinal®
and “BT YouView" That application which Sky opposed was heard
on 23 July 20014

The Group 15 currently unable to determine whether and towhat
extent, the appeals concerning the WMC Obligations and BT s
application to vary the Order would be successFul anditis not possible
for the Group to cenclude on the financial impact of the outcome

at thisstage However should the cutcome of these processes be
adverse to the Group this may have asignificant effect on the finanaial
posttion ar profitability of the Group
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Ofcom Competition Act Investigation

Following receipt of a complaint from BT on 14 June 2013 Qfcom
opened an investigation into whether the Group has abused a
domunant position contrary to Chapter |l of the Competition

Act 1998 and/or Article 102 of the Treaty on the Functioming of the EU
The complaint alleges that the Group 1s making wholesale supply

of Sky Sports 1and 2 to BT for 1ts YouView service conditional on BT
wholesaling BT Sports channels to the Group for retal on the Group s
sateliite platform and that constitutes an abuse of dominance

n 1s complaing, BT also made an application for intenm measures
against the Group, either to restram the Group from insistung on the
wholesale supply ef Sky Sports 1and Sky Sports 2 to BT's YouView
platform bemng conditional on BT wholesaling BT Sport channels

to the Group, or to mandate Sky to previde wholesale access to

BT to Sky Sports 1 and Sky Sports 2 on equivalent terms to those
which the Group has already agreed far other pfatforms Qfzom
refused BT's application for interim measures on 31 July 2013

Ofcorn s investigation of BT's complaint is continuing

The Group 1s currently unable to determine the outcome of Ofcoms
tnvestigation or 1ts financial Impact, hawever should the outcome
be adverse to the Group this may have a significant effect on the
financial pesition ar profitability of the Group

The strategic reporg was approved by the Board and signed
on 1ts behalf by the Chief Executive Officer
By order of the Board

Jeremy Darroch
Chief Executive Officer

25 luly 2014

Strategic report - Regulatory matters.

Forward looking statements

This document contams certain forward looking statements wath
respect to our financal condition results of operations and business
and aur strategy plans and objectives

These statements include vathout kmitation those that express
forecast, expectations and projections such as forecasts
expectations and projections with respect te new products and
services the potentral for growth of free-to-air and pay television
fixed-line telephony broadband and bandwidth requirements
adverusing growth, Direct-to-Home DTHT) customer growth
Over-the-top ("'OTT™) customer growth Multiscreen On Demand
NOW TV SkyGo Sky Go Extra Sky*+ Sky*+HD and other services
churn, revenue, profitability and margin grawth cash flow generation,
programming costs, sutyscnber managements and supply chain
costs administration costs and other costs marketing expenditure
capital expenditure programmes and proposals for returrung capital
to shareholders

Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in
such forward looking statements are reasonable these statements
(and all other fornard locking statements contained in this document)
are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks
uncertamnties and other factors some of which are beyond our control,
are cifficult to predict and could cause actual results to differ
matenally from those expressed orimpled or forecast in the forward
looking statements These factors include but are notlimited to
those risks that are hrghlighted in this documentin the section
entitled 'Pnnaipal nisks and uncertainties and information on the
sigmificant risks and uncertainties asscaated with our business

1s described therein

No part of these results constitutes, or shall be taken to constitute
aninvitation of nducement to invest in the Company or any other
entity and must not be relied upon In any way in connection wath any
investment decision All forward looking statements in this document
are based oninformation known to us on the date hereof Except as
required by law we undertake no obligatien publicly to update or
revise any forward looking statements whether as a result of new
information futire events or othermse
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Gowvernance - Board of Dinectors

Board of Directors

B Auvdit Comimuttee

A Bigger Picture Corwmittee

# Corporate Governangs & Nommations Committas
® Remuneratton Committee

t Commuttee Charman

T Nick Ferguson CBE(G5) ¢ @
Chairman

Nick was appomted to the Boardasa
Hon-Executve Dwectonin Juneg 2004 and
becarne Charman i Apal 2012, Nick has
previously served as Deputy Charman and
Senvor Indepandent Non-Executive Director

Experience

Nick brngs extensive leadership experience
from the private equity and investment
sactors Mick was to founder and
nstrumental in the development of Schroder
ventures (the privatae eguity group which
later became Permua) of whichhe sarved
as Chairman from 1984 £5 2001 He later
served as Charrman of SVG Capital pic,
apublie quotad private equity group

from Anril 2005 to Hovember 2012 Nick

has a long-standing mterest n tha arts

and philanthropy, and served as Charman
of the Courtauld Instituta of Ast for ten
years before retinng w july 2012

External Appointments

Mizkis Charman of Alta Advisers Limited
an nvestment adwisery firm, a position.

he has held since January 2007 Ha s also
Chalrrnan and Founder of the Kilfinan
Group which offers mentoring by Chairmen
and CEOs to Heads of Charties Nickisa
Fellow of Winchester Callege

2. Jeremy Darech {52)
Chief Executive Officer

Jererny joned Skyas Chief Financal
Officer and Executive Director In 2004
and was appointed to his currert role
m December 2007

Experience

Jeremy has extensive experience inthe
ratailing and fast-maving consumer goads
sectors Pnor to joning Sky Jeremywas
Greup Finarce Director of 0SG Intermatienal
ple (DSG). formerly Dixonys Graup pic. Prior to
DSG he spent 12 years at Procter & Gamble
In 2 varlety of roles in the UM and Europe

Jecemy s a former Non-Executve Drector
and Chairman of the Audit. Committee of
Marks and Spencer Group phc (2006 2013}

External appalntments

In Februasy 2014 Jeremy was apponted

Non Executne Curec.or of Burberry Group
plc and serves as amember of the Audit,
Rermureration and Nominalicns committees

Jeremy 15 a Business Member of the National
Centre for Uruversities and Buginess

3 Andrew Griffith (43)
Chief Finanaal Officer

Ardiew joned Skyin 1999 and held a
rumber of servar finance roles price to

s appointment as Chuef Fmancal Officer
and Executive Director s April 2008

In addityon ta hus role as CFO Andrew has
axecLtve responsibility for Sky’s commeraal
businesses, ndud ng advertising, data
services, Whh and SUDSCNIOLON SENNCeS

o commeraal customens

Experience

Prior to joinng Sky Arcirew was at.
Rathschild the investment banking
orgarusation, where ha providad finandial
and strategic advice to corporate
chents.n the technology media and
Leigcommurscations sector Andrewis a
quatified chartered accountant and has a
degrae 1n law from Notungham Unswersity

External appomtments

InMarch 2014 Andrew was apponted
Non-Executve Drector of Just Eatpke.
He ferves as Senior independent
Non-Executr/e Dwector Chasman

of the Audit Committae and member
of the Rermuneratton and Neminations
Committees

Andrew s amember of the 100 Group
of Finance Directors and Advrsory Boarg
of the Oxford Uruversity Centre for
Business Taxation

4 Chaze Carsy (60}
Non-Executive Director

Chase joned the Board as a Non-Executrve
Dvrector i tanyary 23

Expenence

As Presidert and Chief Operatng Officer
of 21st Century Fox Chase has extensiva
krowledge and experience of the
nternational media and pay TV sectors
Chase s former Presdent and Chief
Executive Officer of DIRECTV wherehe
led the operations and strategic drecuon
of DIRECTV Prior tojoining DIRECTY he
was Co-Chief Operating Officer of News
Corporation {subsequently renamed

2lst Century Fox) and Chairman ang Cruef

Executive Officer of the Fox Telawision Group

External appolntments

I addibon ta hus rote at 215t Century Fox,
Chase 15 a member of the Supervisory Board
of Sky Deutschtand A G
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5 TracyClarke (47) A ® |

Independent Non-Executive Director
Tracy jomed the Board as a Non-Executive
Drector in Juna 2012

Experience

Tracy brings a wide range of operational
experence and oversight for corporate
affars brand and markeung mada
refations, human rescurces legal and
compliance matters o her role at Standard
Chartered Bank Tracyhasservedasa
Non-Executive Daractor of SC First Bank

n Korea (2005-2007) and Non-Exacutive
Drrector of Eaga plc (2007-2011), whera
she chasred the Remuneration Committee.

External Appointments

Tracyis armember of (he eracutive
rnanagement group and s Director for
Comphance, People and Communicauons at
Starclard Chartered Bank. Tracy IS a fustea
of WORKing for YOUER, & chanty workng
with business Lo create fob Dpporurities
for voung peoole Tracy 1s a member of the
Institute of Fnancial Services and a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Persannel and
Development,

6 David F DeVoa (67)
Non-Executive Director

Gavid joed the Board as aNon Exacutive
[hractor in Detember 1954

Experience

Dawnd bnngs awealth of executive and
finance expenenca from the media sector
David served as Chief Financial Officer of
News Corparation (subsequently renamed
21st Cantury Fox) for over 20 years and
during that tine was appornted Serugr
Executve Vice President unol he stepped
dawn fram bothrates m June 2013 David
15 a former director of Gemnstar TV Guide
(2001-2008) and DracTV (2003 2008}

External Apporntments
Dawid 1 Serwor Adviser 1o the Board of
21st Century Fox

7 Martin Gilbert (S9) W
Independent Non-Exetutive Director

Mar tinwas appointed to the Board asa
NorrE xecutive Di g<tor in Novembar 2011

Expenence

Marun has extersive investment, finance
and ececutive laattership expenence theough
his rote as co-foundar and Chief Executive
Officer of Abardann Assat Managamant MLC
Marunhas served as Chairman of Firstgroup
pic Chaucer PLC ang was Non Execulive
Diractor of Dynrnack International Limited

a mokbila messagmg ard data appheations
Services provider

Externaj Appointments

In additien whs role as Cheef Executive
Officer of Aberdeen Asset Management PLC,
Martinis a member of the Scottish
Gevernment & Fnanaial Services

Adwvisory Board

8 Adina Grate (SH)E @
Independent Non-Executive Director

Adine was apponted to the Boarc as
2 Nor-Executve Drector in July 2013

Experience

Adine brings aweatth of axesutve finarke
and nvestment management and
commurications technology expenence,
having operated at the top tiers of Nordic
based internaucnal business for the past
two decades Farmerly Executive Vice
President and Managing Dwector of lovestor
AB owner of arumber of Nordic based
internatwonal companses

External Appointments

Chatrpersan of HASDAQ OMY & mdizh
Listing Corfnrmittee and Vice Chawrper son

of AP7 a Swedish pension and savings asset
management comparty Adine s a Director
of Threea (Standnawa), amobile
telecommunications arvd broadband
operator SOBIAB an international speciaity
healtheare compary’ Sampo OY aleading
finanaal 8nd insurance Institution and
Swedawa AD 80 arport operator Adinels
Chairpersanof non profit organtsations
Friends of a Design museum and the
Swadish Dance Musaum,

9 Andy Higginson(57T) Mt ¢ {
Seruor independant Non-Executive
Director

Andy was apponted to the Board as
Non-Executrve Diecior m September
2004 and has been Senior Independent
Director since Apnl 2012

Experience

Ardly brings sigréficant commercial retal and
leadership eapenence to the Board Andy

15 former Director of Tesco pk having spent
15 years at the company first as Finance

and Strategy Drester and latterly as

Cheef Executive of their Retailing Sarvices
business Hisearly carear was with

Urilever Guinnass Laura Ashley and

the Burton Group.

External Appomntments

Andvis Chairman of Poundiand Group pic
and t Brown piC and s a Mon Exacuitive
Duracter of Wodlworth SA and the Rugby
Football Uniay Ha1s amember of the
100 Group of Finarce Directors

10 DaveLewis (49) W A o
independent Non-Executive Director

Dave was apponted 1o the Board as a
Moy Executave Director In Novembear 2012

Experence

Dave s anexpetienced executive with strong
operatonal expertisa 2nd has held avarety
of leadership roles at Urilever in Burope
South America and Asia, Including President
for the Americas and Chairman of Unifever
UK and Ireland

External Appantments

Dave s President, Parsonal Care for Unilever
ple, whare he also sits on the Unilgver
Leadershup Executive

11 Jamas Murdoch (#1) 4 t
Non-Executive Director

lameswas apponted to the Board as a
Nen Executive Drector inFebruary 2003
He served as Chief Executivg Officer and
Executive Directer (2003-200N and as
Chaw man from 2007 uritil Apri 2012

Experience

James s Co-Chief Operating Officer

at 215t Century Fox and brings significant
media sector knowledge and expenence
Batweaen 2000 and 2003 he was Charman
and CEO of Star Group Limited and held
Non Executive Drectar roles at
GlaxoSmithKline ple (009 2012)

and Sothety's (2010-2012)

External Appaintments

AsCo Chuef Operating Officer James s
amember of the Board of Directors and
Executive Committee at 21st Century Fo
He also serves asa member of the Board

of News Corporation arxd 15 a Non-Executive
Diractor of Yankee Global Enterpnses.

12 Matthieu Pigasse (46) N
Independent Non-Executive Director

Matthieu was eppointed to the Board as
MNon-Exgcutive Director in November 2011

Experience

Matthweu 1s Deputy CEO of Lazardin France
and Vice Charman of Lazard In Bwrope He
has atso served as cnvhan adminstrator of
the French Minstry of Economy and Finance

External Appaintnents

Inadditicnto s rele at Lazard Matthueu
has a number of interasts vimedia and
pubkshing, notably Le Morkte and tha
Huffington Post (France). Mattheurs a
Board member of Group Lucien Barnére SAS
anoperator of uxury hotels and restaurants
Denchebourg, arecycling and maintenance
services business and Relax News a French
news agency dedrated ta laisure news.

Governance - Board of Directors

13 Danny Rimer (43)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dariry was appointed to the Board a5
aNon-Executve Director iy Apnl 2008

Expenence

Danny bnngs sigruficant intermational
rvestment, finance expenence and
knowledge of ntemet imfrastructure
softwars and services technology
communcations and e-commerce
busnesses throughibs roke as Genaral
Partner of the ventura capital firm Index
Ventures Managemant LLP (Index Ventures)
Prigr tojorrung Index Ventures he wasa
GeneralPartner of The Barksdale Group.

External Appointments

Daney serves ona number of boards
inchuding Etsy Inc. Frst Dibs inc, Aspboard
Inc_FONWireless Limited MNasty Gal Inc,
RightScale Inc. and Viagogo.

14 Arthur Sicking (75) ¢
HNon Exacutive Director

Arthur was appainted to the Board asa
Mon Executve Diractor n Movember 1991

Expenence

Arthur brings over 30 years experience
ganed through exacutive and legal counse
roles at News Corporgtion (subsaquantly
renarnad 218t Century Fax) Arthur s a tughiy
experienced legal practitioner and roember
af the Bar of the State of New York since 1962,

External Appointments

Seruor Adwisor ta the Charman since January
2008 and Director Emeritus since Octeher
202 of 215t Century Fox,

15 Andy Sukawaty (59)
Independent Non-Executive Director
Andy was appointad Lo the Board as
a Non-Executive Director in june 2012

Experience

Andy 15 Exequtive Charman of Imarsat plc
global mobie satelite commumications
provider and has préviously held a number
of senior management positions i the
telacommunications ndustry incduding
{hief Executive and President of Sprint PCS
and Chief Executive of NTL (UK) and roles at
s west and AT&T

Extarnal Appomntments.

tn addition to hus role at Irmarsat ple, andy s
Nen-Executive Chairman of the Superviscry
Boaord of Ziggo NV.a Dutch national media
and COMMUNCaTINS comparty

Brtush Sky Broadcasting Group plc 47
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GOvernance - Corporate governance report

Corporate governance report

Chairman’s overview

©On behalf of the Board 1t gives me great pleasure tontroduce this
year s corporate governance report

As a Board we are the stewards of the Company It1s aur responsibility
to ensure that the Company’s strategy s aligned to the interests of
ourtnvestors and takes account of the interests of all the Company s
stakehalders As individuals we belleve that effective corporate
governance Is based on honesty integrity and transparency, and

can only be fully realised within an environment of epen robust

and effective debate This 1s the Board culture we foster at Sky

and it 1s my personal respansibility as Charrman to ensure that

we continue to ive this culture and promote it wathin our business

Following last year s external Board evaluation and in ine with
corporate governance best practice dunng the year aninternal

Board evaluauion was undertaken The feedback from the evaluation
confirmed that the Board and each of its Committees continue to
operate effectively and that each Director continues to make an
effective contribution and retains a strong commutment to their

role The resulung development themes that arose from the evaluation
are discussed on page 57

The Board has established arrangements to evaluate whether the
information in the annual report I1s farr balanced and understandable
Further detasl of these arrangements ¢can be found on page 55 As a
result of this the Board considers the annual report and accounts
taken as a whole 1s farr balanced and understandable and prowides
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
performance business model and strategy

Dunng the year we have continued our work In promoting greater
and more effective engagement with our shareholders Andy
Higgnson our Executive Directors and | have met with institutional
imvestors and analysts Along wath Tracy Clarke Chairman of

the Remuneration Committee we will continue to engage with
shareholders over the course of the coming financial year

Nick Ferguson
Chairman

Compliance with the UK corporate governance code
The UK Corparate Governance Code as revised in September 2012

(the "Code®) provides the standard for corporate governance in the UK
The Finanaial Conduct Authonty reguires listed companies to disclose
whether they have comphed wth the provistons of the Code
throughout the finanaal year

The Board considers that the Company has fully compled with the
provisions and applied the mam pnnaples of the Code for the whole
of the year ended 30 June 2014 This section of the Annual Report
along with the Directors remuneration repart on pages 53 te 76 the
Directors report and other statutory disclosures on pages 77 to 80
provide detaills of how the Company has apphed the main principles

Leadership
Role of the Board and its Members

The Baard has collectve responsitility for the management, directicn
and performance of the Company and prowides leadershipwithina
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables nsk to be
appropnately assessed and managed The Board sets the strategic
direction ensunng that the necessary resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives and deliver sustainable performance

The Board takes a long-term outtook and sees itself as responsible to
awide range of stakeholders whilst pursuing its objectives in a manner
consistent withits statutory duties for the benefit of the Company's
members as a whole

The Directors of the Board are selected on the critena of proven skill
and ability in their particular fleld of endeavour and a diversity of
outlook and experence which directly benefits the operation of the
Board as the custodian of the business A full biography of each Board
member 1s provided on pages 46 and 47

Rotes and responsibilities

The roles of the Chairman and CEQ are separate and have been so
since the Company’s shares were admitted to sting in 1994 The rofes
and expectations of each Director are clearly defined and recorded
within their letters of appointment or sernce contracts The roles
and responsibilites of the Board members are explained below

The Chairman

Nick Ferguson Is respenssble for leadership of the Board ensuring
1ts effectrveness on all aspects of 1ts role and settingits agenda

The Chairman 1s responsibie for creating an environment for open
robust and effective debate This includes ensuning, via the Company
Secretary, that the Directors receive accurate umely and clear
information

The Chief Executive Officer

Jeremy Darroch s responsible and accountabie to the Board for

the management and operation of the Company advanang long-term
shareholder value supported by the management team He s also
involved In the management of the sodal and emvaronmental
responsibilities of the Company

Senior Independent Non-Executrve Director (SID)

The role of the SID currently carned out by Andy Higginson, 1s
responsible for providing support and counterbalance totherole
of the Charrman and provides an additional peint of contact

for shareholders

Non-Executive Directors

Chase Carey Tracy Qlark David DeVoe Martin Gilbert, Adine Grate
Andy Higginson, Dave Lewns James Murdoch Matthieu Pigasse
Danny fimer Arthur Sislkund and Andy Sukawaty collectively are
responsible for constructively challenging the Executive Directors
and overseeing the delivery of the Company’s strategy within the
nsk and control framework
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Company Secretary

Chris Taylor has been Company Secretary since November 2012 and s
responsible for the following in respect of effective Board operation

-

To ensure good information: flows wathin the Board and its
committees, between senior management and Non-Executve
Directors,

To faciitate Director induction and assisting with professional
development and

.

To advise the Board through the Chalrman of all corporate
governance obligations and developmentsin best practice

All Drrectors have ageess to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who advises on corporate governance matters, Board
procedures and other relevant rules and regulattons In addition
Directors have the right to seek independent professional adwice
at the Company’s expense

Environment supportive of challenge

The effactive operation of the Board 15 dependent on the inherent
checks and balances withint the vanious Board roles. As highly qualfied
and successful Individuals in their respective fields of endeavour all
Nen-Executive Directors influence debate and cantribute to decisions
relating to the strategy of the Company its performance and its
Impact on stakeholders The Non-Executive Directors are evaluated
and judged on the quality and content of their contributions to Board
debate and are expected to offer alternative viewpaints and challenge
perceptions and decisions as appropriate

Board Agenda

In addition o its reserved and standing matters the Board also
considered and receved a number of updates and presentations,
gwing Directors a further opportunity 1o explore and analyse
topics such as

+ The Company s operations and five year financial plans

* The general market and economic cutlook

= The compettive landscape opportunities and market trends

+ Growth of existing business activities

« Existing and new products services and technological developments

To maintain an appropriate levei of controf over the day-to-day affairs
of the Company the Board has identified certain matters that anly ¢
can approve and these matters are contained within the Company’s
“Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board” which can be found at
skycomicorporate

Board delegation

The Board has delegated speafic responsibilities to Board committees
notabiy the Audit Remuneration Corporate Governance & Nomnatons
and the Bigger Pictura cormmittees Each committee s terms of
reference can be found on the Company’s corporate website

Governance - Corporale govermance report.

The Audit Committee has responsibiity for oversight of corporate
reporting nskmanagement and the Company's relationship with

Its auditor Significant nisks to the business are kept under review
and appropriate material controls are sanctioned and employed

as appropnate The Company's prinapal risks and examples of how
we mitigate those nsks are detaled on pages 40 to 43 For further
details, the Audit Committee Report can be found on pages53to 55

The Remuneration Committee Is responsible for setting the
Remuneration policy for the Board and ensures that no Directoris
involved In deasions affecting therr own remuneration The Directors
Remuneration Report can be found on pages59to 76

The Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee is responsthle
for oversight of the structure size composition and succession
planring of the Board and its committees and overall comphiance
with cerporate governance standards The Report of the Corporate
Governance & Nominations Committee can be found on pages

56 and 57

The Bigger Picture Committee has responsibility for oversight of the sooal
environmental and ethical impacts of the Company’s activities The report
of the Bigger Picture Committee can be found on pages 57 to 58

The minutes of committee meetings are made avallable to all Board
Directors on a imely basis, At each Board meeting the chairman

of each committee provides the Board with & brief update of the
waork currently being carned out by the committee they chair Other
sub-committees and steering groups provide addritional resource
and support to the Board Commuttees or are formed for specific
tagks Acommittee of semor management generally meetson a
weekly basis to allow prompt discussion of relevant business 1ssues
It13 chaired by the CEQ and comprises the CFO and other sentor
executives fromwithin the Group

Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc

49

woda)nBajens

[auLUBAOY

SlUdwaIels |eiDuBuIg

UGIIRULIGHN J3PI0YBIRYS




Annual Report 2014

Governance - Corparate governanca report

Corporate governance report

(continued)

Board and Committee attendance

Attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year 1s set out In the table below The table shows the number of meetings each Director

was eligible to attend

Corporate
Governance &
Notes Board Audit  Remuneration  Nomnations  Bigger Picture
Number of meetings held in year 7 [ 3 3 2
Executive Directors
Jererny Darroch, CEQ yird
Andrew Gnffith, CFO 7
Non-Executive Directors
Chase Carey 1 67
Tracy Clarke N7 5/5 22
David DeVoe 7
Nick Fergusen 7 55 33
Martin Gilbert 2 Bf7 5/6 4/5
Adine Grate 3 w7 5/5
Andy Hgginson 4 7 5/6 213
Dave Lews 77 6/6 3/3 22
James Murdoch r 212
Mmatthieu Pigasse 5 6/7 4/6
Danny Rimer 6 617 272 1H
Arthur Siskind 7 ElE)
Andy Sukawaty 77 55
Notes

1 Chase Caray was unable to attend a Board meeting due to conflicting business arrangements

2 Martin Gdbert was unable to attend Board and Cormrittes meetangs due to pnor Aberdeen Asset Management engagements

3 Adine Grate was appointed to the Audit committee on26 July 2013 and was not eligible to attend the meeting on the pnor day

4 Andy Higginson was unable ta attend Committee mastings due to conflicting Rugby Football Urkon board meeungs

§ Matthreu Pigasse was unabia to attend Board and Committes meetiigs and the Annual General Meating due tooverseas travel on Lazard business and personalreasons

6 Danny Rener was unable to attend a Board meeting due to prior Index Ventures engagements Banny stepped down as Chairrnan and member of the Remuneration Committee
and as member of the Corporate Gavernance & Nominations Committee following the Company's AGM on 22 November 2013

Effectiveness
Board composition and independence

The Board currently comprises 15 Directors made up of two Executive
Directors and 13 Non-Executive Directors At least half of the Board
of Directors are determined 1o be independent by the Board

n accordance with provision 81 2 of the Code On appointment,

the Charman met the iIndependence ¢riteria set out In provision
B11ofthe Code Biographies of each of the Directors are set out

on pages 4Gto 47

Chase Carey Dawvid Devoe James Murdoch and Arthur Siskind represent
the Company s largest shareholder 2ist Century Fox and as such are
not considerad to be independent within the meaning of the Code
Each of these Directors has extensive media and pay TV expenence
and makes significant centribution to Board discussion

The Independent Non-Executive Directors bring awde range of
expenence and expertise to the Group s affairs and carry significant
weight in the Board's decisions The Independent Non-Executive
Directors are encouraged to challenge management and help
develop proposals on strategy Time s regularly put aside at

Board meetings to discuss the strategic direction of the Company

Pror to appontment and on an annual basts each Board member
receves and completes a questionnare to determine factors that
may affect independence according to best practice statements
contained within the Code The responses to the questionnaire
assist the Board in ascertaining whether a Director 1s independent
in character and judgement and whether there are relationships

or circumstances which are ikely to affect, or could appear to affecy,
the Director's judgement

Board Composition
. M Charman
B Executive Directors
M Independent Non-Executive Directars
M CGther Non-Executive Directors
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Appointments to the Board diversity and succession planning

The Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee keeps the
Board s balance of skills knowledge experence and the length of
service of Individuals under constant review In respect of succession
planning and supplementing the skill set of the Board thereis an
established procedure for the appointment of Directors In bnef the
Committee identifies the set of skills and experience required and
with the assistance of external search agenaes selects indviduals

to take Board posittons on revtew of thewr Indnnduat menits regardless
of gender race religion, age or disability Further information an the
work of the Committee dunng the year can be found on pages 56 to 57

The Board has published a statement of s mtenuon to N ease
female representation on the Board which can be found on the
Company’s corporate website As required by company legisiation,
a table on page 78 illustrates gender diversity amongst the Board

Diversity ratio of Directors appointed in last 2 years

L]

Female
Length of time served on the Board (excluding Executive Directors)

ala's alaly MM mmmm

0-5 years 54% 5+ years 46%

Industry/background expenence'

industry related 9
(nternatianal 11 MG S
Finance/investment 7 NI NI AW I Al
Technology/innovation 4 NN BTN
Regulatory 5 NN N WK
Executive 7 NSRS W N A -

1 Dwrectors may fall into one or mere categories

Directors reappeintmant

In respect of Code provision B 71 all Executive and Non-Executrve
Directors will retire and offer themselves for reappomntment at the
Company s 2014 AGM with the exception of Andy Higginson who
will be retiring from the Boand

External directorships

Any external appointments for the Executive Directors are considered
by the Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee Executive
Directors are not allowed to take on the chairmanshp of a FTSE 100
company, but are allowed to take up one external non-executive

FTSE 100 appointment and retain any payments in respect of such
appointments

Governance - Corporate governance report

Jeremy Darroch was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Burberry Group plc on 5 February 2014 and1s a member
of the audit nominations and remuneration committees

Andrew Gnffith was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Just Eat plg on 12 March 2014 Andrew serves as senior
independent directar charrman of the audit committee andis a
member of the remuneration and nominations committees Detals

of pay i respect of these appointments can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Reporton page 66

Time commitment

Al Non-Executive Directors are advised of the likety time commitments
required on induction, and are expected to devote sufficient time

for the effective discharge of their functions The Company provides
Non-Executive Directors with appropnate support and facilities

for consideration of the Company s strategy and performance, and

a dialogue with the Chairman is strongly encauraged 50 that any
Issues regarding confhicting commitments and time pressures £an

be addressed appropnately

Induction and traming

All new Directors recesve an induction tallored to therr indvidual
requirements The induction process invelves meeting wath alt of the
Company s Executive Directors and Seruor Executives This facilitates
their understanding of the Group and the key drivers of the business s
performance During the year Duectors have received presentations
from a number of areas of the business including Customer Group
Sky Media Sky Sports and Strategic Planning Group The Charrman
meats with the Directors throughout the year to review and agree
thewr iIndividual traiming and developmental neads

Dunng the year tha Company Secretany i consuitation vath the
Chairman and CEQ, faciitated Adine Grate s induction programme
The elements of the programme are detalled below’

September November Febryary April
2013 2013 204 2014
Meetings Customer Product Accompaniad
with Semor contact demonstrabons | & Sky engineer
Executives centre visit oncustomer
Sky Newsand isits.
Sky Studio
WSS

In addition to this, vartous presentations from prior Board meetings
were made avalable to Adine in order to rmprove her understanding of
the Company arxf the competitive and regulatory landscape in which it
cperates In view of her position as a member of the Audit Compmittes
Adine met with the external audizors as part of her induction

Board evaluation

Inine with corporate governance best practice and following the
external Board evaluation carriad out by Alice Perkins of JCA Group
last year, an internal Board evaluation was undertaken dunng the year

The process was faclitated by Andy Higginson our Senior Independent
Director and Chairman of the Corporate Governance & Nominations
Comymttee Further detailof the evaluation process can be found in the
Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee report on page 57

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc
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Corporate governance report

{continued)

Information provided to the Directors

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring good mformation
Flows wathin the Board and its committees and between senior
management and Non-Executive Directors For each Board and
Committee meeting. Directors are prowded with a talored Board pack
at least one week pnor to the meeting To improve the debivery and
secunty of Board papers, the Company has adopted an electronic
system allowing the Board to easily access information irrespective of
gecgraphic location Directors regularly receive addstional information
from the Company between Board meetings including a dally press
summary and a monthly Group performance update Where a Oirector
was unable to attend a meeting, they were provided with all the papers
and information refating to that meeting and were able to discuss
18sues anising directly wath the Chairman and CEQ

Canflicts of interest

Under UK company law all Directors must seek authorisation before
taking up any position with another comparny that conflicts ormay
possibly conflict, with the Company’s interests The Company’s Articles
of Association centan provisions to allow the Directers to authonse
situations of potential conflicts of interest so that a Director is ot
inpreach of fus duty under company law

All existing external appointments for each Director have been
authonsed by the Board and each authonsationis set outina
Conflicts Register Directors are required to notify the Board of
potential conflicts so that they ¢can be considered, and f appropnate
authonsed by the Board In addition, the Corporate Governance

& Nominations Committee conducts an annual review of Directors
conflicts and reports its findings to the Board Tha Corporate
Governance & Nominations Committee reviewed the Board s conflicts
during the financial year and concuded that conflicts had been
appropnately authonsed and that the process for authonsation

1s cperating effectively The Corporate Governance & Nominations
Committes and the Board wall continue te menitor and review potential
conflicts of interest on a regular basis

Directors’ and Officers [nsurance and Indemnity

The Company recognises that all Directors are equally and coltectively
accountable under the law for the proper stewardship of the
Company’s affarrs The Company mantains a Directors and Officers’
Iabxlity insurance pohicy Additienally the Company s Articles of
Association aliow the Company to Indemnify the Directors and deeds
of Indemnity have been issued to all Directors of the Company

Relations with shareholders
Shareholder communications

Presentabions and webcasts on the development of the business

are avallable t¢ all sharehotders on the Company s corporate

website The Company alse uses emanl alerts and actively gromotes
downloading of all reports enhancing speed and equality of
shareholder communication The Company has taken full advantage
of the provisions within the Companies Act 2006 allowing the website
to be used as the primary means of communication with sharehoiders
where they have not requested hard copy documentation The
shareholder nformation section on page 141 contains further detads
on electronic shareholder commumications together with more general
Information of interest to shareholders which ts also included on the
Company s corperate website

Shareholder engagement

The Company 1s committed te maintaining and improving dialogue with
shareholders in order to ensure that the objectives of both the Group
and the shareholders are understood Aprogramme of meetings with
institutional shareholders, fund managers and analysts takes place
each year and the Chairman CEQ CFO and Andy Higginson have
attended meetings with investors as appropnate The Company also
makes presentations to analysts and investors arcund the time of
the half-year and full-year results announcement conference calls
are held with analysts and investors following the announcement

of the first quarter and third quarter results, and presentations are
made dunng the year to many existing or petential shareholders at
investar conferences The Company hosts an annual meetng for its
major shareholders to discuss remuneration policy and this year

as a result of pew remuneration regulations, the Company invited

its major shargholders to comment on the proposed changes toits
remuneration pohcy

The Annual General Meeting

The Board views the AGM as an opportunity to communicate with
private investors and sets aside time at the meeting for shareholders
to ask questions At the AGM the Charman provides a bnef summary
of the Company s activities for the previous year Allresolutions at
the 2013 AGM were voted by way of a poll This follows best practice
and allows the Company to count all votes rather than just these of
shareholders attending the meeting. As recommended by the Code
all resolutions were voted separately and the final voting results,
which indluded all votes cast for against and those withheld together
wath all prosaes lodged prior to the meeting, were released to the
London Stock Exchange as soon as pracucable after the meeting

The announcement was also made avalable on the Company s
corporate website As in previous years the proxy form and the
announcement of the voting results made it clear that a "vote withheld”
1S not avote in law and will not be counted in the calculation of the
proportion of the votes for or against the resolution
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Report of the Audit Committee

Chalrman's aveniew

We have had a busy year as
we continued to focus on
the financial performance
of the Company, internal
audit, external audit, risk
management, comphance
and financial governance

We were pleased to welcome Adine Grate as a member of the
Commuttee (n July 2013 Adine has extensive finanaal and (nvestment
management experience and we value her contribution at Committee
meetings We have continued o receive a number of presentations
from the management of different business areas, which this year
included Sky Bet, Product Design and Development and the Sales and
Marketing Groups to improve our understanding of their cperations
the risks they face and how those risks are managed

We reviewed the integrauon approach of the O2 consumer broadband
and fixed-line telephony business both at the start and fallewing

1ts completion, and received a range of presentations relating

to data governance health and safety fraud and cyber secunty

We also received regular reports from the internal audit function

and external auditor

We have considered the processes underpinning the production
and approval of this year's annual report to enable the Board to
confirm that the annual repert taken as a whele s far balanced

and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company s performance business model
and strategy and a description of how we approachad this can

be found below

There were six meetings dunng the year and after each Committee
meeting | gave an oral update to the Board on the key 1ssues discussed
during our meetmgs The Committee also has pnvate meetings with
the Company s external audigors throughout the year

You can find additional nformation of how we have caried cut

our rale and responsibilities within the remamder of this report.
The Committee s terms of reference are available on the Company s
corporate website

Martin Glibert
Committee Chairman

Committee composition

Martin Gilbert (Chairman)

Adine Grate (appointed on 26 July 2013)
Andy Higgnson

Dave Lawis

Matthieu Prgasse

The Committee members have considerable financial and business
experience and the Board considers that the membership as awhole
has sufficient recent and relevant financial experence to discharge
its responsibiittes In addition the Board has determined that each
member of the Comrittee has sufficient accounting or related
financial management expertise In ine with the Code

Governance - Corporate governance report

Attendance at Commtee Meetings

Dawvid DeVoe and Arthur Siskind have a standing mvitation to attend
meetings However therr attendance at these meeungs is as observers
only and in anon-vounhg capaaty The CFO other business and finance
executives and representatives from the external auditor Delortte LLP
and thewtemal audit department attend meetngs at the request

of the Committee The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to

the Committee

Audit Committee Agenda
Focus for the Commuttee this year has centred on the following iters

* Review and recommendation to the Board of the quarterly interm
and full-year financial statements

* The reviewand recommendation to the Board of the dvidend policy
and proposaed payments

Liquidity and going concern review

Review and recommendation of the budget to the Board

Annual reporung - due dilgence procedures and corporate
governance updates

The external auditors assessment of the effectiveness of the
external audit process, terms of engagement and scope of audit

Auditar independence and the policy on the provision of non-audit
services by the external auditor

Audit plans and findings of external and internal audits

Quarterly reports from the treasury function on the funding,
liquidity going concern and operational capabilities of the Group
and compliance with treasury pelices

Quarterly updates fromnternal audit on the status of Senior
Accounting Officer (SAQ) certification work to ensure SAQ
comptiance,

-

Post-acqusition review of the 02 consumer broadband and
fixed-lLine telephone business

Quarterly reports of afl related party transactions dunng the year
in excess of E100 000 In value

.

Review and oversight of the Group nisk register nsk methodalogy
and risk management systems and processes

.

Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group s internal
audit function and centrols

Taxation security fraud whistleblowing cyber secunty health
and safety data protection and internal audit updates
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Govemance - Comparate governance report

Corporate governance report

(continued)

Significant accounting 1ssues

when considering the annual financial statements the Commsttee
reviewed the significant areas of judgement and the Groups entical
accounting policies as set out on pages 90 and 96 wath particular
focus on the following

Retall subscription revenue

The majonty of the Groups revenues denve from retail subscriptien
packages induding hardware supphed to customers The Group
applies jJudgement in determirung the acceunung allocation of
payments recerved from customers to different elements of the
bundled package taking into consideration the timing and relative
value attnbuted to each element Dunng the year the Committee
recerved a performance report from the CFO at each committee
meeting that included a review of revenues recognised in the pened

In addition the Committee received presentations on the Group's
sales and marketing operations and on new revenue streams
including NOW TV The Committee considered management s
policy and presentations, and considered the views of the external
auditor and 1s satisfied that the pehicies have been applied
consistently and appropnately

General entertainment programming Inventory

The Committee reviews the policy for the recogniion of content costs
and seeks assurances from management and takes into account the
views of the external auditor that the policy 1s appropnate and has
been appled consistently The method for recognising genera!
entertainment programming expense requires estimation and
Judgement. tn the year the Committee received a presentation from
management that reviewed the accounting methodology for the
different range of programme genres by comparing viewing profiles
and industry benchmarks to ensure that the expense recognised i1s
consistent with the associated relative value recewed from broadcast
The Commuttes 15 satisfied that the pohicies have been appled
consistently are appropniate and are aligned to industry practice

Capitahsation of ntangble and tangible non-current assets

The Commistes considerad the Group s polices and sought assurances
from management that the Group s project accounting controls are
operating as ntended and that spend capitalised as Property Plant
and Equipment and Intangible assets meets the relevant accounting
requirements Dunng the year tha Committee also receved
presentations on the Group s principal project functions including
product design and development and technology The Commitiee
also considered the report from the external auditar The Committee
15 satisfied that the Group has followed accounting standards
regarding the capitalisation of project expenditure

Internal contrel and risk management

The Board Is responsible for establishing and maintaining the Group's
systems of internal control and risk management and for reviewing
their effectiveness These systems are designed to manage and
where possible ehminate, the nisk of failure to achieve business
objectives and to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss There 15 an ongoing process
for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant nisks faced
by the Group In accordance with the revised gusdance on internal
control issued by the Finanaal Reportng Counalin October 2005
During the penod under review no significant failings or weaknesses
were identfied

The Committee on behatf of the Board, tansiders the effectiveness

of the operation of the Groups systems of internal control and risk
management during the year and this review has been carried out for
the year ended 30 June 2014 and up to the date on which the financal
statements were approved This review relates to the Company and
Its subsidiaries and does not extend to joint ventures The Committee
meets on at least a quarterly basis with the Group s Director Audit,
Risk Management and Complance and the externaf auditors

There 15 a comprehensive budgeting and forecasting process and the
annual budget, which 1s regularly reviewed and updated 15 approved
by the Board Performance 1s monitored against budget through
weekly and monthly reporting cycles During the finanaal year under
review monthly reports on performance were provided to the Beard
and the Group reports to shareholders each Guarter

In respect of Group financiat reporting, the Group Finance team is
responsible for preparing the Group financial statements and there
are well estabhshed controls over the financial reporung process
These are also documented in line with the requirements of the Senior
Accounting Officer (SAC) legislation and the contrels are reviewed and
signed off to confirm their continuous operation by the control owners
twice ayear and are iIndependently tested by the internal audit team
The results of the SAD testing are reported 1o the Commitiee ona
guarterly basts

Changes in internal controls

No change In the Group s internal control over financral reporting
has occurred durtng the year ended 30 June 2014 that has matenally
affected oris reasonably likely to matenally affect, the Groups
internal control ever financial reportng,

Risk registers

There are nisk registers which identify the nsks faced by the Group
and these are consolidated into a Group Risk Register The risk register
framework 1s based on methodology toidentify the nsk based on
impact and likelhood The risk 1S assessed quantified and measured
which enables discussions on risk appetite The registers detail the
cantrols that manage the nsks and where necessary the action plans
to mitigate the risk exposure

The business develops the action plans and the internal audit team
monitors their mplementation The Committee formally reviews the
Group Risk Register twice a year and there 1s a roling programme
where senior execdtives from the business present their nsk
management plans

The internal audit team provides objective assurance as {o the
effectiveness of the Group s systems of internal control and nsk
management to the Groups operaung management

The Group s principal risks and uncertanties are detaled on pages
40043
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Fair balanced and understandable assessment

To enable the Board to confirm that the Annual Repert Ltaken as a
whote s fair balanced and understandable aprocess was approved
by the Committee which involved estabhishing a steering committee
consisting of stakeholders from Corporate Affairs Investor Relations,
Group Finance, the Bigger Picture Company Secretanat and Legal
which had eversight of the production of the Annual Report
Camprehensive due diligence procedures and guidance were
developed to assist with the review process and requirements of

the Code The Disclasure Committee maintained oversight of the
review process and submitted certification to the Committee pnor to
approval that the necessary compliance reqgurements had been met

Disclosure controls and procedures

The Company mamtains disclosure controls procedures and systems
that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
as part of the Company’s UK listing obligations 1s accumulated and
communicated to management including the CEQ and CFO as
appropriate to allow imely decisions regarding required disclosures

Auditor ndependence

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Committee has reviewed audit
independence and scope of non-audit services and independence
safeguards with Deloitte LLP ("Defoitte™) the Group s external auditor
As part of the review the Audit Committee has receved and reviewed
confirmation.n writing that In Deloitte s professtonal judgement
Deloitte 1s independent within the meaning of all UK regulatory

and professional requirements and the objectmty of the audit
engagement partner and audit staff 1s not impared

The Committee was satisfied throughout the year that the obyjectivity
and independence of Deloitte was not in any way impaired by either
the nature of the nen-audit related services undertaken during the
year the level of nen-audit fees charged or any other facts or
arcumstances Audit and non-audit seraces prosded dunng the year
were approved by the Committee An analysis of auditor remuneration
1s disclosed in note § to the consolidated financial statements

Audit and non-audit services

The Group has a policy on the provision by the external auditor of audit
and non-audit services which categorises such services between

Those services which the auditor 1s not permitted to provide

Those services which are acceptable for the auditor to prowide and
the provision of which has been pre-approved by the Committee
and

Those services for which the speaific approval of the Committee
1s required before the auditor 1s permitted to provide the service

The policy defines the types of services Falling under each category
and sets out the cniteria which need to be met and the internal
approval mechanisms required to be completed prior to any
engagement. An analysis of all services provided by the externat
auditor 15 reviewed by the Cornmittee on a quarterly basis

mmmme-mwategwmmmpu—t

During the year the following examples were deemed to be
pre-approved in accordance with the pohgy

« Comfort procedures in relation to debt programme update

* Assurance of certain KPis for the Bigger Picture Review

Effectrveness of external auditor process

Punng the year the effectiveness of the audit process was assessed
by the Committee Group Finance team and other key internal
stakeholders in the form of a qguesticnnaire The areas under

review were

Quality resaurces and scope of planning of the audit

Objectivity independence and transparency of the audit

Identification of key accounting judgements significant aucht
and accounting 1ssues

Level of technical knowledge and professional sceptictsm

Understanding Sky as a business, its values and culture and
challenges it faces

Quality of reporting and communications to the Audit Committee

The responses to the assessment were discussed which confirmed
that Deloitte are performing as expected Deloitte continue to
demonsirate strengths in the majority of these areas

There are no stgnificant findings from the assessment and Defoitte
continue to carmy out an effective and robust external audit

Audit partner rotation

The external auditor is required to rotate the audit partner responsible
for the engagement every five years The current lead partner started
his term of office In relation to the 2010411 financial year As the audit
partner enters the fifth year of engagement with the Company

1t has been agreed that a new audit partner be Invited to Committee
meetngs to ensure a smooth and orderly transition In terms of orderly
succession and to safeguard challenge and objectmty the current
audit partner will rotate after the 2014115 audit

Tenure of external auditor

The regulatoryregime relating to mandatory audit tendering has
significantly changed in the UK and Europe The Committes is closaly
moenitorng these developments and taking into account that
Deloitte has been the external auditor of the Company since June
2002 1t expects to conduct an audit tender before June 2020 The
Committee s satisfied with the quality of challenge scepticism

and execution by the current auditors and takes into account the
Committee s annual assessment of the quality of the external audit
process the Company’s strategic plans and the implementation of
the EL audit drective inthe UK
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Governance - Corporate governance report

Corporate governance report

{continued)

Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee
Chairman’s overview

We have had an active
year, continuing to grow
and diversify our Board
and Committees

We were pleased to recommend Tracy Clarke as Charr of the
Remuneration Committee in place of Danny Rimer who stepped
dawn as both Chalrman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee following the Company’s 2013 AGM We further
recommended Adine Grate to the Board of Directors and

as amember of the Audit Committee

This year an internal Board evaluation process was undertaken
following on from last year's external evaluation The results of
the evaluation were encouraging and confirmed that the Board
and its Committees continue to operate effectively wmith each
of the Directors making valued and effective contnibutions

The Board as a whole welcomes the oppartunity to adapt to
innovatiens and change within the field and continues to actively
progress Initiatives such as addressing gender balance on the Board,
sourcing the nght skills to complement our talented management
team and ereating robust succession plans to safeguard the
Company s future performance

There were three meetings held during the year and after each
Committee meetng, | reported to the Board on the key issues
discussed dunng our meetings You can find further information
of how we have carned out our role and respansibilities within
the remainder of this report. The Committee s terms of reference
are availlable on the Company s corporate website

Andy Higginson
Committee Chairman

Commuttee composiion

Andy Higginson (Chairman)
MNick Ferguson

Dave L.ews

Arthur Siskind

Attendance at Committee Meetings

The CEQ and General Counsel attend the meetings from time to time
and the Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee Agenda

focus for the Committee this year has centred on the following items
+ Board and Committee composition

= Intemal Board evaluation

+ Rewview of Non-Executive Director independence

» Review of Directors conflicts of interest

* Succession planning

+ Changes to the Listing Rules for companies with controlling
shareholders

Activities during the year

Recruitment processes

During the year, the Committee has continued to review the
compositicn of the Board and its committees There s a formal
recruitrnent process to identify candidates who meet the
Board s cntena

In the case of Adine Grate the most recent appointment to the
Board the Committee engaged with Ridgeway Partners an external
recruitment consultancy to help identify possible candidates and run
the recruitment process Ridgeway Partrers has no other connection
with the Company The timing and recrutment process of Adines
appomtment was started in the prior year and was completedin this
financial year The recruitment processincludes

+ Bnefing of external recrutment consultancy to ensure greater
understandmg of the Company's requirements

* Review of a shortlist of potential candidates

* Review of candidate’s background experience and skili set,
and potential areas for strengthening the Board

= Candidate interviews with members of the Committee and the CEO

Committee compasition

During the year the Committee revaewed the composition of all
Committees and it was agreed that Adine Grate be appointed to the
Audit Committee on 26 July 2013 and Danny Rimer would step down
as Chairman and member of the Remuneration Committee and a3

a member of the Corperate Governance & Nominations Committes
following the Company’s AGM 1n November 2013 Tracy Qarke was
identified as a suitable successor and she succeeded Danny Rirmer
as Chawrman of the Remuneration Committee after the Company s
AGM On 24 July 20t4, Martin Gilbert stepped down as a member

of the Remuneration Committee and Adine Grate was appointed

in hus place with effect from 25 July 2014
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Board evaluation
Duning the year time was scheduled with each of the Directors
to discuss the following

+ the effectiveness of the Board as a whole

.

the mix of skills and expernience on the Board

» the effectiveness cf Board processes and procedures
= development of the Company s strategy and

+ the performance of Board committees

The Chairman of the Committee reported the findings of the evaluation
to the Committee and the Board and nated a number of strengths

The quality and structure of the Directors induction programme
was comprehensive

The quality of Infermation presented to the Board was of a high
standard

The mast recently appointed members of the Board had embedded
well and had strengthened the diversity of the Board

-

Board strategy sessions insight and prioritisation of projects had
enrched Beard discussion

Cverall 1t was concluded that the Board and ite Committees continues
to operate effectively

Independence

During the year, all Non-Executive Directors were asked to complete
questionnares to enable the Commitiee to determine therr
independence The Committee reviewed the questionnasres and
recommended to the Board rhat there be no changes to the
independent status of the current Independent Non-Executive
Directors The Non-Executive Directors who are considered by the
Board to be independent are clearly identified on pages 46 to 47

As noted on page 50 James Murdach, Chase Carey David DeVoe and
Arthur Siskind are not considered to ba independent within the meaning
of the Code however following the evaluation the Committee considers
and agrees that each of these directors continue to make a significant
contnbution to Board and Committee discussions

The Committee s review took Into consideration the fact that
Andy Higginson has served on the Board for more than nine years
Prowision B11 of the Code states that serving more than nine years
celd be relevant to the determination of a Non-Executive Directors
independence The Committee concluded that Andy Hgginson
continues to demonstrate the essental charactenstics of
independence expected by the Board and that there are no
relationships or aircumstances that are ikely to affect or could
appear to affect his judgement In July 2013 the Board agreed that
he should remain on the Board for an additional year (n order to
mamtain a degree of certainty and smooth handover of Board and
Committee expenence and knowledge and help tointegrate the
recently appointed iIndependent Non-Executive Directors Andy
Higginson will step down at this year s AGM

Directors conflicts

The Committee revewed the Board s conflicts dunng the finanaial
year and concluded that Directors conflicts had been appropnately
authonsed and that the process for authonsation was operabing
effectrvely The Commuttee and the Board will continue to moniter
and review potential conflicts of interest and take action to rutigate
them as necessary

Governance - Comorate governance report

Bigger Picture Commuttee
Chatrmans cverview

During the year, the Committee
has continued to provide
strategic leadership in relation
to Sky's Bigger Picture
nitiatives

There were two meetings dunng the year and after each Committee
meeung | reported to the Board an the keyissues discussed dunng
the meeting.

| am pleasedto report that the Committee has seen sigrmficant
progress across all areas of the programme from the launch of
Sky Acadermy in November 2013 toreduaing environment impacts
and workingwith suppliers to strengthen our approach to
responsible sourcing

In 2013 once again we were identified as one of the leading companies
in the Pubiishing Media sector of the Dow Jones Sustanabiiity Index

Progress aganst all of our Bigger Picture commitments and initiatives
1s detailed on pages 27 to 31 and at sky com/biggerpictire

The Commuttee believes that the focus and scate of the work being
done continues to make a significant contnbution to Sky s abifity
to build a better business for the long term

James Murdoch
Committee Charrman

Compositionof the Committee

James Murdoch (Chairman)
‘Tracy Clarke
Dave Lews

Attendance at Committes Meetings

The CEQC CFO senior executives, representatives from Corporate
Affairs and the Brgger Picture team attend meetings at the request
of the Chauman The Deputy Company Secretary acts as Secretary
to the Committee The Committee s terms of reference are avallable
cn the Company’s corporate wehsite

Bigger Picture Comsmtttee Agenda

Focus for theyear has centred an the following items

+ Areview of consumer tracker results

» Responsible cycling and impact of our partnership with British Cycling
« Sky Rainforest Rescue

* SkyArtsignition

« Sky Academy

» Epwironmental performance
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Governange - Corporale governance report

Corporate governance report

(continued)

Actraities during the year

The Committee oversaw a number of key developments in relauon

to Sky’s Bigger Picture iétiatives notably the launch of Sky Academy
with a target to help up to one million young people fulfil their
potential by 2020 The development of Sky Academy as the hub

for Sky s commitment to enable young people has supported the
recommengation of the Committee for greater focus ona dear set
of Iniatives with a common goal The Commuttee noted the early
progress of all strands of Sky Academy intiatives including reaching
over 20 000 young peaple sinceits launch through Sky Academy
Skills Studios and expanding into Scotland extending our Sky Academy
Scholarstups offenng with the launch of TV schalarships reaching
more than 95 000 young people through Sky Sports Lang for Sports
Intiatives expanding inte reland and making a strong start against
our commitment to doubling the number of career opportunities
avallable for young people within Sky

The Committee also reviewed progress agamst Sky s environment
targets and accompanying commitments The Committee noted
that there has been a further reduction In carbon intensity by 2%
over the last year and they discussed the potental carbon savings
of the campus redevelopment ptans and progress in implementing
these plans See page 79 for more infarmation on our emissions

Qver the year the Committee reviewed the positive progress
made In raising consumer awareness and favourability through
the Bigger Picture iInitiatives The mdependent quarterly mass
eonsumer survey shows further growth in awareness of Bigger
Picture iInitiatives increasing to almast 70% of customers and
almost half of prospective customers

The Commitiee expressedits support for the commencement of the
next phase of the cyching partnership with Bniush Cyching after a great
year of strong pro-cycling and grassroots performance and staff and
stakeholder involvement The Committee encouraged the business

to take a stronger position in promoting safe cyckng through Sky's
partnership with Britssh Cycling, particularly around the use of helmets
In marketing campargns and focus on mutual respect between cyclists
and motorists

The Committee oversaw the success of the Sky Rainforest Rescue
partnership with WWF in reaching the overall campaign fundraising
target of £8 milion ayear early The partnership continues to drive
efforts for the project area in Acre Brazil and acuvities to raise
awareness in the UK of rainforest deforestation in the Amazon

The Committee reviewed the achievements of the Sky Arts Ignition
Memary Palace project with the V&RA, along with the launch of a
groundbreaking digital project and on-air programming in Ireland
In partnership wath Rough Magic and Opera Tounng Company

The Committee continues to note the positive economic, seaal and
enmironmental contnbution of Sky \n the UK and Ireland through
1ts approach to seeing the bigger picture Far more information

g0 to sky com/brggerprcture

58 Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group pic




Annual Report 2014

Governance - Directors remuneration report

Directors’ remuneration report
Annual statement from the Chairman

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board ) am pleased to present our repart on
Directors remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2014 which
shareholders wil be asked to approve at the 2014 AGM The repart
takes account of the new regulations how we have mplemented
our pokcy over the past 12 months and our proposed approach

to executive remuneration for the next three years Having been
appointed to the role of Committee Chair in November 1 was keen
ta gauge the views of our larger institutional sharehalders on Sky's
approach to executive remuneration Therefore, over the summer
| wrote to our major shareholders outining the changes we

were proposing to make to our remuneration policy and met

with the institutional voung bodies Thes process of engagement
was very constructive

Cur approach te remuneration has served Sky and its shareholders
extremely well for many years Our sustamed focus on paying for
performance with a high ratio of vanable pay to fixed pay and the
consistency in which we have applied our policy has delivered
outstanding business results Our remuneration philosophy continues
to motvate and retain our Executive Drrectors providing stability to
the Company in an increasingly competitive and changng landscape

It also aligns the interests of the Executive Directors closely to those
of our shareholders

Executive pay at Sky remains firmly tied to the aghievemant of
stretching performance goatls which are linked to business strategy
The measures we use are based on specific areas that drive growth
and returns to shareholders We believe that the concept of a
threshold, target and maximum formula to underpin annual bonus
decisions would compromise our drive for growth so we set one dear
and ambitious stretch target for each bonus measurs every year

Awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan are determined annually
The normal award for bath Executrve Directors has remained the same
for a number of years This year the Committee decided to increase the
level of award granted to the CFO in recognition of his broader role and
increasing contnbution Awards vest every other year which s atyptcal
and this year there was no vesting of share awards refating to the
current performance period This means that if the business performs
well next year total remuneration will spike when share awards are

due to vest It will then go down again the following year when there

15 NEe vesting

The Committee reviews the design and effect of this plan regutarly and
continues to support the current approach as it provides consistency
and a good balance between long and short-term thinking Grants are
made as a fixed number of shares rather than as a muttiple of salary
This de-links the award from automatically increasing with salary and
1s key in driang growth and achieving strong aligrment with returns

to shareholders

Strong performance against key metncs has underpinned our bonus
decrsions again this year Against a challenging backdrop we have
added 23% more products and 33% more customers excluding the
acquired O2consumer and product base Qurinvestment to accelerate
take up and usage of new connected TV senvices s delivering well with
three millian Sky HD boxes connected over the year As a consequence
adjusted revenue excluding ESPNI1s up 7% to £76 billion and adjusted
basic marnings per share s flat at 600 pence despite the nvestment
In connected TV services and one-off step up in Premier League costs
The Committes therefore awarded the CEC and CFO a maximum
benus at 200% and 150% of salary respectively Notwithstanding the
outstanding performance of both Executive Directors the Committes
made modest base salary increases of 2 5% to the CEQ and 296%

to the CFO which recognises ther contnbution without compromising
the philosophy of retaining a relatively low level of frxed pay versus

aur comparator group

The ratio of fixed pay tovanable pay 15 12% 88% for the CEQ and
13% 87% for the CFO compared to the average of 23% 77% for our
comparator group

The conunued support of our shareholders s wtal [n response

to feedback we have receved over the last 12 menths andin the
context of the new reporting regulations, we have made a number
of changes to our remuneration policy These changes seek

to further protect and align shareholder interests and are set

out In our remuneration policy on pages 60 to 66 and Include

The introduction of a cap on annual awards under the Long Term
Incentive Man

A mimimum shareholding requirement for the Executive Directors

A formal policy on malus

More explanation and disclosure on performance outcomes

-

More informatian on our recruitment P0|ICY

We will continue to refine and develop the structure of our report
to provide danty on our remuneration approach and welcome
further feedback from our shareholders on its content

Tracy Clarke
Remuneration Committee Chawr

For further information on remuneration go to

Qur Remuneration Policy
Annual Remuneration Implementation Report

Page 60
Page 67
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Govermnance - Diectors remuneration report

Directors’ remuneration report
Our Remuneration Policy

This section describes the Directors Remuneration Policy which shareholders will be asked to approve at the 2014 AGM The Committee sntends
that thus policy will take effect from that date and will be effective uniyl the 2017 AGM

Remuneration PrlnCIp|eS
There are five key prinaples which underpin the remuneration policy for our Executive Directors

« Qur approach to executive pay Is aligned to the Interests of our shareholders
» We reward our people fairly and competitively to attract motivate and retain the skills we need to deliver significant growth

+ The level of base pay 1s deaded in the same way as for all employees based onindividual performance and expenence the size and scope
of the role and taking account of total remuneration

+ The majonty of executive pay 1s tied to the achievement of stretching performance goals inked to the strategic prorities for the business
Executive Directors will be well rewarded only If they meat or exceed the maxumum performance standards set and achieve stretching levels
of performance

+ We take care to ensure that remuneration does not inadvertently encourage inappropnate nsk taking
Cur principles set the foundation for our remuneration policy and ensure that decisions made by the Committee are consistent and appropnate
i the context of business priontes shareholder interests and employee pay

Summary of the Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The table below shows how our remuneration policy inks te our business strategy and its terms of operation Any contractual commitments
entered into or awards made before the policy comes into effect or a person became a director will be henoured

Purpose and link to strategy  Operation Maximum opportunity Parformance hnk

Basesalary Attracts andretains Reviewed annually typically Any increase will be in ine with Indovidual and business
Executive Directors witheffect from 1 July those provided to employees performance ts taken
taking account of wathun the Company into account when

Salary s set relatively low versus

[ contributio |
personal contfibution the peer group of companies Higher increases may be made renewing saanes
and size of role

of similar market capitalisation as aresult of achangeinrole
to the Company or respensibility or ather
Tne Committee looks at performance-based
crcumstance
pay practices in selected
International media companies Thts 1s n ine with our policy
Decisions on salary also take for allemployees
Into account the performance
and expenence of the indndual
changes in the s1ize and scope of
the role and the level of salary
awards across the business
Pension Provides opportunity for Exacutive Directors may receive Employer contnbutions to the NIA

longer-term saving and/or
retirement provision

employer contnbutions into the
BSkyB Pension Scheme, a cash
supplement in leu of pension,
or acombination thereof

All payments are made as a
percentage of base salary

pension scheme or an equivalent
cash supplement are around 16%
of base salary
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Purpose and link to strategy  Operation Maximum opportunity performance hnk
Other Provides Executive Executrnve Directors are entitled Benefits provided to Executive N/A
benefits Directors with a range of te arange of benefits incuding, Directors are broadly in ine with
coreand fringe benefitsas  but not kmited to prnivate medical  those offered to all employees
partofacompetitrve total  insurance life assurance il health  Where exceptions are made
remuneratien package income protection paid holiday, the Committee ensures that
sick pay Sky subscription package  benefits offered are inline
company car allowance and use with market practice for simiar
of a company car ganeralty for roles \n strular orgarusauons
business travel purposes
The Committee may make munor
changes to benefits orindude
other benefits that are deemed
appropniate from time to time
Relocatron allowances and
benefits may be pronded
where needed to assist with
the refocation or international
transfer of an Executive Director
and ther dependents
Annual Dnves and rewards the Performance measures and The maximum bonus Performance is assessed
bonus delvery of stretehing weightings are reviewed at opportunty is 200% of aganst a combination of
annual performance goals  the start of each year to take base salary and 15 payable operational and finanaal
algned with the account of current business for the achievement of chjectives which are
Company s overall plans Stretching performance stretch objectives determined at the start
business strategy targets are set annually The minimum payment s zera of the year
Performance agamst targets The Committee beheves the The weighting of the
15 monttored quarterly and concept of threshold target and measures is determined
deterruned annually based axmum cempromises our drive at the start of each year
on assessment of performance P but each measure will have
versus each target for growth s we sat one clear armaxmum weighting of 40%
and ambyuous stretch target
Payment s made only once annual  for each performance measure Further details are
resuits have been audited every year The achrevement disclosed in the notes
In exceptional crcumstances the of stretch goals will result in to the policy table and
a payout at maxamum or the Annual Remuneration
Committee will use its judgement near-maxmum The Committee Implementation Report
to adjust bonus outcomes up d ton on page 68
or down to ensure alkgnment exerases its judgement o f n pag
of pay with performance and the tevel of bonus payable for
outcomes short of maxmum
with shareholder interests
within the policy maximum
Co- Encourages personal Executive Directors may invest The maximum annual award The performance measure to
Investment nvestment and up to half of their earned annual 15 150% of base salary determine the vesting of the
Plan (CIP) shareholder alignment bonus in the Company s shares shares 1s chosen each year

rewards long-term focus
and performance
achievement

These investment shares are
matched on a gross basis and
vest based on performance over
a three-year penod Shares are
matched by up to 15 shares for
every1 share invested In line
with performance

Once vested participants
may exercise the awards
during a five-year penicd

Partigpation in the plan
s voluntary

No matching awards are capable
of vesting if performance 1s
below threshold a1 for1 match
may vest when the minimum

of the range s met and all the
shares vest (or i 5 shares for
every share Invested) when the
maximum of the range s met

and 1s typically a financial
measure such as EPS growth

Further detals an the
perfgrmance critenia for
thrasheld and maxmum
vesting are disclosed n
the Annyal Remuneration
Implementation Report
on pages 68 to 70
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Directors’ remuneration report
Our Remuneration Policy

{continued)

Purpose and hnk to strategy Operation

Maximum apportunity

Perfermance ink

LongTerm  Rewards longer-term
Incentive value creatton and aligns
Plan {LTIP) Executive Directors
interests with those
of shareholders

Awards are made annually under
the terms of the scheme rules
based on number of shares

This de-links the award from
Increasing automatcally

with salary adjustments

Vesting of awards s based on
stretching performance over a
three-year period Awards are
made in Year 1 andn Year 2 wath
vesting of both awards at the
end of Year 3 This means that
vesting of awards occurs every
other year with zero vesting

In between

Once vested, participants may
exercise the awards dunng
a five-year perod

In nstances of gross misconduct
all unvested LTIP awards lapse
immediately

This year the Cempany has
introduced a policy on malus
The Committee may use Its
discretion after having taken
inclependent advice to withhold
or vary downwards any unvested
awards typically in the event of

» the material restatement
of the Company’s audited
results or

« acttons attnbutable to
participants resultingin
matenal reputational damage
tothe business

The Committee will determine
how to apply this sanctien
onacase by-casebasis

The Committee reviews the
number of shares to be granted
annually A typical award for the
CEQ s 600,000 shares in any
12-month penod

This year the Company has
introduced a maximum award
level of 900 000 shares in any
12-month penod Such awards
will only be made in exceptional
cireumstances

100% of the shares vest when
the performance cntena are
metan full If the mimmuarm of
the range 1S met each year
for all measures 26% of the
shares vest

Performance measures are
typically a mix of operational
measures and refative TSR

Operational measures used
inthe past have included EPS
operating cash flow and
revenue growth

The weighting of the measures
may vary buts typicatly 70%
operational measures and
30%refative TSR

Around 650 employees are ehgible for awards under the Long Term Incentive Flan A smatler number of employees (areund 130) are also nvited te

participate in the Co-Investment Plan All employees are eligible to recewe a comprehensive benefits package and the majarity are eligible to receive
either a monthly or quarterly cash incentive or an annual bonus
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Sharehaolder alignment

The Committee considers shareholders’ views as they are received
during the year at the AGM through shareholder reetings and
through correspondence This year we wrote to our major shareholders
outhmng our approach te executive remuneration and the changes

we propose ta make

We will continue to engage with our major shareholders and welcome
ferdback at any time Should we propose to make any major changes
to the remuneration structure we will seek the views of cur major
shareholders in advance

The context for setling executive remuneraton policy

The principles underlying our executive remuneration palicy are
ahgned to thase that ungerpin reward far our amployees as a whole
which aim to attract motivate and retain pecople by offenng a
market-competitive total remuneration package The Commttee
takes into consideration the pay and conditions of all employees
when deterrming the remuneration for the Executive Directors

It does not corsult with employees in this process

Our performance measures and how they operate

Executive pay remains firmly tied to the achievement of stretching
performance goais inked to business strategy The measures we
use are based on speafic areas that drive growth and returns to
shareholders We believe the cencept of a threshold target and
maximum formuda would compromse our drive for growth 50 we
set one clear and ambitious streteh target for each performance
measure every year

Annual bonus

The performance measures for the annual bonus are determined by
the committee based on the business prionities for the yaar They are
typecally a mix of operational and financial performance measures
The measures are usually a combination of operating profit operating
cash flow, and a measure of product growth They are all key indicators
of the underlying performance of the business Each year stretch
objectives are setin the light of the Company’s annual business plan
and the operating ermircnment

Co-Investment Plan and Long Term Incentive Plan

Perfarmanee measures for the LTIP and CIP are reviewed annually

to ensure aignment with the Company s strategy and shareholders
interests The CIP measure 1s typically compound EPS growth in excess
of RP over the performance period which ensures close alignment
with our shareholders' interests Performance required for threshold
and maximum vesting are described in the Annual Remuneration
Implementation Report on page 68

The LTIP measures are typically a mix of operaticnal measures and
relative TSR performance wrth a 70/30 split The operational measures
are usually EPS growth operating cash flow and revenue growth

As the conversion of profit to cash flowis a key Indicator of the
underlying performance of the business it 1s used as a measure

in both the annual bonus and the LTIP

Governance - Directors remuneration report

Our LTIP vesung cycle 18 atypical and has served the business and
shareholders well since it was introduced in 2005 Vesting occurs

only every other year and as a consequence the amount of
remuneraton delivered to Execubive Directors will spike every

other year This approach encourages facuson the longer tarm

The performance ranges for each measure are reviewed annually in the
light of the Company s three year plan brokers forecasts and histerical
performance Performance at the top end of the range Is stretching.

Pay scenaric analysis

The charts below provide an estimate of the awards that could be
received by our Executive Directors under the remuneration policy
for 2074 showing

+ Mintmum base salary as at 1 July 2014 plus pension and benefits
as per the table on page 71 (Fixed pay)

Maximum fixed pay plus maximum awards for annual bonus
(200% of base salary for the CEQ and 150% for the CFO)
Co-Investment Plan {(maximum deferral of 50% of the annual
Bonus inte nvestment shares and full vesting of 1 5x matching,
shares) and Long Term Incentive Plan (600 00O shares for the
CEO and 350 0C0 shares for the CFO)

The Committee sets one clear and ambitious stretch target for
each performance measure [f stretch targets are met then 100%
of maximum for the bonus 1s pard and the shares awarded under
the LTIP and CIP wall vest in full There s no additionat payment for
achievement over the stretch goals

Awards under the LTIP are madle annually but vesting occurs only every
two years Thetmpact of this vesting cycle on actual realised pay 1s shown
in the five year single figure remuneration table for the CEQ on page 72

Jeremy Darroch, CEQ

| ong Tenm tncrtng Pan
MR L0 investrent Plan
- Ao Bonus
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Andrew Gnffith, CFO

L Orig Term Incontve Flan
BB (o lvestinedt Pan
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Scenaries are modelled assuming a share pnice of £8 818 which
15 the average share price over the period 1 Aprit to 30 June 2014
with no allowance for share price appreciation
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Governance - Directors remuneration repart

Directors’ remuneration report

Our Remuneration Policy
(continued)

Other share schemes

Management Long-Term incentive Plan (MLTIP)

The Company also operates a MLTIP for selected employees excluding
the Executive Directeors and senior executives who participatein the
LTIP Awards under this scheme are made at the discretton of the CEQ,
within the parameters agreed by the Committee The MLTIP mirrors
the LTIP in design in order to ensure alignment between partiopants
in either plan

Executive Share Option Schemes (Executive Schemes)

The Company has in place Approved and Unapproved Exacutive Share
Option Schemes No options have been granted since 2004 and we
donot envisage making any future awards as part of these schemes

Sharesave Scheme

The Sharesave Scheme s open to UK and insh employees and
encourages them to make a long-term investmentin the Company’s
shares in a tax efficient way The current legistation provides for
employees to save up to £500 per month Currently the limit for Sky
emplayees Is £250 per month although the Company may decide to
adjust this amount In future Opuens are nermally exercisable after
either three or five years from the date of grant The pnce at which
options are offered 1s not less than 80% of the middle-market price
on the dealing day immediately preceding the date of invitation

or the average of the three days preceding the date of iInwtation

It 1s the palicy of the Company to imate employees to participate

in the scheme following the announcement of the year end

results Currently approximately 9 000 employees participate

in these schemes

Shareholding guidelines and share ownership

The Committee recognises the importance of aligning Executive
Directors and shareholders interests through executives building up

a significant shareholding in the Company This year new shareholding
requirements have been introduced at 3x base salary for the CEQ and
2x bace satary for the CFQ Executive Directors are required to build up
their shareholding to the required levels within five years There are no
sharehotding guidelines for Independent Non-Executive Directors but
they are able to partiapatein amonthly share purchase plan See page
73 for further details on Directors interests

How the Remuneration Committee exercses discretton

The Committee retains discretion relating to annual bonus LTIP and
CIP in [ine with their rules and according to the remuneration policy

These include but are notiimited to

Timing of a grant of an award/payment

Size of an award/bonus payment up to the maximums indicated
inthe policy table

Determination of vesung and the application of malus for the LTIP

Dealing wath a change of control

Deterrmination of treatment of leavers based an the rules of the
plan and the leaver policy

Annual review of performance measures and weighting and targets
of the plan from year to year

Any use of discretion within the policy framework will be explained
1In the Annual Remuneration implementation Report There may

be excepticnal arcumstances under which the Committee may
use discretion or judgement in the interests of the business and
shareholders These exceptional circumstances may be the subject
of discussion with the Company’s major shareholders

Remuneration on recruitment or appointment to the Board

It 15 expected that the remuneration package for a new Executive

Director will be agreed in line with the approved remuneration policy

at the time of appointment. The Committee would seek approval from

Its major shareholders if it falt it necessary to pay more to attract the

best candidate Thelast time an executive appotntment was made,

the Committee approved a total remuneration package lower than {
the previous incumbent.

Typically base salary on appointment will take into account indmidual
experience the size and scope of the role, total remuneration and
refevant market pay levels Whare the mitial base salary s set below
competitive levels for example to account for someone who may be
newly promoted to the Board the Committee will realign salary in the
years following appointment assuming the required level of persona!
perfarmance 1s met The Committee will discloseits intention to do
this at the time of appointment,

Cther elements of remuneration wall be set in ine with our policy
unless specific arcumstances dictate atherwise For example

it may be necessary to use different performance measures inibally
for the annual bonus taking mto account the time of jowmng In

the financial year and responsibihities of the individual

The Committee may offer one-off cash and/or share-based elements
n additicn to the standard remuneration package These willonly be
offered where it considers these to beimperative to attracung the
best external candidate in order to compensate for elements of pay
such as forfeited bonus entitlements and/or unvested long term
incentive awards from an existing employer Any buy-out of unvested
share awards would aim to match as far as possible the vesting terms
and the expected value of the awards being bought out. This provision
may also Include payment for any benefits in kind pensions and other
allowances previcusly provided to the indmdual

The Committee may also provide appropnate levels of relocation
assistance and payments to external or Internal appointees who are
required to relocate either within orto the UK on taking up the role

Where an internal candidate 1s promoted to the Board any
outstanding vanable pay award or benefits prowided (n relation

to the previous role may be paid or delvered according to the rules

of the plan and may be adjusted to take into account the newrole

The Committee may also make an LTIP award on appeintmens outside
the annual cycle under existing shareholder appreved plans Thevalue
of such an award will not exceed cur normal policy maximum

The remuneration arrangements for any newly-appointed Executive
Director will be disclosed in ine with our regulatory obligations

64 Briush SkyBroadcasting Group plc




Annuzl Repart 2014

Key terms of new and existing service contracts

The Committee s pality for the Executive Directors service contracts
15 provided below

Notice penod Up to one year s notice for either party and a one year
nen-cempete provision The Company may require the
Individual to continue to fulfil current duties or may
assign garden leave

Payment in One year's salary plus an amount equal to the benefits

leu of notice and a pro-rata bonus for the penod up to the
termination date No bonus ts payable for the duration
of the notice period unless that penodis worked

Jeremy Darroch s intial service contract on appomntment as CFO
commenced on 16 August 2004 The contract was revised on

7 December 2007 when he became CEQ Andrew Griffith s senvice
contract was revised on 7 April 2008 when he was appointed CFO
Copies of the Executive Directors sennce contracts are avalable for
nspection dunng normal business hours at the Company's registered
office on any business day and will be avallabla at the place where the
AGM 15 held from 15 minutes prior to and dunng the meeting

Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment in place for mitial
terms of three years subject to annual reappointment at the AGM
These letters provide that no compensation is payable on termination
other than accrued fees and expenses The dates of these letters of
appointment are detailled below

Date of Letter of Appointment

Mick Ferguson 15 June 2004
Chase Carey 30 January 2013
Tracy Clarke 11 June 2012
David DeVoe 15 December 2004
Martun Gilbert 29 November 2011
Adine Grate 17 July 2013

Andy Higginson 1September 2004
Dave Lewis 16 November 2012
James Murdoch 7 December 2007
Matthieu Prgasse 29 Novermnber 201
Danny Rimer 7 April 2008
Arthur Siskind 19 November 1991
Andy Sukawaty 1 June 2013

Governance - Drectors' remunerationreport

Payments on termination and loss of office

The Company's termination policy is shaped by the key prinaiples that
+ contractual terms will be adhered to and

+ the arcumstances of the termination will be taken inte account

Executive Directors service contracts continue until the agreed
retirement date or other date as the Company may agree and are
terminable on no more than one year's notice

The Company may terminate an Executive Director s service contract
by way of payment in lieu of notice by continuing employment for the
duration of the notice penod and/or by assigrning a penod of garden
leave The current Executive Directors service contracts also contam
a nen-compete prevision of one year from the date of termination

of the agresment
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Directors’ remuneration report

Our Remuneration Policy
(continued)

Termination for cause’ and ‘without cause™ treatment of salary bonus and benefits

In the event of termination for cause salary and benefits would be payable only up to the date of terminaticn No bonus would be payable in the
event of termination without cause the Executive Director would receive one year s salary an amount eqtal to the value of the berefits he would
have been eligible ta receive for one year and a pro-rated bonus for the penod from the start of the finanaal year up to the date of termination
No bonus would be payable for the year’s notice penicd

Treatment of share plans on termination
Executive Directors entitlements to remuneration under the shareholder-approved share plans upen termination are summarised in the table below

Plan Reasons such as death, redundancy retirement, |ll health, injuryand  Other leaver reasons such as resignation®
disability employing company ceasng to be part of the Group or any
other reason at the discretion of the Committee*

LTIP LTIP awards will not nermally be exerasabie untl the normal All unvested shares will usually lapse on the date of leaving
vesting date subject to the performance conditions being met However the Committee has the discretion under the plan rules
Award vesting will be prorated according to the poruon of to determine whether a proportion of the shares may vest having
the performance penod served unless the Committee taken into account any exceptional crcumstances
determines otherwise

Awards may be exerersed early in certain circumstances for
example in the event of death or a takeover or change in control

cp Any investrment shares held on behalf of the partiapant may Investment. shares may be sofd Any matching award will be
be sold Any matching awards held under the CIP will vest forfeited However the Commuttee has the discretion to determine
on the same terms as cuthned above in relation to the LTIP whether a proportion of the matching award may vest having

taken into account any exceptional orcumstances

Sharesave Options may become exercisable within & months alternatively  Options will lapse and the partraipant may only withdraw savings
the participant may choosa to withdraw savings accrued under the savings contract

= The share plan rules do not refer to for cause or without cause Termination for cause would normally be dealt with under Other leaver reasons Termination ‘without causa
would be dealt with as any other reason at the discretion of the Committee

It 1s the Company § pelicy to use 1ts judgement when approving payments to departing Executive Directors withun the provision of the plan rules
The Committes wall take into account Factors such as the arcumstances and timeng of the ext, the performance of the Executive Director while
i office and the interests of shareholders

External appointments

£xternal appontments for Executive Directors are considered by the Company s Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee to ensure they
would not cause a conflict of interest and are then approved by the Chairman on behalf of the Board It 1S the Company s policy that remuneration
earned from such appointments may be retained by the individual

Jeremy Darrach became a Non-Executive Director of Burberry Group plc in February 2014 and serves as amember of ther audit, remuneratton
and nominations committees As at 30 June 2014 Jeremy had earmed £32666

Andrew Gnffith became a Non-Executive Director of Just Eat plein March 2014 and serves as senior independent directer chairman of the audit
commitlee and as a member of the remuneration and nominations committees As at 30 June 2014 Andrew had eamed £19167
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Directors’ remuneration report
Annual Remuneration Implementation Report

Remuneration of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The table below summanses the key compenents of remuneration for our Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Element and purpose

Qperation

Fees Reflect Indmdual responsitilities and
rmembership of Board Committees Attract
Nen-Executive Directors with the skills and
expenence required to oversee the
implementation of strategy

Fees for the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors are reviewed
annually having regard to independent advice and surveys

The Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee determines the

fees paid to the Chairman taking into account the complexity of the rofe
and the time and commitment required The Board of Directors determines
the fees for the Non-Executive Directors

Additional fees for membership of or chairmanship of a committee
or for other responsibilities are payable in addibon to the basic fees
Fee levels for 2014 are disclosed in the table on page 75

Non-Executive Directors can elect to receive a portion of thewr feesin the
Company s shares which are purchased on a monthly basis Directors who
are deemed to be affiliated with 21st Century Fox are not permitted to take
part n this faality Non-Executve Directors’ iterests are disclosed in the
table on page 73

Benehits Addhuonal penefits may be prowded for business purpeses e g provision
of a car to travel to/from meetings
Non-Executive Directors are not ehgible to join Sky s pension plan
Non-Executive Directors are eligible to receve a Sky subscription package
Bonus and Share Non-Executive Directars are not eligible to participate in any bonus or share
Plans scheme offered by the Company
Notice and Each Non-Executive Director s appomntment s for an initial three year term
termmation in accordance wath the UK Corporate Governance Code, il Directors submit
provisions themselves for annual reappointment

Non-Executive Directors each have a letter of appointment, these
appointments may be terminated without notice Any fees payable would
be settled at the date of termination Ne continuing payment of fees are
due If a Non-Executive Director 1s not re-elected by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting
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Directors’ remuneration report
Annual Remuneration Implementation Report

(continued)

This section sets out how our remuneration policy was implemented
dunng the year ended 30 June 2014 and how It will be implemented
for the coming year it also sets out the ink between Company
performance and Executive Directors remuneration the context

In which our policy operates, details on our Executive Directors
shareholdings and the general governance of Directors remuneration

Vanable pay outcomes for the year ended
30 June 2014

As shown on pages 36 to 38 the business has delivered another year
of strong growth As well as delivering a strong financial performance
the core businesses are growtng well and new areas of business are
accelerating. Against this background we set out below payments
made for the annual bonus CIP and LTIP for the performance year
ended 30 June 2014

Annual benus for 2014 perfarmance

The annual bonus dnves the achievernent of annual financial and
operational business goals The plan for 2014 for Executive Directors
and senior executives was based on three equally-weighted measures
which were identified by the Committee as being key indicators

of performance drving growth for our business and returns to

our shareholders

= Net Product Growth
* Adjusted Qperating Profit
 Adsted Operatng Cash Flow

We believe the concept of threshold target and maxmum would
compromise the drive for growth so one clear stretch target 1s set
for each performarice measure each year

This year we have provided mere explanation on perfermance
outcomes The table in the next column sets out the Committee s
assessment of performance versus the three measures for thetast
performance period The Committee sets stretching targets which
must be delivered to achieve the business plan and for the Executive
Directors to recetve the maximum bonus There are no payments
above maximum for performance above these stretch targets

The Committee will use its judgement to assess the level of bonus If
a stretch target 1s not met, taking into account personal performance
the performance of the other measures, the underlying perfarmance
of the business and other factors which the Committee considers to
be matenal to the results achieved

Operational performance has been strong, with outperformance
against each of our targets Despite difficult economic market
conditions paid-for product growth has increased by 23% excluding
the acquired O2 consumer and product base Operating profitis
also ahead of target at £1 260 mehon dunng a year of investment
Operating cash flow has seen another strong performance at
£1284 mithon

Based on the excellent absolute and relative performance against
the key bonus measures and the strong personal performance

of both Executive Directors the Committee has decided to award
bonus payouts of 200% of base salary far the CEO and 150% for
the CFO respectively

Remunerapion Committee s assessment of performance outcomes
versus targets set

Performance Level of
Measure Weighting Performance adhievement
Paid-For Products Growth 33% +31m VvV,
Operating Profit 23% £1,260m I
Operating Cash Flow 33% £1284m L
Overall Performance SIS
Performance Key

Achievement agaunst stretch goals Lpte) S
Below stretch goals X

The Committee judges that disclosure of specific targets s
commeraally sensttive because we operate in a highly competitive
market both In acquinng customers and bidding for key rights with
avery small number of ptayers We therefore believe that early
disclosure of our targets would offer an unfair competitive
advantage and would be tothe detriment of our shareholders

We will make retrospective disclosure when the targets are deemed
to be nolonger commercaially sensitive We anticipate this te be two
years after the end of the performance penod

Vestng of shares under the Co-Investment Plan 2011-2014

Under the terms of the CIP offered on 30 August 201! for the
performance penod 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2014 Executive Directors
voluntanly defarred 50% of their earned 2011 bonus into investment,
shares which were then matched by the compary up to 15 umes
the gross equivalent of ther nvestment

The table below shows the performance cenditions for vesting of
the matching shares

EPS growth performance Match awarded
(annual average growth (number of matching shares
over three-year term) awarded per investment share")

Less than RPI +3% 00
RPI +3% 10
RIPL +4% 117
RPl +5% 133
RPI +6% 15
More than RPI +6% 15

Straight line interpolation between points

* 1& onequvalent gross basis

The average adjusted basic EPS growth rate of 13% per year over
the three-year peniod exceeds the threshold for maximum vesung.
The Committee has agreed that the matching shares under the
2017 QP witlvestin full on 30 August 2014

Executive Long Term Incentive Plan 2012-2015

The next vesting of awards made under the terms of the LTIP

will occur on 26 July 2015 for the three-year performance period
1July 2012 to 30 June 2015 This will include vesting of awards made
In 2012 and 2013 Awards made 1in 2010 and 2011 vested in July 2013
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Long Term Incentive Plan and Co-Investment Plan Awards made in the Year (audited)
The table below sets out the LTIP and CIP awards made to Executive Diractors during the year ended 30 June 2014

Mimum % Maamum %
No of shares Face Value on of sharesthat  of shares that
awarded Grant Date Date of Grant  PerformancePenod  Vesting Date can vest can vest

Long Term Incentive Plan

Jeremy Darroch 600000 26073 E4932000¢ 010712-300615 26 0715 0% 100%
Andrew Gnffith 320000 260713 £2630400'" 010712-300615 26 0715 0% 100%
Co-Investment Plan

Jeremy Darroch 162,794 280813 £1369098° 010713 - 300616 280816 0% 100%
Andrew Griffith 74 249 280813 £624 4342 010713 -300616 280816 0% 1C0%

1 Market price at date of LTIP award was E8 220 on 26 July 2013
2 Market price at dace of CIP matctung award was £8 410 on 28 August 2013

Performance conditions for the Long Term Incentive Plan

Awards made in July 2013 were “Year 2" nil-cost option awards That s they refer back to the three year performance period beginning on 1 July 2012
and ending on 20 June 2015 and are subject to tha following performance conditions

1 Operational targets - 70% of the award

There are three equally weighted operational performance measures each of which Is a key indicator of Sky s continued success

* EPSgrowth akeymeasure of shareholder returmns
- Operatungcash flow measures our ability to generate and manage cash

= Revenue growth core to our growth strategy

The Committee believes that early disdosure of our targets would give an advantage to our competitors and would be to the detnment of our
shareholders We witl make retrospectve disclosure when the targets are deemed to be nolonger commeraially sensitive We anticipate this

to be two years after the end of the performance period

Points are awarded for performance on the three operational measures as follows

» For EPS two points are awarded for growth of RPI +3% par year with the maximum ten points awarded for RP1 +5% per year or more

= For operating cash flow and revenue growth one point 1s awarded for 75% achievement of target on a shiding scale up to ten points

for 105% or more

There s nc additional award for ackievement above 21 points

+ If the minimum range s met each year for all measures 26% of the shares vest

Annual performance measures are shown In further detail in the table below

One point equates Lo 10% of the award vesting with maximum vesting for 21 points or more vesting on a straight-ine basis between these points

Average EPS Growth

Operating Cash Flow

Revenue Growth

Performance achieved

Performarnice achieved

Performance achieved Points awarded (% of target) Paints awarded (% of target) Points awarded
RP+S%pa 10 105% or more 19 105% ar more 10
RA+45%pa 8 100% 8 100% 8
RPI + 4% pa 6 95% 6 S5% 6
RPI+35%pa 4 S0% 4 0% 4
RPI+3%pa 2 85% 2 85% 2
Less than RPl +3% pa [o] 75% 1 75% 1
Less than 75% [¢] Less than 75% o]

The top end of the EPS growth range was set for awards n 2012 and 2013 at RPI +5% p a This s equivalent to growthin earnings of 26% over three
years If RP)is 3% a year This level of growth in earnings was set at a level which exceeded consensus research analysts estimates
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Directors’ remuneration report
Annual Remuneration Implementation Report

(continued)

2 Relative TSR performance - 30% of the award

The Company's TSR performance is measured relative to the TSR of
the constituents of the FTSE 100 If the Company’s TSR performance
1s below median the TSR element of the award lapses i full

For median performance one-thid of the shares subject to

the TSR condition may vest, with all the shares vesting for upper
quartle performance Vesting s on a straight-hne basis between
these points as shown below

TSR Vesung Schedule
Payout
30

-»

1%

+

s

A L L L 1 N i

Beliw  SC s e v M

+ 444 é

T
26%
3
3

Fural TSR rank, (%)

TSR calculations are conducted independently by Towers Watson
adwisors to the Commuttee

Performance conditions for the Co-Investment Plan
CIP awards made in 2003 are subject to the performance conditions
set out in the table below

EPS growth performance Match awarded
(annual average growth {number of matching shares
aver three-year term) awarded per investment share®)
Less than RPI +3% o0
RP! +3% 10
RP +4% 125
RP +5% 15
Maore than RPl +5% 15

Straight ine interpolation between points
* L@ on equialent gross Dasis

Review of past performance

TSR performance

The graph below shows the Company’s TSR for the five years to

30 June 2014 measured as the value of a £100 holding in ordinary
shares at the start of the penod The performance is shown relative
to the FTSE 100 and FTSE Media 350 indices which represent the
broad market indices within which the Company s shares are traded

TSR s a measure of the returns that a company has prowided for
its shareholders reflecting share price movements and assuming
reinvestment of divdends Data 15 averaged over three months
at the end of each financial year

E300
—
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E - 1500 £265
g £350 it FTSE 0 Mapds €730
£200
g £130
3 es0
i £100
a
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2
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Payments made to Executive Directors
The table sets out total remuneration receved by the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the prior year ended 30 June 2013

The vesting pattem of awards under the LTIP 15 briennial shares vest every other year over a three year performance period This means that every
other year no payment is due as there 1s no vesting of awards The following year assurming performance conditions are met, there wil be a payment
which covers the equivalent of two years vesting

The 2013 singte figure for total remunerabion indudes vesting of a one-off additional LTiP award made in 2011 at the ume of the News Corporation bid
as disclosed in the 2011 Report on Directors Remuneration 2013 was also a vesting year for our LTIP

Single Figure for Executive Directors’ Total Remuneration (audited)

Long Term
Salary' Tacadie Banefits? Pansion’ Boruz' Incentrve Plant Co-lmmstment Ptan® Total
3 2013 014 200 01 203 2005 2013 2014 201 2014 203 2014 2013 201
éere;ndy‘ 935000 960700 17122 12807 158564 149491 1823250 1921400 12525000 na 1568046 1831754 170265982 4881252
arT
en?;ew 573500 602075 16104 16M5 70319 B34m 831575 903263 5471250 nia 593554 844703 8856702 2449736
1fF)

-

Executive Directors salanes wereincreasad on 1 July 2013 by 2 75% for the CEO and 5 0% for the CFO reflecting therr excellent performance The increase for employees whe
wers similarly categonsed as outstanding performers ranged up to 10% The average increase for employees at that tyme was 2.5% rising to 3 5% for thase earrung less than
ES0 000 per year with a range of 0% to 10% for par formance, promotons and markat adjustments

Taxable benefits include company car or car allowance and healthcare

Pension cormprisas a tash allowance in lieu of company contributions for Jeramy Darroch Andrew Griffith became a deferred member of tha pension scheme on 1 Decerber 2013
and received £16 667 in compary contributicns and E66 814 as a cash allowance

4 Bonus shows the full amourt earnad shortly after year end inwtuch the performance measures apped incuding amounts deferred treough the CIP The payout for the 2013
boru was 195% of base salary for the CEC and 145% for the CFQ The figures for 2014 are 200% for the CEQ and 150% for the CFO The Executive Drectors deferred 50% of thew
Borws into shares thraugh the (1P 2013 and it s anticipated they will dose for 2014

Long Term Incentive Plan shows the market value of the awards vested immediately following the end of therelevant performance period The figure for 201315 for LTIP shares
vested on 29 July 2013 with a shara price of £8 35 and includes the vesting of the one-off additional award of 300 000 shares for the CEQ and 135 000 for the CFQ madein20M
at the ime of the News Corporation bid No LTIP shares vested for the perfarmance peniod ended 30 June 2014

Co-investment Plan shows the market value of the matching shares that vested on 31 August 2013 with a share price of E8 525 and the estimated value of matchung shares
that are due to vest on 30 August 2014 using the average share price over the period 1Apni to 30 Juna 2014 of E3 818

W N
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(continued)

CEQ's remuneration

The table below provides a summary of the total remuneration for the
CEO over the past five years including bonus payout, LTIP and (1P vesting
levels The table hughlights the unique structure of our remuneration
poticy in which vesting of LTIP shares occurs every two years rather than
the customary 12 month cycle As our LTIP awards are made as a fixed
number the reaksed value 1s purely reflective of any share price growth
over thus pernod keeping it aligned te shareholders’ interests

It should be noted that total remuneration for 2013 includes vesting
of the one-off additional LTIP award of 300,000 shares made in 2011
at the ime of the News Corporation byd The average annual total
remuneratian paid to the CEQ over thus five year period excluding
this one-of f award is £7,553 114

Annual Lmp ap

Bonus vesting vesting

payout rates rates

Single agamst against against

figure maximum maxmum maxgnum
oftotal opportunity opportunity opportunity
% % %

Year remuneration

2014 4881,252' 100 nia 100
2013 17026 9827 975 100 100
2012 4550037 100 n/a W00
20m 11133554 100 B3 nia
2010 2678744 100 n/a nfa

1 includes valuation of CIP matching shares due to vest on 30 August 2G4
using the average share price over the penod 1 Apni to 30 June 2014 of E8 818

2 Includes vesting of the one-off additional LTIP award of 300 000 shares
made in 2011 at the tene of the News Corporation bid

3 Includesfirst year of vesting of CIPuntroduced in 2010

Percentage change In CEQ s remuneration

The table below shows the percentage change i CEQ remuneration
from 1.July 2013 to 30 June 2014 compared to the average change for
all employees

CEQ % change All employees % change

Base Salary 275% 375% employees earning less than
ES0000 2 5% above ESQ 000

Taxable Benefits 58% 0%
Annual Bonus -5 3% 13 0%

Relative Importance of pay spend

The table below shows total employee costs and dividend payments
to shareholders for 2013 and 2014

2013 2014
(Em) €m)
Total employee costs 989 1044
Dradend payments 441 485

Implementatton of Remuneration Policy for the
coming year to 30 June 2015

The Committee has determined that the remuneration policy will
be implemented as set out below for the year ending 30 June 2015

Base salary

The average salary ncrease for our employees effective 1 july 2014,
was 3 5% for those earning less than £30000 and 25% for all other
employees with increases up to 10% for outstanding performance,
prometions and market adjustments Notwithstanding the
outstanding performance of the CEQ and CFQ the Committee has
decided to make modest base salary adjustments of 2 5% for the
CEQ and the 2 96% for the CFO effectve 1July 2014 to recognise
their contributson wathout compromising the long held intent to
marntain a well-leveraged package witharelatively low levef of

fixed pay versus our pay comparator group

Taxahble benefits and pension

No changes

Annual Bonus and Co-tnvestment Plan

No changes We expect that both of the Executive Directors will
parucipate in the CIP for this year The performance conditions
for the vesting of shares are as per the details set aut on page 70

Long Term Incentive Plan award

The nermal annual awards for the Executive Directors have remained
unchanged for some years at 600 000 for the CEO and 320 000 for
the CFQ The Committee agreed that Jeremy Darroch woudd be granted
an award of 600000 shares and Andrew Griffith would be granted an
award of 350 000 shares on 25 July 2014 The adjustment for Andrew
Griffith reflects the consclidation of his broader role and his increasing
contnbution to the business This is the Year 1 award of the 2014-2017
Plan These awards will normally vest on 25 July 2017 subject to the
performance measures being achieved

The performance conditions for this award remain the same as for
those made i 2012 and 2013 and operate using the same methodology
as setout on pages 69 and 70

EPS growth target Is as per page 6% and the TSR vesting schedule
1S as per page 70
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Directors Share Interests

As at the end of the financal year the CEQ had beneficial ownership of 411 695 shares egquivalent to 3 B2 x base salary and the CFO had baneficial
ownership of 117903 shares equivalent to 1 75 x base salary, using the year end dosing share price of £8 93 The CEO currently exceeds the new
shareholding guidelines It 15 expected that the CFO will meet the new guidelines dunng the next financial year

Interests in Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc shares (audited)

Shares
acquired
Asat30 dunngthe Asat30
, Notes June2013 year June 2014
Executive Directors
Jeremy Darroch 1 354575 57120 411,695
Andrew Gnffith 12 14452 26052 n7ec3
Non-Executive Directors
Nick Ferguson 22128 79 30039
Chase Carey 3 - - -
Tracy Clarke BSS B42 1737
Dawvid DeVoe 3 -
Dave Lewis 705 2049 2754
Martin Gilbert 2281 1392 3673
Adine Grate 4 - a194 9194
Andy Rigginson 5 55N 949 7520
James Murdoch 3 - - -
Matthieu Pigasse 2477 1287 3764
Danny Rimer 21122 4580 25702
Arthur Siskind 3 - - -
Andy Sukawaty 95 1069 1164

1 Interests inshares include shares purchased under the Co Investment Plan on 28 August 2013 at a price of £8 3598

2 Andrew Griffith disposed of 22,601 orcinary shares at a price of £8 495 on 2 September 2013 These were acquired 10 2070 as investmant shares under the CIP and were released
on 31 August 2013 when the matching award vested

3 The Directors assocated with 215t Century Fox are nat parmitted to partcizate in the manthly share purchase plan

4 Ading Grate purchased 9194 sharas at £8 515 on 18 September 2013

5 Andy Higginson particpates in the Dridend Revrwestument Plan

All interests at the date shown are benefimal and there have been no changes between 1 July and 25 July 2014

British Sky Broadcastng Group ple 73

yodavidaeng

2OURUJIACD)

SILPWINETS [ROUBLIY

UOITRLLIOUI I3PjoYRIRYS




Annual Repart 2014

Governance - Drectors remuneration report

Directors’ remuneration report
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(continued)

Qutstanding share awards Jeremy Darroch (audited)

Share pnce Market Date from

At 30 June Vested  Exercised Lapsed At30June atdateof price on which
Date of award Notes 2013 during year duringyear dunngyear 204 award exerase exercisable Expiry date
LTIP
29010 12 600000 600000 €00000 - - £710 E8 35 29073 29078
29071 12 900000 9000030 900000 - - E7120 EB 35 290713 29078
260712 600000 - - - 600000 £70E5 nfa 260715 260720
CIP Matching 3
270809 204425 - - - 204 425 E5405 nfa 270812 270817
30810 183936 183935 - - 183435 E7075 nfa 30813 310818
30081 207729 - - - 207729 £6460 nfa 3600814 300819
280812 184145 - - - 184149 E£7640 nia 280815 280820
Sharesave
250909 3591 ~ - - 3581 £433 nja 00215 010815

Qutstanding share awards Andrew Griffith (audited)

Share price Market Date from

At 30 June Vested  Exercised Lapsed At30June atdateof prce on which
Date of award Notes 2013 during year durngyear during year 2014 award exercse exercisable Expirydate
LTIP
290710 123 320000 320000 320000 - - £7N0 £835 250713 290718
2507 123 455000 455000 455000 - - E7120 £835 250713 290718
26072 320000 - - - 320000 E7065 n/a /BONS 260720
CIPMatching 45
310810 69672 69672 69672 - - £7075 £6849 310813 310818
30081 95793 - - - 95793 £6 460 nfa 300814 300819
280812 84713 - - - 84713 £7640 nfa 280815 280820
Executive Options
010803 & 44184 - 44184 - - E6 62 £835 010907 010913
060804 6 19819 - 19819 - - £503 £835 O60BDE 050814
Sharesave
160911 171 - = - 171 £508 nfa | 0215 010815

1 Tha shares were exertised and subsequently soid on 29 July 2013 the aggregate vakue receved by the Executive Drectors onexercrss of ther 2010 and 2013 LTIP awards before
tax was £18 996 250 (2013 £4 095 588)

2 Followng the vesting of awards partiapants continuing to be employed by the Company have five years to exercise thew award

3 Performance conditions retating to LTIP awards made 1 2010 and 201 were disclosed in the 2013 Annual Report.

4 Dindends are payable on shares purchased through the CIP Durmg the year the Executive Diractors recerved £134 560 (2013 £1015940)

5 Performance conditions retating to CIP matching awards ¢an be found on page 68

6 The Campany has not made any Executive Share Option awards since 2004
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Single Figure for the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors

The followang table sets out the single figure for total remuneration for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directars for the financial year ended

30 June 2014 and the prior year ended 30 June 2013

2014 Total 2013 Total

Fees’ Fees

Nick Ferguson 462 375 450000
Chase Carey 60000 24,62
Tracy Clarke? 95160 78,600
Dawd DeVoe 50,000 58 000
Dave Lewis S0000 45,312
Martin Gilbert 105000 94666
Adine Grate? 66987 nla
Andy Higginson 145000 151333
James Murdoch 95,000 93000
Matthieu Pigasse 70000 68,000
Danny Rimer® 77769 103833
Arthur Siskind 70000 68000
Andy Sukawaty 70000 5666

1 Basic fees were ncreased by 275% with effect from1 July 2013

2 Tracy Clarke replaced Danny Rimer as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 21 November 2013 Danny Rimer stepped down as Chairmnan and member of the

Remuneration Committee and as amember of the Corporate Governance & Nominatons Committee on 22 Novernber 2013
3 Adine Grate was appointed Non-Executive Director on 17 July 2013 and joined the Audit Committee an 26 July 2013

Fees for the Charrman and base Non-Executive Director fees were increased by 2 5% effective 1 July 2014 as detaled in the table below

1luly 1 July

2014 2013

£ t

Chairman (a!l inclusive fee) 473934 462,375

Deputy Chairman® 30000 30000

Board member 61500 60000
Additional responsibilities

Seror independent Director 40000 40000

Charrman of Committee 25000 25000

Member of Committee WO00 10 000

1 Therole of Deputy Chairman 1s not requiréd to be filled at this present time

Payments to past Directors and loss of office
There were no payments made Lo past directors and no payments made for loss f office duning the financial year

Shareholder voting outcomes

The Company 1s committed to engaging with shareholders and every year holds a meeting to talk about remuneration with major shareholders and
institutional iavestor groups This enables the Company to take shareholders views fully into account when making decisions about remuneration

At the AGM held on 22 November 2013 774% of shareholders voted i favaur of the Directers report on remuneration

Resolution Votes For % For Votes Against % Against TotalVotesCast  Votes Withheld

Approval of the remuneraton report 1020278 744 77 4% 297928 375 226% 1318 207119

7455148

The Commuttee has sought the views of major shareholders since then and has made a number of important changes to the Company's paficy In

response to this as set out in the Charrman s statement on page 59

Membership of the Commuttee

During the year ended 30 June 2014 the Commuttee charred by Tracy Clarke met five times Nick Ferguson Martin Gilbert and Andy Sukawaty are
members of the Committee Danny Rimer stepped down as Chairman and member of the Committee on 22 November 2013 Martin Gilbert stepped
down as a member of the Committee on 24 July 2014 and Adine Grate was appointed in his place with effect from 25 July 2014 Attendance during

the year1s shown on page 50
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Annual Remuneration Implementation Report
(continued)

Role of the Commuttee

The role of the Committee s to oversee the remuneration policy 50 that the Company 1s able torecruit, retan and motivate 1t Executives and
reward their individual contnbutions in a fair and responsible manner The Committee reviews the design and structure of employee incentives
and is responsible for approwing the key terms of employment, for the Executive Directors or any senior executive who reports directly to the CEQ
The full terms of reference for the Committee are available on the Company s corporate website

Committee activities during the year
The table betow shows a summary of the key areas discussed by the Committee duning the financial year

July 2013 November 2013 February 2014 April 2014 June 2014
Performance outcomes for  Perfarmance update - Performance update - Performance update - Polcy review on 2014
benus LTIP and OP bonus LTIPand CIP beonus LTI® and CP benus LTIP and CIP Directors Remuneration
Target setting for 2013114 Update on2013reporting 2014 Directors’ New reporting and Report
Review draft Directors season f:m:;:i::f: Report imphcations for Sky :gp;o:;hetnot Shareholder
Remuneratron Report Shareholder feedback and qu Bag
proxy voting guidance Benchmarking for
2014 Directors’ Executive Directors
Remuneration Report
requirements
Adwisors to the Committee

Towers Watson acted as independent advisors to the Cormmuttee throughout the year The Committee s satisfied that the adwce it receves on
Executive Directors remuneration is independent and abjective Terms of reference are moritered throughout the appointment Towers Watson
subsenbes to the Remuneration Consultants Group s Code of Conduct in relaton to executive remuneration The Code clanfies the scope and
conduct of the role of remuneration consultants when adwvising UK listed comparues The fees pard to Towers Watson for their serwcesin relatron
to directors pay totalled E193 612,

The CEQ and the Director for People prowde information and advice and attend meetings as required The Committee s also supported by the
Company Secretary Finance and Human Resources functicns Nondviduals are involved in the decision in relation to their own remuneratton
The Remuneration Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2014 and signed on its behalf by

Tracy Clarke
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ report and statutory disclosures

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 the Corporate governance
repart on pages 48 to 58 and information contained in the Strategic
report forms part of thus Directors’ repart and are incorporated

by reference

The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated and parent company financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2014

Dwidends

The Directors recommend a final divmidend for the year ended 30 June
2014 of 20 O pence per ordinary share which together with the
intenm dividend of 12 0 pence paid to shareholders on 22 Apnt 2014
willmake a total diwdend for the year of 32 0 pence (2013 300 pence)
Subject to approval at the 2014 AGM, the final dividend wil be pad

on 5 December 2014 to shareholders appearing on the register at.

the close of business on 14 November 2014

Share caprtal

The Company s issued ordirary share capital at 30 June 2014
compnised one class of ordinary shares All of the issued ordinary
shares are fully pard and rank equally in all respects Further details
of the Company's share capital 1s disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated finanoial statements

Interests in voting nghts

information provided to tha Company pursuant to the UK Listing
Authonty s Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTRs) 1s published
on a Regulatory Information Senvice and on the Company's website
As at 30 June 2014 the Company had been notified under DTRS

of the following significant holdings of voting rights inits shares

Amount  Percent of
Identity of person or group owned dass

2ist Century Fox UK Nominees Lirnited' 611676643 3914
BlackRock Inc? 88 682765 506

1 Direct holding whuch (s subject to restnetions on its voung rights
(please see “Vouing nghts” below)
2 Indirect hotding,

There have been no changes to the above significant holdings between
1 July and 25 July 2014

At 25 July 2014 3914% of the Company s shares are held by 21st
Cantury Fox UK Nominees Lismited acomparny incorporated under
the laws of England and Wales which s an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of 215t Century Fox The Murdoch Family Trust beneFfigially
owns less than 1% of 23st Century Fox Qass A Common Stock and

38 4% of its Class B Common Stock As a result of Rupert Murdochs
abiity to appoint certain members of the Board of Directors of the
corporate trustee of the Murdoch Family Trust Rupert Murdoch may
be deemed to be a beneficial owner of the shares beneficially owned
tay the Murdoch Family Trust. Rupert Murdoch however, disclaims any
beneficial ownership of those shares Also Rupert Murdoch reports
beneficial ownership of an addional 1% of 21st Century Fox Class B
Common Stock Rupert Murdoch s reported benefictal ownership of
21st Century Fox also includes 8,729,432 shares of Class A Common
Stock held by the GCM Trust that s administered by independent
trustees for the benefit of Rupert Murdoch s minor children however
Rupert Murdoch disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares Thus
Rupert Murdach may ba deemed to beneficially own in the aggregate
less than 1% of 215t Century Fox Class A Common Stock and 39 74%

of its Class B Common Stock although as stated above Rupert
Murdoch discdlaims beneficral ownership of the shares of 21st Century
Fox beneficially owned by the Murdoch Family Trust and the GCM Trust.

The Employee Share Ownership Plan {"ESCP*) was established to
satisfy awards made to participants of the Company's employee

share plans The trustees of the ESOP have waved the nght to
dividends payable in respect of the shares held by it except to the
extent of 00001% of the dividend payable on eachshare At 30 June
2014 the ESQP had aninterest In 17,308 999 of the Company’s ardinary
shares The Trustees wha are independent of the Company have full
discretion onhow they vote the ardinary shares held by the ESOP

Voung rights

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that subject to any
rights or restnctions attached to any shares on a show of hands every
member present in person or by proxy shall have onevote andcna
poll every member shall have ane vote for every share of which he s
aholder On apoll votes may t»e given either personally or by proxy or
(in the case of a corporate member) by a duly authonsed representative

A sharehalder entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting

may appoint one or more proxies to attend and voteinstead of im
If a member appoints more than one proxy he must specify the
number of shares which each proxy 1s entitled to exerase nghts over
A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company Holcers of the
Cempany s ordinary shares do not have cumnulative voting nghts
Avoting agreement; dated 21 September 2005 was entered into
between the Company BSkyB Holdco Inc, 21st Century Foxand Zist
Century Fox UK Nominees Limited which became unconditional on

4 November 2005 and caps 21st Century Fox UK Nominees Limited s
voting nghtsat any general meeting at 3719% The provisions of the
voting agreement cease to apply on the first to occur of a number of
creumstances which indude the date on which a general offer is made
by an independent person (as defined in the voung agreement) for the
ordinary share capital of the Company

Restnctions on transfer of secunties

There are no specific restrnctions on the transfer of securnties in

the Company which is governed by the Articles of Assoaaton and
prevallinglegslation, noris the Company aware of any agreements
between holders of secuntes that may result in restnctions on the
transfer of securities or that may result in restrictions en voting rights

Vanation of nghts

Subject to the Comparues Act 2006 nghts attached to any dlass
of shares may be vaned with the consent in writing of the holders
of three-quarters in nominal value of the issued shares of tha dass
or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate
general meebing of the shareholders

Directors powers in relation to the Company ssuing and buying
backits ownshares

At the Company’s AGM on 22 Novernber 2013 the Company was
granted the authonty to return £500 miflian of capital to shareholders
wia a share buy-back programme Ths authonty wil apply unti the
conclusion of this year's AGM and is subject to an agreement between
the Company and 215t Century Fox (and others) dated 25 July 2013
whereby following any market purchases of shares by the Company
215t Century Fox would sell to the Company sufficient shares to
matntain its percentage shareholding at the same level prior to those
market purchases
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(continued)

At the Company s AGM on 1 November 2012, the Company was granted
the authonty to return £500 midlion of caprtal to shareholders via

a share buy-back programme This authonity was subject to an
agreement between the Company and 21st Century Fox (and others)
dated 28 July 2012 on substantrally the same terms as the 2011 Share
Buy-Back Agreement

At the Company s AGM en 22 November 2011 tha Company was
granted the authonty te return £750 midlicn of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programme This authonty was subyect toan
agreement between the Company and 2ist Century Fox (and others)
dated 28 July 201 whereby followang any market purchases of shares
by the Company, 2ist Centery Fox would sell to the Company suffraent
shares to mamntain its percentage shareholding at the same level as
appiled pnor to those market purchases (the "2011 Share Buy-back
Agreement™) The price payable to 21st Century Fox would be the pnce
payable by the Company in respect of the relevant market purchases

Articles of assoaation

The Company’s Articles of Association may only be amended by special
resolution at a general meeting of shareholders

Board of Directors and therrinterests

The Directors who served dunng the year were Mick Ferguson
Jeremy Darroch, Andrew Griffith Chase Carey Tracy Clarke Dawnd
DeVoe Matthieu Pigasse Martin Gilbert Adine Grate Andy Higginson
Dave Lewts James Murdoch Danny Rimer Arthur Siskind and Andy
Sukawaty The biographical details of the Directors of the Company
are given on pages 45 and 47

The Diractors interests in the ordinary shares and options of the
Company are disclosed wathin the Directors remunearation report
on pages 731075

Appointment and retirement of Directors

The Directors may from ume tc me appoint one or more Directors
Any such Director shall hold effice only until the next AGM and shall
then be eligible for reappointment by the Company's shareholders
AT the Company's 2014 AGM all current Executrve and Mon-Executive
Directors will retire and offer themselves for reappointmentin
compliance with the Code with the exception of Andy Higginsen
who will retire from the Board at the 2014 AGM

Alternate Directors

A Director may appoint any other Director or any other person to act as
his Alternate. An Alternate Director shall be entitied to recene notce

of and attend meetings of the Directors and committees of Directors

of which his appointeris a member and not able to attend The Alternate
Director shall be entitled to vote at such meetings and generaly perform
all the functions of bus appointer as a Director in his absence

On the resignation of the appainter for any reason the Alternate
Directer shall cease to be an Alternate Director The appointer may
alsa remove his Alternate Director by notice to the Company Secretary
signed by the appointer revoking the appomniment

An Allernate Birector shall not be entitled to fees for hus service
as an Alternate Cirector

Chase Carey Dawd DeVoe Arthur Siskind and James Murdoch have
appointed each of the others to act as thew Alternate Drrector

Equal opportunities

The Company 15 an equal opportunities employer and believes that
everyone should have full and fair consideration for all vacanaes
promouons trainng and development Should an employee become
disabled dunng their emplayment at Sky where possible the Company
wll actively retrain and adjust the environment to allow them to
maxmise the employee s potential Overthe course of the year the
Company has partnered with vanous not-for-profit organisations with
the aim of providing more oppertunities for people with disabilities
Further information can be found on page 35 and at skycomworkforsky

Diversity

The Company treats all people equally, Fairly with respect and without
prejudice Decistons about people s employment with the Company
are based on ability performance and gqualifications This pnnaple
also apphies when the Company makes deasions about development
promation pay and benefits

The Company delivers some of the most dverse content and services
avallable to a wide range of consumers and it values the same diversity
within the business and promotes a culture of opportunity for all
regardless of background The Company does not tolerate unfair
treatment or discnimination at work based on ethniaty gender age
religion disability or sexual orientaton

As at 30 June 2014 the table below demonstrates diversity
throughout the Group

Male Female
Board of Directors’ 13 87% 2 13%
Senior managers' 105 4% 36 26%
Executive direct reports to the CEQ' 7 70% 3 30%
All employees? 14740 66% 7508 34%

¥ As defined in the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors Report)
Reguiations 2013

2 Based on full-ume equivalent emplayees from corkinuing operations and
axcluding people who work for our joint ventures

2013N4 dara is incependently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed online at

skycom/biggerprcture

Employee involvement

Further detaill on employee engagement together with the informagon
on diversity and talent development can be found on pages 32to 35

Graenhouse gas emissions

Disclosures concerning greenhouse gas enussions became mandatory
under the Comparies Act 2006 tn the current financial year

Since 2008/09 we've reduced our emssions relative to revenue
(tCO.e/Em) by 40% This means we are on track to meet our target of
hahang our emissions relative to revenue (t/Em} by 2020 Qur absalute
carbon enmissions have decreased by over 108 since 2008/09 as a
result of our continued long-term investments in Improving the
efficiency of our buildings fleet and travel despite growing significantly
as a business

This year across all of the sites that we have a degree of influence over
we have decreased our emissions for electnaty and gas For example
across our Scotush sites the new Bulding Management System (BMS)
commissioned In July 2013 has allowed for better control and
monitoring and led to reduced gas and electrical usage Overall
electnaity use i Scotland has decreased by almost a third The two
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biomass boilers installed this year have further decreased the gas
usage at these sites by about 70% Net just this but as the buldings
are working more efficiently the need for the heat from the biomass
has subsequently reduced

We measure our CO.e emIssions in ine with the greenhouse gas
protocol Our total gross CO,e emissions includes all drect Greenhouse
Gas emissions Qur net emissions take Into account the renewable
energy procured from a renewable energy tanff wath Scotush and
Southern Energy Group Scottish and Southern retain on aur behalf
the Levy Exemption Certificates and Renewable Energy Guarantee of
Ongin (REGOs) in addition, we offset our total gross emissions through
the purchase of Voluntary Carbon Standard offsets Historical data s
recalculated each year inline wath the latest guidebnes to Defra/DECC's
Greenhouse Gas Corversion Factors for Company Reporting and
restated accordingly Our CO,e emissions data s independently
assured by Deloitte LLP

More information about our environmental targets and performance
can be found at skycom/tiggerpicture

A table detaling the ermissions during the year 1s below

Total CO,e emissions (tCO,e)'

Baseline

2008/09 2012113 201314
Scope 12 20274 20 860 20808
Fuel combustion (natural
gas, diesel and vehicles) 18453 20580 20350
QOperation of facilities
(refrigerants) 1821 280 458
Scope 2° 85250 72029 74140
Purchased electricity net 15347 4191 980
Purchased electnaity gross 85250 72008 74138
Purchased steam - 21 2
Tetal (Scopeland 2) net
CO,e emissions (tCO.e) 35621 25051 178

Total (Scope 1and 2) gross

CG,e enyssions (tCO.e) 105524 92,889 94948
Carbon intensity (tCO,e/Em revenue)’
Baseline
(2008/09) 201213 201314 Target

Carbon intensity 206 128 124
{tCOe)Em
Reduction in gross -38 -40 -50
COeemissions
relative to revenue (%)

Motes.

1 2013A4 datais independently assured by Delaitte LLP and can be viewed onhne at
sky com/biggerpicture

2 Direct greanhouse gas amissions
3 indwect Greenhouse Gas emissions from consumption of purchased etectncty
heat or steam

Governance - Directors report and statutory disciosures

Significantagreements

The following sigrificant agreements which were in force at 30 June 2034
take effect, alter or terminate on a change of control of the Company

Premer .eague
In 2012 British Sky Broadcasting Linuted (a Group subsidiary) entered
into an agreement (the “PL Licence™) with The Football Association
Premier League Limited {the “PL") pursuant to which the Group was
awarded five of seven avalable packages of live audie-visual rights
for Premier League football (the seven packages are together the
Live Packages™) together consisting of 176 ive matches per season
The PL will net award Live Packages containing in the aggregate more
than 116 live matches per season to a single licensee (either on its
own or as part of a consortium or through one or more of its related
parties) (the “Single Buyer Rule™) Pursuant to the PL Licence, the PL
can suspend and/or terminate all of the nghts which are included in
or exerasable as part of, Live Packages containing in the aggregate up
to 38 live matches per season in the event that a change of contral of
the Company eccurs at any time prior to the expiry of the PL Licence
which 1F 1t had occurred prior to the award of the Live Packages to
the Group would have resulted in a breach of the Single Buyer Rule

Revohang Credit Facility

The Group has a £743 milllon syndicated revolving credit facility ("RCF™
with a matunty date of 31 Octaber 2018 In the event of a change of
control of the Company as a result of which both S&P and Moody's
downgrade the Company s credit rating befow investment grade within
90 days thelenders canrequire any amounts ocutstanding under the
RCF to be repaid {other than in the event that 21st Century Fox or any
subsidiary or holding company thereof (or a subsidiary of such holding
company) acquires such control)

2ist Century Fox voting agreement

On 21 September 2005 the Company BSkyS Holdco tnc, 21st Century
Fox UK Norminees Limited and 21st Century Fox entered into a voting
agreement, pursuant to which 21st Century Fox UK Nominees Limited s
voting nights at any general meeting are capped at 3719% (tha "Voting
Agreement”) The provisions of the Voting Agreement cease to apply
nter alia on achange of control of the Company

EMTN bondissue

©n 3 Apnl 2007 the Group established a euro medium term note
programme {the "EMTN Programme~} which prowides the Group wiath

a standardised documentation platform to allow for senior debt
i1s5uance in the Eurobond markets On 7 February 2014 the programme
was Updated and expanded to become a global medium term note
programme (the “‘GMTN Programme”™) The maximum potential
i1ssuance under the GMTN Programme s £2.5 billion On 14 May 2007
under the EMTN Programme the Company issued Eurobonds
consisting of E300 milhon guaranteed notes paying 6 000% snterest
and maturing on 14 May 2027 (the “Notes”) Pursuant to the final terms
attaching to the Notes the Company will be required to make an offer
to redeem or purchase Its Notes at its principal amount, plus interest
up to the date of redemption or repurchase If there 1s a change of
cantrol of the Company (1) which if the Notes carry an investment
grade credit raung results in a downgrade to a non-investment grade
rating or a withdrawal of that rating or (if) where, If the Notes carry a
non-investment grade rating results o a downgrade by one or more
notches or a wmithdrawat of that non-investment grade rating or (i)
where If the Notes do not carry a credit rating, the Company does net
seek such aratng or s unab'e to achieve such a rating, provided that
in each case the decision to downgrade, withdraw or not to award a
credit rating oceurs within a certam period of time after the change
of contral and the relevant raung agency ates that such deasion(s)
resulted from the change of control
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(continued)

February 2008 November 2008 and November 2012 bond issues

In February 2008 the Group entered into an indenture in respect of
US%$750 million & 100% senior unsecured notes due 2018 In November
2008 the Group entered into an indenture In respect of USE500
mullion 9 S00% serior unsecured notes due 2018 In November 2012,
the Group updated the November 2008 indenture in respect of a
further issuance of US$B00 mitlon 3 125% senior unsecured notes
due November 2022 Pursuant to the final terms attaching tothe
secunties the Cempany will be required to make an offer to redeem
or purchase 1ts secunties at a price equal to 101% of their pnnaipal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the date of
redemption or repurchase if there s a change of control of the
Company {1) which if the secunties carry an investiment grade credit
rating results in a downgrade to a non-nvestment grade raung or

a withdrawal of that rating or () whuch If the securities carry a
non-nvestment grade rating, results in a downgrade by one or more
notehes or a withdrawal of that non-investment grade rating or (i}
where If the secunities do not carry a credit rating, the Company does
not seek such arating or s unable to athieve such aratng, prowided
that in each case the decrsion to downgrade withdraw or not to award
a credit rating occurs within a certain penod of time after the change
of control and the relevant rating agency cites that such deasion(s)
resulted from the change of control

UK broadicasting icences

The Group 15 party to a number of Ofcom broadcasting heences

for the broadeast of the Sky Channels The Broadcasting Act 1990

({as amended by the Broadcasting Act i996 and the Communications
Act) lays down a number of restrictions on those parties permitted

to hold Ofcom broadeasting icences Among those restncted from
holding Ofcom breadcasting licences or from controlling a licensed
company are {a) local authonties (b) politcal bodies (¢) religious
bodies, (d) any company controlled by any of the previous categones or
by their officers or associates {g) advertising agencies or any company
controlled by such an agency or in which it holds more than a 5%
interest Licensees have an ongoing obligation to comply with these
ownership restnctions Falure by a icensee to do so (esther by the
licensee becoming a “disqualified person” or any change affecting the
nature charactenstcs or control of the licensee which would have
precluded the original grant of the icence) may constitute a breach of
the icence and If not rectified could result in revocation of the licence

Ofcom also has a duty under the Broadcasting Acts to be satisfied
that any person holding a broadcasting Iicenca s fit and proper to
hold those hcences and may revoke those licences If )t ceases tobe
so satisfied

Financial instruments

Details of the Group s use of financialinstruments together wath
infarmation on our finanoal nsk management objectives and policies
and our exposure to financial nsks can be found in note 22 to the
consohdated financial statements

Pohtical contributions

Poltical contributions of the Group in the UK dunng 2014 amounted
1o ml (2013 nil}

Branches

The Group through varous subsidiaries has established branches
in a number of different junsdictions 1nwhich the business operates

Going concern

The Group s business actrtes together with the Factors likely to
affect its future development performance and position are set out
in the Strategic report on pages 2 to 45 The financial position of
the Group 1ts cash flows and igudity posiion are described 1n the
financral review on pages 36 to 38 In additon notes 20 to 22 to the
consolidated finanoal statements include details of the Groups
treasury actvities long-term funding arrangements financial
instruments and hedging activittes and exposure to financlal risk

As setout above the Group has sufficient financial resources which
together with internally generated cash flows will continue to prowvide
sufficient sources of lquidity to Fund its current operations including
1ts contractual and commeraal commitments as set out on pages 123
10124 its approved capital expenditure and any proposed drvidends
and the Group 1s well placed to manage 1ts business nsks successfully
despite the current economic cutiook

After making enguinies the Directors have formed the judgement,
at the time of approving the consolidated financral statements that
there s a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis tn prepanng the consolidated financial statements

Disclosure of informatton to auditors

In accordance with the provistons of section 418 of the Companies Act
2006 each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the
date of approval of this report cenfirms that

» 8o far as the Director s aware there s no relevant audit information
{as defined in the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company’s
auditor s unaware and

the Director has taken all the steps that he/she cught to have taken
as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any refevant audit
information (as defined)and to establish that the Company's
auditor 1s aware of that nformation

Auditors

Deloitte LLP the auditors of the Company have expressed thesr
willingness to continue in office A resolution to reappoint them

as the Company’s auditors and to authonse the Directors to determine
thewr remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Annual General Meeting

The venue and timing of the Company s 2014 AGMis detailed in the
notice convening the AGM which willbe available for download from
the Company’s corporate website at skycom/corporate

By order of the Board ﬁ "

Chns Taylor
Company Secretary

25 July 2014
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Statement of Directors’

The Directors ar e responsible for preparing the Annuat Report
and the financial statementsin accordance with applicable iaw
and regulations

Company lawrequires the Directors to prapare finandal statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required

to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
International Finangal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Unton and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have alsa
chosen to prepare the parent Company financal statements under
IFRSs as adopted by the EU Under Company law the Directors must
not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give

2 true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that peried In preparing these
financial statements International Accountng Standard 1 requires
that Directors

+ properly select and apply accountng polices

» presentinformation including accounting policres i1 a manner
that provides relevant, reliable comparable and understandable
information

provide additional discosures when comphance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions
on the entity’s finanwat positien and finanoal performance, and

make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue
as a going congern

The Directors are responstble for keeping adeguate accounting
recards that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the finanaal position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Cormpanies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregufanties

The Directors are respensible for the maintenance and integnty of
the corporate and financal information included on the Company s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other junsdictions

't of Dinectors” raspansibilitias

responsibilities

Curectors responsibility statement

The Birectors confirm that to the best of their knowledge

-

The financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs
give a true and Farr view of the assets hablities financial position
and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings induded
In the consedidation taken as awhole

[ )

The strategic reportincdudes a fair review of the development

and performance of the business and the position of the Company
and the undertakings ncludedin the consolidation taken as a whole
together with a descripuon of the pninapalnisks and uncertainties
that they face and

w

The Annual Report and financial statements taken as awhole,

are fair balanced and understandable and provide the information
necassary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance,
business modef and strategy

By order of the Board

Jeremy Darroch Andrew Griffith

Chief Executive Of ficer Chief Financial Officer
25 Juty 2004
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Finandal statements - independent Auditor's report

Independent Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Bnitish Sky Broadcasting Group plc

Opinion on the finanoal statements of Bntish Sky Broad casting
Group plc

in our opinton the conseltdated and Parent Company finanaal
statements of Bntish Sky Broadeasting Group ple

» give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group's and Parent
Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2014 and of therr profit for the
year then ended

.

have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation as regards
the consolidated financal statements

The conselidated financial statements comprise the consolidated
and company income statements the consolidated and company
statements of comprehensive income the consolidated and company
balance sheets the consolidated and company cash flow statements
the cansolidated and company statements of changes in equity

and the related notes 1 to 31 The financial reporting framewark

that has been applied inther preparation 1s applicable law and

IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

Our assessment of risks significant to our audit

Separate opinton in relationto [FRSs as issued by the \ASB

As explained in note 1 to the consclidated financial statements

in additien to complylng wath its legal obligation to apply IFRSs as
adopted by the Eurgpean Union, the Group has also applred IFRSs
as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Soard (IASB)

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements comply with
IFRSs as issued by the IASB

Going Concern

Ag required by the Listing Rules we have renewed the Directors
statement on page BO that the Group s agoing concern
We confurm that

+ we have not identified matenal uncertanties related to events
or conditions that may cast sigrificant doubt on the Group s
ability to continue as a going concemn, and

+

we have concluded the Director’s use of the going concem basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements to
be appropnate

However because not all future events or conditions can be predicted
this statement 1 not a guarantee as tothe Group s ability to continue
as a going concern

There has been no significant change In the Group s operations nor in our assessment of matenality therefore the assessed risks of matenal
misstatement descnbed below which are those that had the greatest effect on the audit strategy the allocation of resources in the audit,
and directing the efforts of the engagement team are the same nsks as in the prior year

Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the nsk

Revenue recognitson

The allecation of retal subscription revenue to each element of a bundied

transaction requires judgement as descrtbed in the Groups cnucal
accounting policies and the use of judgement on page 95

The risk 1s that iInappropniate allocations could lead to non-cornphiance
with accounting standards and inappropriate acceleration ar deferral
of revenue principally for new customers

We evaluated management s revenue recogrition policy arnd
assessment in respect of accounting for bundled transacuons
against relevant accounting standards and guidance and tested
the implementation of the policy

Our procedures induded understanding and testing the cperating
effactiveness of controls in respect of the Group’s biling, viewing and
customer relationshup management systems and the reconciliation
processes between these systems andwith the general ledger
accounting systemn We also performed substantive analytical
procedures over retail subscnption revenue streams
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Risk

How the scope of our audn responded to the rsk

General entertainment programming

Determining the triming and amount of the recogmtion of general
entertamnment programming expense requires |udgement as set out in the
Group s cntical accounting policies and the use of judgement on page 96

The nsk identified 15 that the policy selected and applied by management
to expense general entertainment programming does not recognise the
cost of Inventoryn line with the expected value from each broadcast

We examined the amorusation method for general entertainment
programming inventory taking into account the diffening genres
of programmes wiewang profiles and industry benchmarks

Our procedures included

= Benchmarking management’s policy against industry practice

« Testing the design and implementation of controls over the
addition and amortisation of general entertainment programming

Comparing amer tisation profiles against viewing trends from
independent source data

Performing sensitvity analyses to understand the impact
of selecting alternative amortisation profiles

Considenng the impact tha impact of entertainment programming
on brand value, customer acquisition and churn and

Evaluating the results of our analysis on both a programme gense
and channel basis

Camtal expenditure

The assessment and bming of whether assets meet the capitalisatien
anteria set out In1AS 16 Property Plant and Equiprment and IAS 38
Intangible Assets reguires judgement as well as the selection of
approprate useful econormc hves as set out in the Groups critical
accounting pokcies and the use of judgement on page 95 In addition
determining whether there 1s any indication of impairment of the
carrying value of assets a'so requires jJudgement

As capital expenditure represents a matenai cost for the group there
1s a risk that expenditure on intangible and tangible non-current assets
1s Inapproprately capitalised against relevant accounting gurdance

and that assets are not recoverable at their carrying value

We tested operating effectiveness of controls in respect of the
capitalisation of assets and examined carrying values for mpairment,

We tested all material and a sample of other capital expenditure
projects and examined management's assessment as to whether the
project spend met the recognition criteria set forth in IAS 16 Property
Plant and Equpment and |AS 38 intangible Assets Our procedures
included understanding the business case for each project challenging
any core assumplions or estimates venfying capital project
authurisation tracing project costs 1o third-party evidence and
assessing the useful econormuc life attributed to the asset

In addition we considered whether any indicators of impairment were
present by understanding the business rationale for each project and
performing ndependent reviews for Indicators of imparment as well
as testing management s cantrols to identify impairment of assets

We reported to the Audit Commuittee that our audit work on these nsks was concluded satisfactorily and their own consideration of these nsks

15 set out on page 54

Cur audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole within the context
of our assessment of matenality as described below and not to express an opimon en mdmdual audit risks ndmdual tems or disclosures in the
financial statements Our opinion on the financial statements 1s not modified with respect to any of the key risks described above, and we donot

express an opinion on these indmdual matters
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Independent Auditor’s report

(continued)

Our assessment of materlality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement that makes

it probable that the econormic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabie
parson, rehang on the financal statements would be changed or
nfluenced We use matenality in both planming the scope of our

audit work and 1n evaluating the results of our work

We determined matenality for the Group to be £50 milhon (2013

£50 rulhor) which 1s approximately 4% (2013 4%) of adjusted pre-tax
profit, 5% (2013 5%} of equity and 5% (2013 4%) of statutory profit
before taxation

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to

the Committee all audit differences in excess of £2.5 millon (2013
E2 Smillion), as well as differences below that threshold thatin aur
view warranted reporting on gualitative grounds We also report
to the Audit Committee any significant disclosure matters that we
identify when assessing the overall presentation of the financial
statements We confirmed to the Audit Committee that we had

ne significant disclosure matters to report

An overview of the scope of our audit

Cur audit scope focused on the Groups UK and lreland operations,
which were subject to a full scope audit for the year ended 30 June
204 Our audit scope encompasses all principal business units

of the Group and substantially all of the Group s assets, reveniue
and operating profit All audit work was performed by the group
audit team

Opiruens on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In cur opinion

« theinformaticn given in the Strategic report and the Directors
Repert for the finanaal year for which the financial statements
are prepared 15 consistent with the finanaial statements and

» the partof the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006

Matters onwhich we are required to repart by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required Lo report to youf
In our opINIBN

» we have not recerved all the nformation and explanations we
require for our audit or

» adequate acoounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us or

the Parent Company financal statements are notin agreement
with the accounting records and returmns

We have nothing to report inrespect of these matters

Directors' remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report If Inour
opinton, certain disclosures of Directors remuneration have not been

made or the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited

15 not In agreement with the accounting records and returns We have

nothung to report ansing from these matters

Corporate Governance Statement,

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company s

comphance with mine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Our duty to read other information inthe Annual Report
Under the International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
we are required to repoart ta youf i ouropimion information in
the Annual Report s

+ matenally inconsistent with the information In the audited
financal statements or

apparently matenally ncorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, cur knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of
performing our audit or

« otherwse misleading

In particular we are required to consider whether we have identified
any inconsistenaes between our knowledge acquired during the audit
and the Directors statement that they consider the annual report

is fair balanced and understandable and whether the annual report
appropriately discloses those matters that we communicated to

the Audit Committea which we consider should have been disclosed
We confirm that we have not identified any such incensistenaes or
misleading statements
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditor

Responsibility of Durectors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors responsibilities
sat out on page 81 the Directors are responsible for the adequacy of
the accounting records the preparation of the financial statements
from those records and for betng satisfied that the financial
statements give a true and fair view

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinionon the financial
statements In accordance with applicable law and international
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require

us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards
for Auditors We confirm that in our professional judgement,

we are independent within the meaning of those standards and

our objectivity 1s not compromised We also complywith International
Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and Irefand) Our audit methodology
and tools aim to ensure that cur guality control procedures are
effective understood and applied Qur quality controls and
systems inducde our dedicated professignal standards review

team strategically focused second partner reviews and
independent partner reviews

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members as a body

n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company s members those matters we are required to state tothem
In an auditors report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibllity to anyone
other than the Cormpany and the Campany s members as a body

for our audit work. for this report or for the opintons we have formed

Scope of the audit of the finanaal statements

An audit involves cbtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the finanaal statements are free from matenal
misstatement whether caused by fraud ar errar This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting polcies are appropnate to
the Group s arcumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of
the financial statements In addition we read all the financial ang
non-financial infermation in the Annuaf Report toidentify matenal
nconsistenaes with the audited financal statements and to identify
any nformation that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on

or matenally inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
imphcations for aur report

Wiliam Touche
(Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf of
Deloitte LLP Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London -
United Kingdom -

25 July 2074
SO et

Financial statements - Independent, Auditor's report,
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Financial statements - Consoldated financal statements

Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m Em
Revenue 2 7632 7235
Operating expense 3 (647) (5944)
Operating profit 1161 129
Share of resuits of joint vantures and associates 13 5 46
Investment income 4 26 28
Finance costs 4 Q140 (108)
Profit before tax 5 1082 1,257
Taxation 7 217) (278)
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 865 079
Eamings per share from profit for the year (in pence)
Basic 8 55 4p 607p
Oiluted 8 549p 597p {
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated income statement
All results refate to continuing cperations
Consolidated statement of comprehensive ncome
for the year ended 30 June 2074
2014 2013
£m £m
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company BG5S 979
Other comprehensive Income
Arnounts recognised directlyin equity that may subsequently be recycled to the income statement
Gain on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 104 186
Loss on cash flow hedges (176} (27
Tax on cash flow hedges 39 7
(33 166
Amounts reclassified and reported in the income statement
Galn (loss) on cash flow hedges 137 48
Tax oncash flow hedges (3n n
106 (37
Other comprehensive Income for the year {net of tax) 73 129
Total comprehensive inceme for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 938 1108

All results relate to continuing operations

§6  Briush Sky Broadcasting Group pk




Annual Report 2034

Finanqal statements - Consohdated frnancal statements

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 June 2014

2014 2013
Notes Em Em
Non-current assets
Goodwll 10 1018 999
Intangible assets n 810 718
Preperty plant and equipment 2 1088 1041
Investments in joint veénturas and associates 13 173 164
Avallakle-for-sale investments 14 533 422
Deferred tax assets 15 3 38
Programme distrnbution nghts 16 20 17
Trade and other recevables 17 7 17
Derivative financial assets 21 195 360
3876 3776
Current assets
Ieventories 16 546 548
Trade and other receivables 17 635 591
Shori-term depostts 21 295 595
Cash and cash equivalents 21 1082 815
bDernvative financal assets 21 15 20
2573 2569
Total assets 6449 6,345
Current labilities
Barrowngs 20 n n
Trade and other payables 18 2286 2023
Current tax iabilities 128 176
Prowvisions 19 48 94
Derwvative financial habiliies 2 a6 13
2519 237
Non-current habiities
Borrowings 20 2658 2909
Trade and other payables 18 56 63
Prowvisions 19 14 14
Derivative financial habihties 2 129 29
Deferred taxhabilities 15 1 1
2858 3016
Total habiities 5,377 5333
Share capital 23 781 797
Share premium 24 1437 1437
Reserves 24 (1146) (1.222)
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 24 1072 1012
Total habilities and shareholders equity 6449 5,345

The accaompanying notes are anntegral part of this consolidated balance sheet

These consohdated finanaal statements of British Sky Broadcasting Group ple, registered number 02247735 have been approved and authonsed

for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2014 and were signed on its behalf by

Jeremy Darroch Andrew Griffith
Chief Executive Officer Chief Fingnaal

Bnysh Sky Broadcasung Groupple 87

uodasdidaens

BOURLIBADG)

SIUDUTIELS jeueUf

BONRULIOIUE SPIOYDIRYS




Annual Report 2014

Finandal statements - Cortobdated financal statements

Consolidated financial statements

(continued)
Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014
2014 2013

Notes m £m
Cash flows from operating actmues
{ash generated from operations 25 1769 1877
Interest recerved and dradends from avallable-for-sale Investments 27 29
Taxation paid (240) (300)
Net cash from operating activities 1556 1606
Cash flows from mvesting actiaties
Dividends recerved from joint ventures and associates 32 43
Net funding to jont ventures and associates &) (4)
Proceeds on disposal of an investment - 4
Purchase of property plant and equipment (2413 (203)
Purchase of intangible assets (302) (251)
Purchase of subsidianes (net of cash and cash equivalents purchased) 20) 9h
Purchase of available-for-sale investments [¢))] (€]
Decrease in short-term deposits 300 115
Net cash used in investing activities (244) (502)
Cash flows from financing actnties
Net proceeds from borrowings - 498
Repayment of obhigations under finance leases (&3] [¢)]
Proceeds from disposal of shares in Employee Share Ownearship Plan ("ESCP) n 18
Purchase of own shares for ESOP (164) (69)
Purchase of own shares for cancellation (266) ‘2N
interest pad (137) (128)
Ouvadends pard to shareholders (485) 441)
Net cash used in financing actrities (1045) (753}
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 267 351
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year a5 464
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,082 815

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consohdated cash flow statement,
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Consolidated statement of changes in eguity
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Finandal statements - Consolidated finaraal staternents

Total

Available- share-

Share Share ESOP Hedging for-sale Other Retained helders

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves earmings equity

Em £m Em Em £m £m £m £m

At 1July 2012 B37 1,437 [41¥)] 68 165 399 {1,850) 944

Profit for the year - - - - - - 979 o975

Revaluation of available-for-safe investments - - - - 186 - - 186
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - - - 7% - - - (75)

Tax on 1zems taken directly to equity - - - 18 - - - 8

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (57) 186 - 979 1108

Share-based payment - - (35) - - - 6l 26

Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - 8 B

" Share buy-back programme (see note 24)

- Purchase of own shares for cancellation (¢l - - - - 40 617) {617)
- Finanaial hability for close period purchases - - - - - - (16) {16)
Dividends - - - - - - {a4) (447)

At 30 June 2013 757 1437 (147 1 35 439 {1876) 1012

Profit for the year - - - - - - BGS 865

Revaluation of available-for-sale iInvestments - - - - 104 - - 104
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - - - 39 - - - 39

Tax onitems taken directly to equity - - - 8 - - - B

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - [€D)] 104 - 865 938
Share-based payment - - - - - (95) (93)

Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - 9 9

Share buy-back programme (see note 24)

- Purchase of own shares for cancellation {16} - - - - 16 (250) (250)
- Financial hability for close period purchases - - - - - - (59) (59;
Dindends - - - - - - {485) (485)

At 30 June 2014 781 1437 (145) 20) 455 455 (1,891} 1072

For a description of the nature and purpose of each equity reserve seenote 24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement of changes in equity
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Financal statements - Notes Lo the consokdated finanaal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc {the "Company™) is a publichimited
company incorperated in the United Kingdam ("UK™) and registered in
England and Wales The conseohdated financial statements include the
Company and its subsidianes (together the Group®) and 1ts interests
n associates and jointly-controlled entities

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated finanaal statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFR5") as adopted by the European Umion ("EU*Y the Companies
Act 2006 and Article 4 of the International Accounting Standard
(IAS™) Regulations In addition the Group also complied with IFRS
as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (TIASB™)

b) Basis of preparation

The consohdated finanoal statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis (as set out in the Directors Report)and on an histoncal
cost basis except for the remeasurement to fair value of certain
financial assets and habilities as described in the accountng policies
below The Group has adopted the new accounting pronouncements
which became effective this year none of which had any significant
impact on the Group s results or financial position This indudes the
adoption of IFRS 10 “Consclidated Financial Statements™ IFRS 11

“Joint Arrangements” fFRS 12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitres®
amendments to IAS 28 *Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”
and IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement™ where adoption on 1 July 2013

is considered 1o be earty adoption for the purposes of complying with
IFRS as endersed by the Eurcpean Unien

The Group maintans a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday
nearest ta 30 June in each year (n fiscal year 2014 this date was 29
June 2014 this being a 52 week year (fiscal year 2013 30 June 2013

52 week year) For convenience purposes the Group continues to date
115 consohdated financial statements as at 30 June and to refer to the
accounting penod as a “year™ for reporting purposes The Group has
¢classified assets and llabilities as current when they are expected

to be realised in orintended for sale or consumption in, the normal
operating cycle of the Group

¢) Basis of consolidation

| Substdiaries

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Company Control s
achieved where the Company has exsting nghts that gwve it the
current abifity to direct the actmties that affect the Company's
returns and exposure or rights to varable returns from the entity
Subsidianes are included in the consolrdated financial statements
of the Company from the date control of the subsidiary commences
untd the date that control ceases Intra-group balances and

any unrealised gains and losses or iIncormne and expenses ansing
from tntragroup transactions are eliminated i prepanng the
consolidated financlal statements

11 Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities where the Group has significant influence
but not control or jaint control over the relevant activities of the
entity Joint ventures are joint arrangements whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement

These consslidated financiz statements include the Group s share of
the total recogrised gains and losses of associates and joint ventures
using the equity method from the date that significant influence or
joint control commences to the date that it ceases based on present
ownership interests and excluding the possible exercise of patential
voting nghts less any smpairment losses (see accounting palicy 1)
When the Group s Interest in an assoaate or joint venture has been
reduced to mil because the Group s share of losses exceeds Its interest
tn the associate or joint venture, the Group only provides for addivonal
losses to the extent that it has incurred legal or constructive obli:gations
to fund such losses, or where the Group has made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture Where the disposal of an investment
in an associate or jaint venture 1s considered to be highly probable the
tnvestment ceases to be equity accounted and, Instead 1s dassified
as held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell

d) Goodwill

Bustness combinations that have occurred since 1 July 2004 the
date of transition to IFRS (the "Transiuon Date™) are accounted for by
applying the acquisibon method of accounting Following this method
goodwilbis mually recogrused on consolidation representing the
difference between the fairvalue cost of the business combination
and the fair value of the idenufiable assets, habilities and contingent
assets and habulities assumed

Inrespect of business combinations that cccurred prior to the Transition
Date goodwill has been included at the amounts recognised under
the Group s UK Generally Accepted Accounting Prinaples ("UK GAAP")
accounting poliaes on the Transition Date On disposal of a subsidiary
associate or joint venture the attnbutable amount of goodwillis
included in the determination of profit or loss on disposal except for
goodwill written of f to reserves under UK GAAP prier to the Transition
Date which 1s not renstated and 15 not included in determining

any subsequent gain or loss on disposal

Goodwll s stated at cost less any tmpairment losses and 15 tested

at least annually for mpairment based on the recoverable amounts
of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill has been allocated
Any impairment identified is recognised immediately in the iIncome
statement and s not subsequently reversed The carrying amount of
goodwill in respect of assooates and joint ventures 1s included in the
carrying amount of the investment in the associate or joint venture
Goodwllis tested fer impairment in line with accounting pelicy | below

@) Intangible assets and proparty plant and equipment ("PPE™)

1 Intangible assets

Research expenditure 1s recognised i operabing expense in the
income statement as the expenditure s incurred Devetopment
expenditure (relating to the application of research knowledge to
plan or design new ar substantially improved products for sale or

use within the business) 1s recogrised as an intangible asset from

the point at which the Group has the intenbion and ability to generate
probable future economic benefits from the development expendituce
that the developmant s technically feasible and that the subsequent
expenditure can be measured rehably Any other development
expenditure 1s recogrised in operating expense as incurred

Other intangible assets, which are acquired by the Group separately
or through a business combination are nttially stated at cost or fawr
value respectively less accumulated amortisation and impasrment
losses other than those that are classified as held for sale which are
stated at the lower of carryng amount and fair value less costs to sell

$0 BntishSky Broadcasting Group plc
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Amartisation of an intangble asset begmns when the asset s avalable
for use and 1s charged to the income statement through operating
expense on a straight-line basis over theintangible asset s esumated
usefu! ife principally being a penod between 1and 25 years unless
the asset Iife1s judged to be indefinite Dunng the year the Group
revised the estimated useful (ife of certain intangible assets The
revisions were accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting
estmate and as a result the amortisation charge in the current year
has decreased by £24 millien If the useful ife s indefinite or the
asset s not yet avalable for use no amortisauen s charged and
animparment test is camed out at least annually Other intangble
assets are tested for impairment in ine wath accounting policy 1 below

Il Property, plant and equipment

Owned PPE ts stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
anyimparrment lossas (see accounting palicy i), other than those
Items that are dassified as held for sale which are stated at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell When an item of
PPE compnses major components having different useful economic
lives, the components are accounted for as separate items of PPE

Assets held under finance leases which confer nghts and obligations
similar to those attached to owned assets are treated as PPE
(see accounting policy n)

The cost of PPE less estimated residual value 1s depreciated in
operating expense on a straight-ine basis over its estmated useful
life Land and assets that are not yet avallable for use arenot
depreciated Panapal useful economic lives used for this purpose are
= Freehold buildings 25 to 40 years
« Equipment, furmiture and fixtures 3 to20vyears

Lesser of lease term and the
useful economic¢ ife of the asset

= Assets under finance leases and
leasehold improvements

Berrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition construction
ar production of qualifying assets which are assets that necessaniy
take a substantial penod of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale are added to the cost of those assets unbl such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale

To the extent that the financing for a qualifying asset 15 part of
the Group s general borrowtngs the interest cost to be capitalised
1s calculated based upon the weighted average cost of borrowing
10 the Group (excluding the interest on any borrowings specific

to any qualfying assets) This s then applied to the expenditures
on the asset

All other borTowing costs are recognised in profit or loss iIn the
period to which they relate

) Derivatve financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group uses derivative financial mstruments to hedge ts
expasure to fluctuations in interest and forengn exchange rates

Derivatives are held at fair value from the date on which a denvative
contractis entered mto Fair value 1s defined as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under IFRS 13 “Fair Vatlue Measurement” The Group calculates
a separats credit valuation adjustment {("CVA™) or debit valuation
adstment ('DVA") for each denvative based upon the net pesition
for each counterparty relationship The Group calculates the CVA
where it has a net asset position using a quoted credit default swap

Financlal statements - Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

curve for the counterparty and calculates the DVAwhereithas a

net habibity posion using an industry proxy credit default swap
curve for the Group The fair value of derivative financial iInstruments
15 calculated by discounting future cash flows with reference to the
benchmark Libor curve adjusted by the relevant credit default swap
curve Certan denvatives held by the Group which relate to highly
probable forecast transactions ("hedged items”), which meet
qualifying criteria under IAS 33 “Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement” ("|AS 39°) aredesignated as cash flow hedges

or fair value hedges and are subject te cash flow hedge accounting
ar farr value hedge accounting respectively Certain other dervatives
held by the Group do not meet. the qualifying critena for recogrition
for accounting purpeses as hedges despite this berng thetr economic
function Changes in the fair values of these dervatives are recognised
immediatelyin the iIncome statement The Group does not held or
1ssue denvauves for speculative purposes

i Denvatives that qualfy for cash flow hedge accounting

Changes In the fair values of dervatives that are designated as cash
flow hedges ("cash flow hedging instruments®) are initially recognised
in the hedging reserve In arcumstances in which the denvative used
is acurrency option only changes in the intrinsic value of the option
are designated under the cash flowhedging relatonshyp with all other
moverments baing recorded immediately i the iIncome statement
Amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve are subsaquently
recognised inthe Income statement in the penods iInwhich the
related hedged itermns are recognised (v the Income statement

At inception the effectiveness of the Group s cash flowhedges s
assessed through a companson of the princpal terms of the hedging
instrument and the undertying hedged item The ongoing effectiveness
of the Group scash flow hedges 15 assessed using the dollar-offset
approach with the expected cash flows of hedging instruments being
compared to the expected cash flows of the hedged items This
assessmentisused to demonstrate that each hedge relationship 1s
expected to be highty effective oninception has been highly effective
in the periad and IS expected to continue to be highly effective in
future periods The measurement of hedge ineffectiveness for the
Greup s hedging Instruments is calculated using the hypethetical
dervative method with the fawr values of the hedging Instruments
being compared to those of the hypothetical dervative that would
result in the designated cash flow hedge achieving perfect hedge
effectiveness The excess of the cumutative change In the fair value of
the actual hedging instrument compared to that of the hypothetica!
denvative 1s deemed to be hedge ineffectiveness whichts recognised
in the income statement.

The Group uses a range of BO% to 125% for hedge effectiveness

in accordance with 1AS 39 and any relationship which has effectiveness
outside thisrange Is deemed to be ineffective and hedge accounting
15 suspended

When a cash flow hedging instrument expires 1s terminated ors
exercised orif ahedge no longer meets the quakfying criteria for
hedge accounting any cumulative gain or loss existing in the hedging
reserve at that ime remains in the hedging reserve and s recagrised
when the forecast transaction 1s ulumately recognised in the income
statemnent. provided that the underlying transaction is still expected
to occur When a forecast ransaction Is no longer expected to ocour
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in the hedging reserve
Is )immedhately recognised (n the ncome statement and all future
changesn the far value of the cash flow hedging nstruments

are immediately recegrused in the sncome statement
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Financial statements - Notes to the consokdated finanoal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1 Derlvatives that qualify for fair value hedge accounting

The Group has designated certain denvatives as fair value hedges

as defined under tAS 39 Any changes In the fair value of the denvatives
are recognised immediately in the income statement The carrying
values of the underlying hedged items are adjusted for the changein
the fair value of the hedged risks, with the gains or losses recogrused
immediately in the ncome statement offsetting the far value
movement on the derivative

Prospective effectiveness is assessed quarterly through a comparison
of the principal terms of the hedging instrument and the undertying
hedged item, including the Itkelihood of default by the dernvative
counterparty The retrespective effectiveness of the Group s fair
value hedges i1s calculated quarterly using the cumulative dollar-offset.
approach, vith movements in the fair value of the hedged item being
compared to mavemnents in the far value of the hedging instrument

The Group uses a range of B0% to 125% for hedge effectiveness and
any relattonship which has effectiveness outside this range is deemed
to be neffective and hedge accounting 1s suspended

in Embedded denvatives

Dervauves embedded in other financialinstruments or other hast,
contracts are teated as separate derwvatives when their nsks and
charactenstics are not cdosely refated to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not carried at fair value wath unrealised
gains or losses reported in the income statement. Embedded
denvatives are carried on the balance sheet at fair value from the
inception of the host contract Changes in fair value are recogmsed
within the income statement during the penod inwhich they anise

) Inventories

I Acquired and commissioned television programme inventories

for broadcast

Pregramme nventories for broadeast are stated at the lower of cost
and nat realisable value {"NRV"), including where appiicable estimated
subscriber escalation payments and net of the accumulated expense
charged to the iIncome statement to date

Such programming nghts are included as inventories when the legally
enforceablehcence pertod commences andall of the followming conditions
have been met, (a) the cost of each programme 15 known or reasonably
determinable, (b) the programme matenal has been accepted by the
Group in accordance with the conditions of the nghts and (c) the
programme |5 avallable for its firsk showing Pror to being induded
Ininventones the programming rights are classified as television
programme nghts net yet avalable for transmission and not recorded
as inventones on the Group s balance sheet and are instead disclosed
as contractual commitments (see note 26) Payments made upon
receipt of cornmissioned and acquired programming but in advance

of the legal nght to broadcast the programmes, are treated

as prepayments

The cost of television programme inventones s recogrised
In the operating expense line of the income statement, primarily
as described below

+ Sports - 100% of the costs recogrised in the income statement
on tha first broadcast or where the rights are for multiple seasons
or competitions such rghts are prinapally recognised on
a straight-line basis across the seasons or competitions

« News - 100% of the costisrecognised in the income statement
on first broadcast

* Mowes - The cost 15 recognised in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the penod of broadeast nights

+ General entertainment - The cost 1s recognised in thencome
statement based on the expected value of each planned broadcast

where programme broadcast nghts are surplus to the Group s
requirements and no gain 1s antiapated through a disposal of

the nghts or where the programming will not be broadcast for

any other reason awrite-down to the ncome statement 15 made
Any reversals of Inventory write-downs are recogrised as reductions
N operating expense

@ Programme distnbution rights

Programme distribution rights are vafued a. the lower of cost
and NRV net of the accumutated expense charged to the income
statement to date

The cost of the programme distribution nghts is recognised in
the operatng expense line of the Income statement on an utimate
revenue forecast basis

m Set-top boxes routers and refated equipment

Set-top boxes routers and related equipment are valued at the
lower of cost and NRV the latter of which reflects the value that
the business expects to realise from the set-top boxes and refated
equipment in the hands of the customer and are recognised through
the cperating expense line of the Income statement Any subsidy
15 expensed on enablement which is the process of activating

the wiewing card during installation so as tc enable a viewer to
view encrypted broadcast services and effectively represents

the completion of the installation process for new customers

The amount recagnised in theincome statement 1s determined on
a weighted average cost basis tn accordance with IAS 2 “tnventory”

v Raw matenals, consurnables and goods held for resale

Raw matenals consumables and goods held for resale are valued

at the lower of cost and NRV The cost of raw materials consumables
and goods held for resale is recognised through the operating expense
line of the ncome statement on a first-in-first-out basis

h) Financial assets and habilitres

Financial assets and habilities are iutialy recognised at fair value

phus any directly attributable transaction costs At each balance
sheet date, the Group assesses whether there s any cbjective
evidence that any financial asset Is impared Fnanaal assets and
liabikties are recognised on the Group s balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financal asset
or hability Financial assets are derecogmised from the balance sheet
when the Group s contractualrights to the cash flows expire or the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset Financial habilities are derecognised from the Group s balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
cancelled or expires
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1 Available-for-sale investments

Equity investments intended to be held for anindefinite pened
are classified as avallable-for-sale investments Theyare carned
at fair value where this can be reliably measured with rnovements
in fair value recognised directly in the avarlable-for-sale reserve
Where the fair value cannot be reliably measured the investment
Is carned at cost

Any impairment losses 1n eguuty Investments classified as avatable-
for-sale investments are recognised in the incorne staterment and are
not reversible through the income staterment and are determined with
reference to the closing market share price at the balance sheet date
Any subsequent ncrease in the fair value of the avallable-for-sale
Investment above the mpaired value will be recogrused within the
available-for-sale reserve

Available-for-sale investments are included within non-current assets
unless the carrying valueis expected to be recovered pnincipaly
through sale rather than continuing use sn which case they are
included within current assets On disposal, the difference between
the carrying amount and the surn of the consideration received and
any cumulative gain or loss that had previously been recognised
directly in reserves s recognised in the iIncome statement

it Trade and other recevables

Trade and other recevatles are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed cor determinable payments and where no stated interest rate

is applicable are measured at the onginal invoice ameunt if the effect
of discounting Is mmatenal Where discounting I1s materiat, trade and
other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
Interast method An allowance account is maintained to reduce the
carrying value of trade and other recevables for impairment losses
identified from abyjective evidence, with movemnants in the allowance
account either from increased impainment losses o reversals of
imparrment losses being recognised in the income statement.

1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand bank accounts,
deposits receivable on demand and deposits with matunty dates
of three months or less from the date of inception Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and which form an integral part of
the Group s cash management are also included as acomponent
of cash and cash equivalents where offset conditions are met

v Short-term deposits

This includes short-term deposits which have matunty dates of
maore than three months from inception These deposits are initially
recognised at fair value and then carned at amortised cost through
the iIncome statement less any allowance for impairment losses

v Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-dervative financal labilities and
are measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method
Trade and other payables with no stated interest rate are measured
at the onginal nvoice amount If the effect of discounting 1s iImmatenal

wvi Borrowngs

Borrowings are recorded as the proceeds recewved net of direct issue
costs Finance charges Including any premium payable on settlement
or redemption and direct Issue costs are accounted for on an accruals
bas:s In the Income statement using the effective Interest method
and are added to the carrymg amount of the underiyng instrument.
to which they relate to the extent that they are not settied in the
penod in which they anse

Financial statements - Notes to the consalidated financial statements

1) Impairment

At each balance sheet date in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment.

of Assets” the Group reviews the carrying amounts of allits assets
excluding inventones (see accounting policy g) non-current assets
classified as held for sate financial assets (see accounting pohcy h)
and deferred taxation (see accounting palicy o) to determine whether
thare |s any Indicatron that any of those assets have suffered an
impairment loss

An impatrment IS recognised In the iIncome statement whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount An impairment of anirvestment in ajoint venture
or assocsate 15 recognised within the share of profit from joint ventures
and associates The recoverable amount is the greater of net selling
price defined as the far value less costs to sell and value in use

In assessing value in use the estmated future cash flows are
discounted to thewr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
nsks specific to the asset Where it 1s not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group esumates the
recoverableamount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs Imparment losses recognised in respect of cash generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to those units and then to reduce the carrying amount of
other assets in the unit on a pro-ratabass

Animpairment loss for amindmdual asset or cash generating unit wall
be reversed If there has been a change in estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recogrised
and 15 onlyreversed to the extent that the asset s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
deterruned net of depreciation or amortisation If e impairment

loss had been recognised impairment of goodwili s not reversed

1) Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a probable present
legal or constructive obligation to make a transfer of economic
benefits as aresult of past events where a refiable estimate 1s
available The amounts recognised represent the Groups best
estimate of the transfer of benefits that will be required to settle

the obhgation as of the balance sheet date Prowisions are discounted
if the effect of the time value of money s material using a pre-tax
market rate adjusted for nisks specific to the iabiity

k) ESOP reserve

Where the Company or its subsidianes purchase the Company’s own
equity shares the cast of those shares ncluding any attnbutable
transaction costs 15 presented within the ESOP reserve as a decuction
in shareholders’ equity in the consalidated financial statements
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FAnandal statements - Notes {0 the consobdated finandal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

1 Accounting pehicies (continued)
1) Revenue recogmition

Revenue which excludes value added tax and transactions between
Group companies represents the gross inflow of economic benefit
from Sky's operating activities The Group s main sources of revenue
are recognised as follows

- Retall subscription revenue, induding subscriptions for TV and
over-the-top services, Sky Broadband and Sky Talk seraces
1s recognised as the goods or services are prowded net of
any discount given Pay-per-view and transactional revenue
is recognised when the event or mowie 1s viewed

« Wholesale revenue is recognised as the services are provided to
cable and other retailers and 1s based on the number of subscribers
takeng the Sky channels as reported to the Group by the cable
and other retallers and the applicable rate card or contract

« Advertising sales revenue s recognised when the advertising
1s broadcast Revenue generated from artime sales where Sky
acts as an agent on behalf of third parttes Isrecogmsed on a
net commission basis

-

Installation, hardware and service revenue 1srecognised in the
income statement when the goods and services are activated

+ Other revenue prinapally includes income from Sky Bet technical
platform seraces third party set-top box sales public access WiFi
services and programme distribution fees With the exception of Sky
Bet revenue other revenue 1s recogrused net of any discount given
when the relevant goods or service are prowded Sky Bet revenue s
recagrused in accardance with 1AS 39 and represents income i the
pernod for betting and gaming actmttes, defined as amounts staked
by customers less winnings paid out,

Revenue 15 measured at the farr value of the consideration recewed
or receivable When the Group sells a set-top box, installation or
service and a subscription inone bundled transaction the tetal
consideration from the arrangement s allocated to each element
based on therr relative fair values The fair value of each individual
element s determined using vendor specific orthird party ewidence
The amouns, of revenue the Group recognises for delivered elements
1s imited to the cash receved

m) Employee benefits

Wages salanes soacal security contrbutions bonuses payable and
non-monetary benefits for current employees are recogrused in
theincome statement as the employees services are rendered

The Group prowvides pensions to eligible employees through defined
contnbution schemes The amount charged to the income statement.
in the year represents the cost of contnbutons payable by the Group
to the schemes In exchange for employee services rendered in that
year The assets of the schemes are hetd independenitly of the Group

Termination benefits are recognised as a hiability at the earhier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offar of the termanation benefit
and when the Group recognises any related restructuring cests such
termination being before the normat rettrement date or as the result
of an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees which must be measured at fair value and recognised as
an expense in the income statement, with a corresponding increase
in equity The fair values of these payments are measured at the
dates of grant using option-pncing models, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the awards are granted The fair

value Is recognised over the penod during which employees become
unconditionatly entitled to the awards subject to the Group's estimate
of the number of awards which will be forfeited, either due to
employaes leawving the Group prior to vestung or due to non-market
based performance conditions not being met Where an award has
market-based performance conditions the fair value of the award s
adsusted for the probability of achieving these via the option pricing
maodel The total amount recognised in theincome statement as an
expense s adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards that vest
except where forferture 1s due to the failure to meet market-based
performance measures In the event of a cancellation whether by
the Group or by a participating employee the compensation expense
that would have been recognised over the remainder of the vesting
penod s recogrised immediately 1n profitor loss

n) Leases

Leases are dassified as finance [eases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substanbally all the rrsks and rewards incaidental to
wwnership of the asset to the lessee All other leases are dassified
as operating leases

When the Group is a lessor sub-lease income from operating leases
1s recognised on a straight-ine basts over the term of the lease

when the Group 15 a lessee assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at their far value on the date
of acquisiion or f lower at the present value of the minimum lease
payments The corresponding lability to the lessor s mcludedin
the batance sheet as a finance lease obigation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reductions of the lease obligation 50 asto achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaiming balance of the lability

The lease expense ansing from operatingleases 1s charged to the
Income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
Benefits received and recewvable as Incentives to enter into operating
leases are recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term

o) Taxation including deferred taxation

The Group s iability For current tax 1s based on taxable profit for
the year and i calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets and labibtes are recogiised using the balance
sheet labiity method prowiding for temperary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and habiites in the balance sheet
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
prafit Temporary differences ansing from goodwall and the intial
recogrition of assets or habdittes that affect neither accounung profit
nor taxable profit are not provided for Deferred tax iabiities are
recogrised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments
i subsidianes and associates and (nterests in joint ventures, except
where the Group Is able to contral the reversal of the temporary
difference anditis probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided
1s based on the expected manner of realisauen or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and habilities using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect an amount that 1s probable
to be realised based on the weight of all available evidence Deferred
tax s calculated at the rates that are expected to apply In the penod
when the hability is settled or the asset s realised Deferred tax assets
and llabilities are not discounted Deferred tax s charged or credited
0 the Income statement, except where it relates to items charged

or credited directly to equity in which case the deferred tax is alse
included within equity Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable nght to set of f current tax assets
against current tax habihties and when they refate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authorty and the Group intends to

settle (ts current tax assets and labilities on a net basis

p) Distributions to equity shareholders

Dividends are recogrused in the retained earnings reserve in the year
in which they are declared

The cost of repurchasing the Group s own equity shares for
cancellation {"share buy-backs™) 1s recorded in retained earnings
In additen the nominal cost of shares repurchased I1s deducted
fromn share capital and a matching credhit 1s recorded in the capital
redemption reserve

q) Earnings per share

Basic earnings or loss per share represents the prefit or loss for

the year dnided by tha weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue dunng the year excluding the weighted average number

of ordmary shares purchased by the Group and held in the Group s
ESOP durng the year to sausfy employee share awards

Diluted earnings orjoss per share represents the profit or loss for

the year divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in 1ssue during the year excluding the weighted average number of
orchinary shares purchased by the Group and held in the Group s ESOP
during the year to satisfy employee share awards, plus the weighted
average number of dilutive shares resulting from share options where
the inclusion of these would not be antidilutive

r) Foreign currency translation

The Group s presentational currency 1s pounds sterling Trading
activities denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in pounds.
sterling at the applicable monthly exchange rates Monetary assets
llabilities and commitments denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange at that date
Non-monetary assets and habilittes denominated in foreign currencies
are transtated to pounds sterling at the exchange rate prevaling at the
date of the inittal transaction Gains and losses from the retranslation
of agsets and habilities are included netin profit for the year except
for exchange differences arising on non-menetary assets and habihitres
where the changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity

The assets and kabilities of the Group s foreign operations are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date
Income and expense items are transiated at the applicable manthly
average exchange rates Any exchange differences arsing are classified
as equity and transferred to other reserves

Finantial statements - Notes to the consohdated financial statements.

s} Reportable segments

IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” requires the segment information
presented inthe financial statements to be that which 1s used
internally by the chief operating decision maker to evaluate the
performance of the business and dec:de how to allocate resources
The Group has identified the Board of Directors as its chief operating
decisicn maker and as the internal reporting reviewed by the Board
focuses on the operations of the Greup as awhole and does not
denufy individual operating segments the Group has only cne
reportable segment

1) Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments to
existing standards that are not yet effective

The Group has not yet adopted certain new standards amendments
and interpretations to existing standards which have been published
but are only effective for our accounting periods beginning on or
after1July 2014 or later penods These new prenouncements are
listed below

Amendments to IAS 36 “Impalrment of Assets”
(effective 1 January 2014)

.

Amendments to [AS 32 “Financial Instruments Presentation
— Offsetung Finanaal Assets and Finanaal Liabilities”
(effective 1 January 2014)

.

Amendments ta 1AS 39 "Financial Instruments Recognibion
and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting” (effective 1 January 2014)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 cycle (effective 1 July 2014)*

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 cycle (effective 1 July 2014)*

-

Amendments to IFRS 11 “Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations” (effective 1 January 2016)*

Amendments to IAS 156 and {AS 38 "Tanfication of
Acceptable Methads of Deprecation and Amortisation”
{effective i January 2015}

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(effective 1January 2017)"

-

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” (effective 1 January 2018)*
* not yet endorsed for use in the EU

The Drrectors are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of
these standards, amendments and interpretations in future periods

u) Critical accounting policies and the use of judgement

Certamn accounting policies are considered to be crnitical to the Group
An accounting policy is considered to be cntical If In the Directors
Judgement its sefection or application matenally affects the Group s
financial position or results Below s a summary of the Greup s entical
accounting policies and details of the key areas of jJudgement that
are exergsed in their applcabion

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc
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Financial statements - Notes o the conschdated finanoal statements

Notes to the consolidated financia! statements

(continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

1 Revenue (see note 2)

Selecting the appropnate timing for and amount of revenue to be
recogrised requires judgement This may involve estimating the far
value of consideration before it is received When the Group sells a
set-top box, Installation or service and a subscription In one bundled
transaction the total consideration from the arrangement s allocated
to each element based on its relative fair value The fair value of each
Individual element 1s determined using vendor specific or third party
evidence The amount of revenue the Group recognises for delivered
elements 1s hmited to the cash received

i Taxation including deferred taxation (see notes 7 and 15)

The Groups tax charge 13 the sum of the total current and deferred
tax charges The catculation of the Group s total tax charge necessanly
involves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect of certain
items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until
resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authonty or

as appropnate through aformal legal process

Provisions for tax contingencies require management to make
Judgements and estimates in relation te tax audit 1Issues and exposures
Armounts provided are based on management s interpretation of
country-speafic tax law and the Iikelihood of settlement Tax benefits
are not recognised unless it 15 probable that the tax positions wil be
sustamed Once considered to be prabable management reviews each
matenal tax benefit to assess whether a provision should be taken
aganst full recogrution of the benefit on the basis of the likely resclution
of the 1ssue through negobtiabion and/ior itigation

The amounts recognised in the consolidated financal statements

in respect of each matter are derived from the Group s best estumation
and judgement, as described above However thenherent uncertainty
regarding the outcome of these items means the eventual resolutton
could differ from the provision and in such event the Group would

be required te make an adjustment 1n a subsequent pertod which
could have a matenal Impact on the Group s profit and less and/or
cash position

The key area of judgement inrespect of deferred tax accounting 1s
the assessment of the expected timing and manner of realtsation
or settlemnent of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities held
at the balance sheet date In particular assessment 1s required

of whether t 1s probable that there will be suitable future taxable
profits against which any deferred tax assets can be utilised

i Acquisitton accounting and goodwill (see note 10)

Judgemaent s required in determining the far value of identifiable
assets habilities and contingent assets and labibties assumed in a
business combination and the far value of the consideration payable
Calculating the fair values involves the use of significant estimates and
assumptions including expectations about future cash flows discount
rates and the lives of agsets followng purchase

Judgement s also required in identifying the cash generating units

to which the goodwillis associated for the purposes of goodwill
wmpairment testing Ident:ficabion of cash generating units involves
an assessment of whether assets or groups of assets generate cash
flows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets
Goodwill s then allocated to each identified cash generating unit
that s expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combimnatiens from which goodwil! has ansen

v Intangible assets and property plant and equipment

(see notes 11 and 12)

The assessment of the useful econemiclives of these assets
requires judgement. Depreciation and amorusation s charged te
the income statement based on the useful economic Iife selected
This assessment requires estimation of the penod over which the
Group will benefit from the assets

Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any
indication of impairment. also requires judgement |f anindication
of mpairment 13 1dentified further judgement is required to assess
whether the carmying amount can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows forecast ta be derwved from the asset.
Thus forecast involves cash flow projecuons and sefecting the
appropnate discount rate

Assessing whether assets meet the required entena for mital
capitalsation requires judgement This requires a determination

of whether the assets will result in future benefits to the Group

in particular internally generated intangble assets must be assessed
during the development phase to identify whether the Group has
the ability and intention to complete the development successfully

v Programming inventory for broadcast (see note 16)

The key area of accounting for programming inventory for broadcast
that requires Judgement is the assessment of the appropnate

prafile over which to amoruse general entertainment programming,
This assessment requires the Group toform an expectation of the
number of imes a programme will be broadcast, and the relative value
associated with each broadcast 1n order to perform this assessment
the Group considers the following factors

.

The period over which the programme is expected to be shown
on the Group s channels This s usually based on a combination
of the actual penod specified in the contract for the programme
nghts and the Ininal expectation of when repeat broadcasts
will be scheduted

The alternative programming available to the Group for scheduling
within this penod This consideration provides the most appropnate
information in order to estimate how frequently indwidual
pragrammes will be shown dunng the period in which the Group
holds their breadcast nghts

The potential benefits associated with scheduling programming
Certain high-profile or high quality programming titles have
addtional value to the Group as they attract new TV customers
and encourage retention of @xisting TV customers As such these
programmes are able to retain more value throughout their
broadeast runs than would be indicated when considering the
expected viewng numbers alone

Expectations as to the number of viewers a programme 15 hkely
to achieve for each indwidual broadcast over the contractual
broadcast pened The number of viewers per broadcast directly
influences adverusing revenue for channels although this
consideration 1s partly influenced by the Group s assessment

of the potenual impact of the publicly available information onits
competitors scheduhng intentions against planned broadcasts
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Financial statements - Notes to the consalidated financial statements

2 Revenue
2014 203
£m Em
Retail subsenption 6285 5,951
Wholesale subsenption 422 396
Advertising 472 440
Installaticn hardware and service 85 a7
Other 398 361
7632 7235

Revenue arises from goods and services provided to the UK with the exception of £478 milion (2013 £461 millon) which arises from services provide

o

to other countnes incuded within wholesale subgeription revenue for the year ended 30 June 2014 1s £15 milhon credit received following the termination

of an escrow agreement with a current whalesale operator

3 Operating expense

2004 2013

£m £m

Programming 2662 2487
Direct networks 850 686
Marketing 1215 m7
Subscnber management and supply chain 604 673
Transmissian technology and fixed networks 460 405
Administration 550 576
647 5944

Included withinoperating expenses for the year ended 30 June 2014 are

« {osts of £72 miflion relating to the acquisitson and integraton of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-Iine telephony business cluding amortisation of E27 mittion i relation

to assocrated ntangble assets The costs have been recogrised as follows
- E31million within direct networks

- E24 million within adminstration

- E13 millien withintransmission, technelogy and fixed networks

~  E3 milhionwithin subscnber management and supply chan

- Elmilhen within markating.

.

and tangible assets These costs have beenrecognsed as follows

- E22 mullion within administration

- £15rmilion within marketing

- £3 millon wathun subsenber managemant and supply cham,

Costs of £2 milhien as a result of the termination of an escrow agreement with a current wholesale operator Thrs cost has been recognised within admiristration

.

1ncluded within operating expenses for the year ended 30 fune 2013 are

Credit of £32 rilhon relating to a credit note receved foliowing an Ofcorn determination This credit has beenrecogrised wmithin direct networks

Credit of £33 milkonrelaung to the final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set top boxes net of assocated costs and including an imparment of €6 millen
nrelation to associated mtangible assets This credit has been recognised within subscriber management and supply chain

« Costs of £31 milion relating to the one-off upgrade of set-top boxes The costs have been recognised within subscber management and supply chain

Costs of £25 rmultion relating to a programme to affer wiretess connectors to selected Sky Movies customers The costs have been recognised within subscnber management
and supply chan

- Costs of E15million relating to the acquistion and integration of the G2 cansumner broadband and fixed-Ine telephony business Including amortsation of E4 milkon inrelation
to associated intangible assets The costs have bean recogrised as follows

- E7 mihonwithin admnistration

- £3 millonwithindirect networks

- E3 millioa within transmission, technology and fixed networks

- E2millenwithin subseriber management and supply chain

Costs of £33 milion relating to a corporate efficiency programme in the prior year including an imparment of £6 million in relation to associated intangible and tangble assets
The costs have beenrecognised as follows

~ €29 millon within administration

- Elrnlizon within programming

- Elrmilionwithin marketing

-~ E1milken within subseriber management and supply chain

-~ £1milkonwithin transmession, tachnelogy and fixed networks

.

Costs of £40 million relating to a corporate restructuring and efficiency programme in the current year including an impairment of £2 million in relation to assocated intangible
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Anandal statements - Notes 1o the consobdated financial st s

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

{continued)
4 Investment income and finance costs
2014 2013
£Em Em
Investment income
Interest on cash cash equivalents and short-term deposits 4 =]
Dividends received from available-for-sale investments 22 19
26 28
2014 2013
£m Em
Finance costs
- Interest payable and simiar charges
£743 million Reveiving Credit Faaility ("RCF™) (2) (€3]
Guaranteed Notes {see note 203 (126) 122)
Finance lease Interest [&)] {7)
{135) 31
- COther finance iIncome (expense)
Remeasurement of borrowings and borrowings-related dervative financial instruments (not quatifying for hedge accounting) {2 22
Remeasurement of other denvative financral instruments (not qualifying for hedge accounting) [C)] {n
Loss ansing on denvatives in a designated fair value hedge accounting refationship (€] (34)
Gain ansing on adjustment for hedged item in a designated fair value hedge accounting relationship 32 36
(5} 23
{140} (108)
Borrowing costs included i the cost of qualifying assets dunng the year arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by
applying a capitahsation rate of 4 9% (2013 5 2%) to expenditure on such assets The amount capitalised in the current year amounted
to E4 million (2013 £2 malion)
5 Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation Is stated after charging
2014 2013
£m Em
Cast of Inventories recognised as an expense 2,208 1992
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 208 176
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 228 202
Rentals on operating leases and similar arrangements 49 51
Consohdated non-current assets outside the UK were E3 million (2013 £8 milhion)
Faoreign exchange
Foreign exchange losses recognised i the Income statement dunng the year amounted to £2 milion (2013 losses of £1million)
Audit fees
An analysis of auditor's remuneration s as follows
2014 203
Em £m
Total audit fees 16 13
Total non-audit fees 14 i
Total auditor remuneration 30 24

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts were £13million (2013 £1.2miflion) and fees payable
to the Company's auditer for the audit of the Company’s subsicharies pursuant to legislabion were £0 3 militon (2013 £01milion)

Amounts paid to the auditor for non-audit fees nclude audt related services of £0 2 millron (2013 £0 3 millon) taxaven services of EO S milon

(2013 EQ 3 mullion) other assurance services of £01mlion (2013 £0 3 million) other advisory services of nil (2013 nilyand transaction services
of £06 million (2013 £0 2 mihon)
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6 Employee benefits and key management compensation

a) Group employea benefits

Financial statements - Netes to the consolidated financial statements

2014 2013

Em Em

Wages and salaries 844 8
Social security costs m 101
Costs of employee share option schemes? 60 80
Contributions to the Group s pension schemes™ 39 27
1,044 98%

(i) £60 milhon charge relates to equity-settled share-based payments (2013 £80 million charge)

() The Group operatas defined contribution pensicn schemes Tha pension charge for the year represents the cost of contributions payable by the Group o the schemes
during the year The amount payable to the schemes by the Group at 30 June 2014 was £5 mifkon (20123 £2 million)

The average menthly number of full-time equivalent persons (Including temporary employees) employed by the Group dunag the year was as follows

2014 2013

Number Number

Channels and services 3477 2708
Customer service sales and marketing 13035 1943
Transmission and technelegy 3257 365
Management and administration 1072 Rl
20 841 15413

There are approximately 457 (2013 523) temporary staff included within the average number of full-time equivalent persons employed by the Group

b) Key management compensation {see note 28d)

2014 2013

£m Em

Short-term employee benefits & ]
Share-based payments 7 10
13 16

Post-employmant benefits were less than £1 millien (2013 less than £1 miien) The amounts disclosed for key management compensation are included

within the disclosures in note S(a@)
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Financlal statements - Notes to the consahidated finanaatstatermneants

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

7 Taxation

a) Taxation recognised in the income statement

2014 2013
Em £m
Current tax expense
Current year 232 33z
Adjustment in respect of prior years 31 44y
Total current tax charge 201 288
Deferred tax expense
Onginaton and reversal of temporary differences 5 (20)
Adjustmentinrespect of prior years ] 0
Total deferred tax charge (credit) 16 [¢]0)]
Taxat:on 27 278
Taxation relates to a £215 million UK corporation tax charge (2013 £275 millon) and E2 million overseas corporatson tax charge (2013 £3 midlion)
b) Taxation recognised directlyin equity
2014 2013
Em Em
Current tax credit relating to share-based payments Q) [e3)
Deferred tax credit relating to share-based payments - (8)
Deferred tax credit relating to cash flow hedges (8 18)
on (26)
¢) Reconcilration of effective tax rate
The tax expense for the year 1s lower (2013 lower) than the expense that would have been charged using the blended rate of corporation tax
In the UK (22.5%) apphed to profit before tax The applicable enacted or substantively enacted effective rate of UK corparation tax for the year
was 22.5% (2013 23 78%) The differences are explained below
2014 2013
£m Em
Profit before tax 1082 1257
Profit before tax multrplied by blended rate of corporation tax n the UK of 22 5% (2013 23 75%) 243 299
Effects of
Net effect of non-taxable/non-deductible items (8) 13
Deferred tax write-off following tax rate change 2 -
Adjustrents in respect of prior years 20 (34
Taxation 217 278
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8 Earnings per share

The weighted average number of shares for the year was

2014 2013
Mihensof  Millions of
shares shares
Ordinary shares 1581 1633
ESOP trust ordinary shares (19) (i19)
Basic shares 1562 1,614
Dilutive ordinary shares from share options 14 26
Diluted shares 1,576 1640
There are no share options (2013 none) which could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future but which have been excluded from
the calcufation of diluted earmings per share as they are anti-dilutive 1n the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dwviding the profit for the year into the wetghted average number of shares for the year
In order to provide a measure of underlying performance management have chosen to present an adjusted profit for the year which excludes
items that may distort comparability Such items anse from events or transactions that fallwmthin the erdinary actaties of the Group but which
management believes should be separately identified to help explain underlying performance
204 2003
£m £m
Reconahation from profit for the year to adjusted profit forthe year
Profit for the year 865 979
Costs relating to the acqusition and integration of the C2 consumer broadband and fixed-Iine telephaony business
(see note 3) 72 15
Costs relating to corporate restructuning and efficency programmes (see note 3) 40 33
Net credit received following termination of an escrow agreement with a current wholesale operator {sea notes 2 and 3) a3 -
Credit received following an Ofcom determination (see note 3) - (32)
Costs relating to programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers (see note 3) - 25
Net credit recewved following final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes and costs
relating to one-off upgrade of set-top boxes (see note 3) - €2)
Remeasurement of all dervative financial Instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting and hedge
ineffectiveness (see note 4) 5 (23)
Profit on disposal of joint venture {see note 13) - (9)
Tax adjusting items and the tax effect of above items (32) an
Adjusted profit for the year 537 969
2014 2013
pence pernce
Earmings per share from profit for the year
Basic 554p 607p
Diluted 549p 597p
Adjusted earnings per share from adjusted profit for the year
Basic &00p &0 0p
Diluted 54 5p 591p
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Fmancial statements - Notes to the consoldated finangalstaterments

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
S Dividends
2014 2013
£m £m
Dnndends declared and paid dunng the year
2012 Final dwvidend paid 16 20p per ordinary share - 265
2013 Intenm dvidend paid 11 00p per ordinary share - 176
2013 Final dvidend paid 19 00p per ordinary share 298 -
2014 Intenm dadend paid 12 00p per ordinary share 187 -
485 441
The 2014 final dvidend proposed 1s 20 0 pence per ordinary share being £309 milhon The dividend was not declared at the balance sheet date
and 1s therefore not recognised as a bability as at 30 June 2014
Dividends are paid between Group companies out of profits avalable for distnbution subject to inter alia the prowisions of the companies
articles of association and the Companies Act 2006 The ESOP has waived 1ts nghts to dindends
10 Goodwill
£m
Carrying value
Ab1July 2012 856
Purchase of 02 cansumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business 49
Other )
At 30 June 2013 999
Other 20
At 30 Jupe 2014 1019
Goodwill has principally ansen from the Group’s purchases of the Sports Internet Group (*SIG”) British Interactive Broadcasting ("BiB*) Easynets
UK broadband network assets and residentral activities 365 Media Amstrad Living TV The Cloud and the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-ine
telephony business
Goodwill allocated by cash generating unit 1s analysed as follows
2014 2013
£m Em
Broadcast’} 870 850
Bettng and gaming®’ 145 149
1019 999

Impairment reviews were performed on these goodwill balances at 30 June 2014 which did not indicate impairment
The Broadcast unit includes intangibles with indefinite ives of £25 miliion (2013 £25 million)

Recoverable amounts for the cash ganerating units were calculated on the basis of value in use or fair value less costs to sell as appropnate
using cash flows calculated for the next five years as forecast by management A long-term growth rate of 3% was applied in order to extrapolate
cash flow projections beyond this period (2013 3%} The cash flows of the Broadcast unit were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 8%
(2013 8%) and the cash flows of the Betting and gaming unit were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 10% (2013 10%)

In determining the applicable discount rate management apphed judgement in respect of several factors, which included inter aha assessing
the nisk attached to future cash flows and making reference to the capital asset pricing model (the "CAPM™) Management gave constderation
tothe selection of appropriate inputs to the CAPM which included the nsk free rate the equity nsk premium and a measure of systematic nsk
Management alsa considers capital structure and an appropriate cost of debt in arriving at the discount rate

i) Broadcast

The Broadeast unit includes goodwill ansing from the purchase of BiB Easynet s UK broadband netwark assets and residential activties 365 Medias

content actmttes Amstrad Lasng TV The Cloud and the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephany business The key assumptions on which

Forecast five-year cash flows of the Broadcast unit were based include the number of gross customer additions therate of churn the average revenue
per user levels of programming spend acquisition costs per customer and anticipated changes In the product mix and marketing mix of the broadcast

activities The values assigned to each of these assumptions were determined based on the extrapalation of histoncal trends within the Group and
external Information on expected future trends in the UK and Ireland entertainment and communitcations industry

) Betting and gaming

The Betting and gaming unit includes goodwill arising from the purchase of SIG and 365 Medias betting actmties The key assumptions on
which forecast Five-year cash flows were based include the number of weekly unique users the number of bets placed per user per week
the average stake per user per week and the average spend per active user per week The values assigned to each of these assumptons
were determined based on an extrapolation of histonical trends wathin the unit and external information on expected future trends in
betting and gaming
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11 Intangible assets

Internally
generated Acquired
Software Customer intangible ntangible
Internally  development contracts assets assets
generated (external) and related Other notyet not yet
intangible  and software customer mntangible available avalable
assets ficences  relationships assets foruse foruse Total
£m Em Em £m Em £m £m
Cost
Att July 2012 252 427 4] 224 54 103 1120
Additions from business combinations - - 137 2 - - 139
Additions 102 45 - 65 25 20 258
Disposals asy (6) - - () (7) (30)
Transfers a7 59 - - (47) (59) -
At 30 June 2013 386 525 157 292 30 57 1487
Additiens from business combinations e - 4] 2 - - 8
Additions 87 35 - 64 84 41 32
Disposals (18) a) - 3 - - (35)
Transfars 43 n - 1 @3) (12) -
At 30 June 2014 498 558 203 356 n 86 1772
Amortrsation
At 1 July 2012 122 308 9 158 - - 897
Amortisation 72 55 7 57 - - 1%
Disposals (5) 6) - - (2 o (30)
Imparrments 2 - - - 2 7 n
At 30 June 2013 181 357 16 215 - - 759
Amorttsation 76 53 2% i - - 26
Disposats (18) (14) - 33 - - {35)
Impairments - 1 - 1 - - 2
At 30 June 2014 238 397 42 284 - - 962
Carrying amounts
At 1 July 2012 130 na 51 86 54 103 523
At 30 June 2013 205 168 18 77 30 57 ns8
At 3Q June 2014 259 161 161 72 71 86 810

The Group s internally generated :ntangible assets relate pnnapally to software development associated with our customer management systems
and set-top boxes The Group s other intangible assets mainly include copynght licences connection fees and patents and brands acquired in business
combinations

The estimated future amortisation charge on intangble assetswith finite Lives for each of the next five years 1s set out below It 15 hkely that future
amortisation will vary from the figures below as the estimate does notincluda the impact of any Future investments dispesals or capital expenditure

2015 W06 2017 2018 2019
£m £m £m £m £m
Estimated amortisation charge 230 183 151 105 55

For intang:ble assets acquired rn business combinations in the year the average amortisation period is 8 years (2013 6 years)

Otherintangible assets include certan assets with indefimte usefutlives The carrying valueof these assets 1s £25 millon (2013 £25 milkion)
Animpairment review of the assets i1s performed annually as part of the Group s review of the Broadcast CGU (note 10)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
12 Property, plant and equipment

Equipment, Assets
Freehotd fusmiture not yet
land and Leasehold and available
bruidings™® improvements fixtures for use Total
Em £m Em £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2012 333 59 1210 27 1629
Additions from business combinations - - 25 - 25
Additions 1 1 194 48 244
Disposats - (2) 64) - (66}
Transfers - - 22 (22) -
At 30 June 2013 334 58 1387 53 1,832
Additions a4 - 131 ng 264
Disposals - )] 78 - 7s)
Transfers Ell - 34 (65) -
At 30 June 2014 369 57 1478 107 201
Deprecation
At July 2012 40 27 614 - 681
Depreciation 6 8 160 - 74
Disposals - €] {64) - (65)
Impairments - 1 1 - 2
At 30 June 2013 46 34 7H - 7N
Foreign exchange movements - - m - ()]
Depreciation a8 7 193 - 208
Disposals - ) 74) - 5
At 30 June 2014 54 AQ 829 - 923
Camrying amounts
At 1July 2012 293 32 596 i 948
AL 30 June 2013 288 24 676 53 1041
At 30 June 2014 315 17 645 107 1088

() The amounts shown include assets held under finance leases with a net bock value of £14 mulhion (2013. £13 milion) The cost of these assets was £23 million 2013 £20 milfior)
and the accumulated depreciation was E9 million (2013, £7 milior)) Dapreciation charged during the year on such assets was E2 milhion (2013 £1 milhory)

{1y Depreciation was not charged on £88 milion of fand (2013 £88 million).
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13 Investments in Joint ventures and associates

A list of the Groups significant investments in joint ventures and associates including the name country of incorporation and properticn
of ownership interestis givenin note 30 to the consoldated financial statements

The movement In JoInt ventures and assocates during the year was as follows

2014 2013
Em £m
Share of net assets
AL July 164 156
Mavement in net assets
- Funding net of repayments & 4
- Dividends received? (32) 43)
- Share of profitst® 35 a6
- Disposal of joint venture™ - m
- Exchange differences on translation of foreign joint ventures and associates - 2
At 30 June 173 164
(1) During the prior year the Group drispesed of its interest m MUTY Limited Included o share of profits for the year +5 a profit on dispesal of £9 mifion
Consideration recenad on the sale of £10 million is wxtuded withm dvidends recenved
The Group s share of any capital commitments and contingent habilities of associates and joint ventures 1s shown in note 26
a) Investments ih associates
Representing a 100% share of two matenal assocrates NGC Network International LLC and NGC Network Latin America LLC, in aggregate
2004 2013
£m £m
Naon-current assets 83 &7
Current assets 236 281
Current liabrties (73) (86)
Shareholders’ equity 246 222
Group s share of shareholders equity 52 47
Consoldation and other adjustments 80 82
Investment in assoaates 132 129
Revenue 323 325
Profit from continuing operations 106 107
b) Investments (NjoiInt ventures
Representing the Group s share of each joint venture
2004 2n3
£m £m
Non-current assets 26 19
Current assets 66 71
Current liabilities (74 32)
Non-current habiliies m (40)
Shareholders equity 17 18
Revenue 93 G
Expense (€Zi) {70y
Taxation (&3] 5y
Share of profit from joint ventures 13 15

The aggregate camying amount of the investmentsin jomt veniures and assooates that are not indnndually matenal for the Group
1s £41 milkon as at 30 June 2014 (2013 E35 milion)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

14 Avallable-for-sale investments

2014 2013

Em £m

Investment in 1TV at cost 946 946
Impasrment of ITV investment (8O7 (BO7)

Realised gain on iTV investment ns 15
Part disposal of TV investment (196) (196)

Unrealised gain on ITV iInvestment 456 351

TV investment 514 408

QOther investments 19 13

533 422

On 17 Novernber 2006 the Group acquired 696 mition shares in ITV at a pnce of 135 pence per share representing 179% of the issued capital of MV

for a total cansideration of £946 million including fees and taxes The Group s investment :n ITV s carned at fair value

The farr value rs determined with reference to Its equity share price at the balance sheet date In accordance with IFRS the Group has recognised
imparment losses in the years ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2009 the first of which was recorded at 31 December 2007 due to the significant

and prolonged decline in the equity share price The latest imparment loss was determined with reference to ITV s closing equity share price
of 20 0 pence at 27 March 2009 bringing the cumulative impairment loss to £807 million In ine wth IFRS all subsequent increases in the fair
value of the ITV Investment above this impaired value have been recorded In the avallable -for-sale reserve

©n 8 February 2010 the Group placed a shareholding of 10 4% In TV in accordance with the final undertakings given by the Group to the Secretary

of State for Business Innovauon and Skills relating to the Group's investment in ITV The placing by the Group of 404 362095 TV shares at 485 pence

per share resulted in aggregate consideration of £136 milion A profit of £135 million was realised on disposal being the excess of the consideration
above the Impaired value of the shares The disposal was exempt from tax under the provisions of the Substantial Shareholding Exernption ("SSE7)
and as such the SSE provisions prevented any capital loss ansing For tax purposes

At 30 June 2014 the Group held 723% of the shares in ITV On 17 July 2014 the Group sold a shareholding of approximately 6 4% in ITV congisting
of 259 820065 [TV shares For further details refer to note 2% The disposal of these shares in ITV will not be eligibbte for SSE but the gain on disposal

of the shares wall be covered by capital losses

15 Deferred tax

1) Recognised deferred tax assets {habilities)

Share based Financsal
Accelerated Short-term payments  nstruments
tax temporary temporary temporary
degrecation Tax losses differences chfferences differences Total
£m Em £m Em £m £m
At1July 2012 12 1 & 26 (30) i5
{Charge} credit to Income (2 m - 18 {5y 10
Credit to equity - - - 6 18 24
Acquisition of subsidiaries (12) - - - - 02y
Effect of change in tax rate
-Income 1 - m ) 1 -
At 30 June 2013 (U] - S 49 {16} 37
Credit (charge) to income 4 - m (18} 1 (14)
Credit to equity - - - 1 ] 10
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 1
Effect of change in tax rate
- Income - - - (3) i (2)
-~ Equity - - - W m €3]
At 30 June 2014 - 4 28 (6} 30

Deferred tax assets have been recognised at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 on the basis that from management s current forecast of the Groups
entities 1115 probable that there will be suitable taxable profits against which these assets canbe utilised Jax losses are treated as unrecognised
deferred tax assets if it s not considered probable that suitable future taxable profits will arise During the year any taxlosses suffered by UK

entities have been relieved against taxable profits in other UK entities in the Group

Deferred tax assets and habihties are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peniods in which they reverse The rate enacted

or substantively enacted for the relevant periods of reversalis 20% as at 30 June 2014 (2013 23%)

The rate 15 due to come into effect on 1 Apnl 2015
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Certain deferred tax assets and labilities have been offset The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financal
reporting purposes

2014 2013

£m Em

Ceferred tax assets 52 70
Deferred tax iabitses 22) (33
30 37

u) Unrecognised deferred tax assets

2014 2013

£m Em

Tax losses ansing from trading 245 2N
Tax losses ansing from capital disposals and provisions against investments 283 323
528 594

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the items above because It 1s not probable that future taxable profits witl be avallable
against which the Group can utise the losses

AL 30 tune 2014, a deferred tax asset of £9 milien (2013 £15 mdlion) prinaipally arising from UK trading lesses in the Group has not been recognised
These losses can only be offset against taxable profits generatedin the entities concerned There s currentty nsufficient evidence to support the
recognition of a deferred tax asset relating to these losses The UK trading losses can be carned forward indefinitely

AL 30 June 20'4 adeferred tax asset of £236 million (2013 £256 mullion) has not been recognised in respect of overseas trading losses on the
basis that it 1s not probable that these temporary differences will be utilised These losses indude £233 million (2013 £250 million) with respect
to the Group s German hokding company’s former investment in KirchPayTV and £3 million 2013 £6 mullion) with respect to other subsidiaries

At 30 June 2014 adeferred tax asset of £274 million (2013 £312 milhon) has nat been recognised in respect of capital losses related to the Group s
former investment in KirchPayTV on the basis that utiisation of these temporary differences 1s not probable At 30 June 2014 the Group alse has
capital losses with a tax value estimated to be £9 muliion 2013 £11 rullion) including impairment of a football dub and other investments which
have not been recognised as a deferred tax asset, on the basis that it 1$ not probable that they will be utilised The capital losses can be camed
forward indefinitely

16 tnventones

2014 2013

£m £m

Television programme nghts 488 470
Set-top boxes and related equipment 50 70
Other nventones a ]
Current inventory 5486 548
Non-current programme distribution rights 20 17
Total inventory 566 565

AL 30 June 2014 B1% (2013 89%) of the television programme nghts and 100% (2013 100%) of set-top boxes and related equipment and other
inventories s expected to be recogmsed in the income statement withen 12 months
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

17 Trade and other receivables

2014 2003
£m £m
Gross trade receivables 235 163
Less provision for impairment of recewvables (95) (89)
Net trade recelvables 140 74
Amounts receivable from joint ventures and associates 7 B8
Amounts receivable from other related parties 5 7 i
Prepayments 279 309 |
Accrued iIncome 179 162 |
VAT 2 1
Qther 23 30
Current, trade and other receivables £35 51
Prepayments 4 3]
Other recervables 3 T N
Non-current trade and other receivables 7 17
Total trade and other receivables 642 608
Included wathin current trade and other recewables s il (2013 rul) which s due 11 more than one year
The ageing of the Group s net trade receivables which are past due but not impatred s as follows
24 2013
£m £m !
Up to 30 days past due date 107 52
30 to 60 days past due date 4 5
60 to 120 days past due date 2 2
13 58
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair values The Group s exposed to |
credit risk omits trade and other receivables however the Group does not have any significant concentrations of creditnsk with exposure ;
spread over a large number of counterparties and customers Trade receivables principally comprise amounts outstanding from subscribers |
advertisers and other customers | ‘
Prowsions for doubtful debts
M4 203
£m £m
Balance at beginning of year 89 a9
Amounts utilised @n (36)
Provided dunng the year 33 36
Balance at end of year 95 89
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18 Trade and cther payables
2014 2083
£m Em
Trade payablas®™ 802 n2
Arounts owed to joint ventures and associates n 9
Amounts owed to other related parties 24 102
VAT 189 143
Accruals 747 685
Deferred income 318 295
Other ns 77
Current trade and other payables 2,286 2,023
Trade payables 23 18
Amounts owed to other related parties 10 -
Deferred income 5 9
Other 18 36
Non-current trade and other payables 56 63
Total trade and other payables 2342 2.086
() Included within trade payables are £213 million (2013 £225 million) of US dollar-denominated payables
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approxsmates their fair values Trade payables prinapally
comprise amounts cutstanding for programming purthases and ongoing costs
19 Provisions
Provided
At Reclassiied (released) Utiised At Provided Utiised
1 luy dunng durng during Vduly during, dunng At
2012 the year the year the year 2013 theyear the year 30 June
£Em Em £m £m £m £m £m 2014
Current labilities
Restructunng provision® 6 - 13 (3) 15 14 8) 22
Acguired and acquisition-related provisionst? 15 %)) 14) - - - - -
Customer-related provisions™? - - a7 (D] 4 - (39) 2
Other provisions®™ 22 17 17 [41=)] 37 [ (19) 24
43 | 63 {28) 94 20 (66) 48
Non-current iabiliies
Other provisions®? 12 2 6 (6) 14 10 {10) 14

(i} These provisions significantly relate to costs ncurred as part of corporate efficiency programmes

{1} These provisions arosik onthe acquisition of Amstrac which took place dunng the year ended 30 June 2008

(1) These provisions are far those oosts incurred inthe one-off upgrade of set-top boxes and the programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers.
() Included In other provisions are amounts provided for legal drsputes and warranty abihties

) Included within nen-current other provisions are amounts provided for onerous contracts for propertyleases and mantenance The timing of the cash flows are dependent

an the terms of the leases but are expected to continug up Lo August 2016
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(continued)

20 Borrowings

2014 013
Em Em
Current borrowings
QObligations under finance leases®™ 1 hi]
Non-current borrowings
US$750 million of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 20157 434 436
E400 mill:an of § 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 20170 400 404
USE750 million of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 20189 442 498
US$582 8 million of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Novernber 20180 353 404
US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable i November 202200 466 520
E300 milhon of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 20270 296 296
US$350 millton of 6 S00% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035© 20 225
Loan Notes repayable in December 2016 1 -
Obligations under finance leases™ 65 &6
2658 2909
(1) Guaranteed Notes
At 30 June 2014 the Group had in 1ssue the follomng Guaranteed Notes, which were issued by the Company
Interest Rate Hedging Hedged nterest Rates
Hedged
Valug* Fixed Floating
£m Em £m Fixed Foating
US$750 milhon of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 387 290 97 6 829% 6m LIBOR +1892%
US$382 B million of 8 500% Guaranteed Notes regayabile in Novernber 2018 389 260 1289 7091% omUBOR + 5542%
US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2022 503 503 - 3 226% NIA
E300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Motes repayable in May 2027 300 300 - 6 000% N/A
1579 1353 226
At 30 tune 2014 the Group had in 1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes which were issued by 8SkyB Finance UK pic
Interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Valua* Fixed Flaating
Em Em £m Fixed Floating
US$750 rmillion of 5 625% Guaranteed Nates repayable in Octeber 2015 428 LF] 257 5427% Gm LIBOR + 06598%
£400 milhon of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017 400 350 50 5 750% 6m LIBOR - 0 229%
US$350 million of 6 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Getober 2035 200 200 - 5826% NiA
1028 721 307
At 30 June 2013 the Group had in 1ssue the following Guaranteed Motes which were 1ssued by the Company
interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Value* Fixed Floating
£m £m £m Fixed Floauing
US$750 malion of 6100% Guaranteed Nates repayable in February 2018 387 290 97 6 829% &m LIBOR +1892%
US$582 8 million of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2018 389 260 129 7091% 6m LIBOR + 5542%
US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2022 S03 503 - 3226% N/A
£300 milhen of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 300 300 - 6000% NIA
1,579 1383 226
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At 30 June 2013 the Group had inissue the following Guaranteed Notes which were Issued by BSKyB Finance UK ple

Interest Rate Hedging Hadged Interest Rates
Hedged

Value® Fixed Floating
£m £m Em Fixed Floating
US$750 mellion of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Qctaber 2015 428 7 257 5427% 6m LIBOR + 0 698%
E400 milhon of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017 400 350 B0 5750% 6m LIBOR - 0225%
US$350 mihon of & 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035 200 200 - 5 826% N7A

1028 T2 307

*Note Hedged value 15 the final redemgption value induding any hedging

The Group has a Global Medium Term Note Prograrnme (the “Programme™) which provides the Group with a standardised documentation
platform for semor detst 1ssuance of up to £2 5 billen in the major global bond markets The £300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes
matunng in May 2027 have beenissued under the "predecessor EMTN” Programme

(I} Finance Jeases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

2014 2013
£m Em
Within cne year n 1
Between one and two years 12 n
Between twa and three years 9 1
Between three and four years g 8
Between four and five years 9 8
After five years 136 144
186 193

Future finance charges on finance lease abihties o) (1e)
Prasent value of finance lease habilities 76 77

The main obhgations under finance Jeases are in relation to

(@) finance arrangements in connection wath the broadband network nfrastructure Dunng the year repayments of £7 millon (2013 £7 million)
were made against the lease A proportion of these payments have been allocated against the capital outstanding The lease bears interest
at a rate of 111% and expires in November 2039

(b) finance arrangements in connection with the contact centre ity Dunfermline Durning the year repayments of £1 million (2013 £1 mullion)
were made against the lease A proportion of these payments have been allocated aganst the capital amount outstanding The lease
bears interest at a rate of 8 5% and expires in September 2020

(©) finance arrangements in connection with datacentre equipment During the year repayments of £3 million (2013 less than E1 mullion}
were made against the lease Aproportion of these payments have been allocated aganst the capital amount outstanding Thelease
beats interest at a rate of 3 6% and expires i June 2016

(in) Revolving Credt Facility

The Group has a £743 mullien RCF with a matunty date of 31 October 2018 syndicated acvoss 10 counterparty banks each with a minimurm
credit rating of “Baal” or equivalent from Standard & Peor s At 30 June 2014 the RCF was undrawn (2013 undrawn)

The Group is subject to twe financal covenants under the RCF a maximum leverage ratic anda nwnimum interest cover ratio which are tested
at the end of each six monthly penod The key financial covenants are the ratic of Net Debt ta EBITDA (as defined In the loan agreements)
and EBITDA to Net Interest Payable (as defined In the loan agreements) Net Debt to EBITDA must be no mere than 300 1 and EBITDA

ta Metinterest Payable must be atleast 3 50 1 The Group was in comphance wath these covenants for all periods presented

{v) Guarantees

The following guarantees are in place relating to the Group s borrowings (a) British Sky Broadcasteng luimuted Sky Subsenibers Services Limited
BSkyB Finance UK plc and Sky in-Home Service Limited have given jaint and several guarantees in relation to the Company s £743 million RCF
and the outstanding Guaranteed Notes 1ssued by the Company, and (b} the Company British Sky Broadeasting Limited Sky Subsenibers
Serwvices Limited and Sky In-Home Service Limited have given joint and several guarantees inrefation to the outstanding Guaranteed Notes
1ssued by BSkyB Finance UK plc
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Finandial statements - Notes to the consalidated finanaat statements.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

21 Derivatives and cother financial instruments

Set out below are the denvative financial instruments entered into by the Group to manage 1ts interest rate and foreign exchange nsks

2014 203
Asset Liability Asset Liabihty
Fair Value Notional Farr Value Notional Far value Notsonal Farr Value Notianal
Em £m £m Em Em £m Em £m
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 77 767 - - 108 851 - -
Cash flow hedges
Cross-currency swaps 72 661 (36) 503 156 17 - 47
Forward foresgn exchange contracts 33 764 (76) 1464 37 1146 (26) 973
Denvatives not in a forma! hedge relationshup
Cross-currency swaps 21 353 (59) 390 67 353 {15) 390
Forward foretgn exchange contracts 2 27 @) 262 1 « T4 [e)] 49 {
Interest rate swaps S 260 - - 1 260 - -
Total 210 31022 (175) 2618 380 3ad {42) 1459 !
1
The maturity of the dervatve financal Instruments is as follows !
2014 2013 '
Asset Liatulity Asset Lability
£m Em £m £m
In one year or less 15 39 15 3)
Between one and two years 43 (25) 15 (6)
Between two and five years 132 (75) 25 (8}
Inmore than five years 20 (36) 55 (15)
Total 210 (175) 380 (42)

The fair value of the Group s debt-related denvative portfolio at 30 June 2014 was a £80 milhion net asset (2013 net asset of £327 million) with net
notional principal amounts totaliing £1957 millon (2013 E1557 miltion) This comprised net assets of £36 millon designated as cash flow hedges
(2013 net assets of £166 mulon) net assets of £77 million designated as far value hedges (2013 net assets of £108 millon) and net habilities of
£33 millien not destgnated in a formal hedge relationship (2013 net assets of £53 million).

At 30 June 2014, the carrying value of financial assets that were, upon initial recognition, designated as finanaal assets at fair value through profit
or loss was mil (203 rul)

The Group has entered intc a collar arrangement to manage I£s exposure to movements in the value of certain available-for-sale investments over
a penod of up to 18 months and with a noticnal value of £22 milion The collar instrument has not been designated for hedge accounting purposes,
with movements in the farr value of the collar being taken to the Income statement.

Hedge accounting classification and impact

The Group has gesignated certain interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of interest rate risk represenung 30% {2013 30%) of the Group sdebt
portfolio Movements in the fair vatue of the hedged items are taken to the income statement and are offset by movements in the fair value of the
hedging iInstruments to the extent that hedge accounting 1s achieved

The Group has designated certain fixed rate cross-currency swaps as cash flow hedges of 45% (2013 47%) of the Group s debt portfolio As such the
effective portion of the gain or loss on these contracts 1s reported as a separate component of the hedging reserve and 1s then reclassified to the income
statement in the same penods that the forecast transactions affect the income statement Cash flows on the swaps occur semi-annually up to and
indusive of the relevant bond maturnity disclosed in note 20 Durng the current year losses of £140 million were remeved from the hedging reserve and
charged to finance costs in the Income statement to offset the currency translation movements in the undertying hedged debt (2013 gains of £40 miltton)

The Group designates certaim forward foreign exchange contracts and the Intrinsic element of options (collars) as cash flow hedges of forecast foreign
currency sales and purchases Gains orlosses are released from the hedging reserve and recyded to the income statement in the same period as the
hedged item Is recognised If forecast transactions are na longer expected to occur any amounts inciuded in the hedging reserve related to that forecast
transaction would be recognised directly in the incoma statement. Dunng the current year gains of £7 midhon were removed from the hedging reserve
and credited to operating expense 11 the income statement (2013 gains of E2 million) Losses of £2 mullion were removed from the hedging reserve

and debited to revenue in the income statement (2013 gains of £8 milhion)

Hedge effectiveness testing 15 performed quarterly using the dollar-offset approach The actual movement in the hedging items 1s compared with
the movement in the valuation of the hypothetically perfect hedge of the undertying nsk at inception and any ineffectiveness i1s recognised directly
in the income statement Ineffectiveness of £1 million was recogrised in the Income statement dunng the current year (2013 £2 million).

A hedge relationship 1s deemed to be effective if the ratio of changes in valuation of the underlying hedged item and the hedging instrument 1s within
the range of 8B0% to 125% Any relatronshup which has a ratio cutside this range 1s deemed to be ineffective at which point hedge accounting 1s suspended
During the year ended 30 June 2014 there were ne Instances in which the hedge relationshtp was not highly effectwe (2013 no instances)
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Financial statements - Notes to the consohdated finanagal staterments

Financial instruments

(a) Carrying value and fair valua
The accounting classification of each class of the Group s financial assets and financial habilities together with their fair values, 1s as follows

Held to Dervatives  Denvativesin Total
maturity Avalable-  deemed held hedging Loans and Other carying Total faw
Investments for-sale fortradng  relatienships recevables labiities value value
£m Em Em im Em £m £m £m
At 30 June 2014
Quoted bond debt - - - - - (25082) (2592) (2896)
Dervative financial instruments - - (35) 70 - - 35 35
Trade and other payables - - - - - (1,788) (1788) (1788)
Provisions - - - - - (45} “@5) (45)
Obligations under finance leases
and other borrowings - - - - - a7 on an
Avalable-for-sale investments - 533 - - - - 533 533
Trade and other receivables - - - - 349 - 349 349
Short-term deposits 295 - - - - - 295 295
Cash and cash equivalents 300 - - - 782 - 1082 1082
At 30 June 2013
Quoted band deht - - - - - (2843} {2843) (3185)
Derwvatve financial instruments - - 53 285 - - 338 338
Trade and other payables - - - - - (1587} (1567) (1567
Provisions - - - - - 74y (74) (74)
Oblhgations under finance leases
and other borrowings - - - - - (¢2i] (€2))] on
Avallable-for-sale Investments - 422 - - - - 422 422
Trade and other recenvables - - - - 278 - 278 278
Short-term deposits 595 - - - - - 595 535
Cash and cash equivalents 65 - - - 750 - B15 815

The farr values of financal assets and financial habilives are determined as follows

.

The fair value of financial assets and finanaal labilities with standard terms and condibions and which are traded on active iquid markets
15 deterpuned with reference to quoted market prices

The farr value of other finanaal assets and financial labitities (excluding denvative instruments) s determined In accordance with generally
accepted pricang modets based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes
for similarinstruments

Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves denved from quoted interest rates
matching maturities of the contracts

Interest rate and cross-currency swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estmated and discounted based on the
applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates and

The far value of obligations under finance leases and other borrowings is estimated by discounting the future cash flows te net present value
The far value of short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents is equivalent to carrying value due to the short-term nature of these instruments

The differences between carrying values and fair values reflect unrealised gains or losses inherent in the finanaal instruments based on valuations
as at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 The volatile nature of the markets means that values at any subsequent date could be significantly different
from the values reported above

Cash and cash equivalents dassified as held to matunty investments compnse money market deposits which have matunity dates of less than
three months from inception Money market deposits enhanced return Investments and tr-party repurchase agreements which have maturity
greater than three months from inceplion are classified as short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents classified as loans and recervables mainly compnise investments in AAAm rated money market funds which can
be withdrawnwthout notice
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Finandal statements - Notes to the consolidated finanaal staterments

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

21 Denvatves and other finanaal instruments (continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy
The following table categorises the Group s financial instruments which are held at fair value inta one of three levels to reflect the degree to which
observable iInputs are used in determining their far values

farr value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£m Em £m £m

At 3G June 2014
Financial assets
Avaliable-for-sale financial instruments
ITV investment 514 514 - -
Qther iInvestments 19 4 - 15
Financial assets at farr value through profit or loss
Interest rate swaps 82 - 82 -
Cross-currency swaps 93 - 94 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 35 - 34 -
Total 743 518 210 15
Financtal habilities
Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss
Cross-currency swaps (95) - (95) -
Forward foreign exchange contracts (8O) - (809 -
Total (175) - (175) -
At 30 June 2013
Financial assets
Avalable-for-sale financial instruments
ITV (nvestment 409 409 - -
Qther investments 13 - - 13
Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss
Interest rate swaps 109 - 109 -
Cross-currency swaps 233 - 233 -
Forward foresgn exchange contracts 38 - 38 -
Total 802 409 380 13
Financial habilities
Financial labiities at fair value through profit or loss
Cross-currency swaps (5) - (15) -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 27 - @n -
Total (42) - (42) -

Level 1
Fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets orhabilities

Level 2

Fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or labihty either
directly or ndirectly Derivative financial instrument fair values are prasent values determined from future cash flows discounted

at rates dertved from market source data

Level 3
Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data Certain of theGroup s
avallable-for-sale financial assets are held at fair value and are categorised as Level 3tn the fair value hierarchy
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22 Financial nsk management
Group Treasury actmty

The Groups Treasury functionis responsible for raising finance for the
Group s operatians tegether with associated Iiquidity management
and management of foreign exchange Interest rate and credit nsks
Treasury operations are conducted withun a framework of policies
and guidelnes authonsed and reviewed annually by both the Audsit
Comrmittee and the Board which receive regular updates of Treasury
activity Dervative instruments are transacted for nsk management
purposes only It 15 the Group s policy that all hedging s to cover
known nsks and no speculative trading 1s undertaken Regular and
frequent reporting to management is required for all transactions
and exposures, and the internal control environment 1s subject to
penodicreview by the Group s Internal audit team

The Group s principal market risks are exposures ta changes In interest
rates and foreign exchange rates which anse both from the Groups
sources of finance and its operations Following evaluation of those
market rnsks the Group selectively enters into dervative financial
Instrurments to manage these exposures The prncipal instruments
currently used are interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risks

and cross-currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts

to hedge transactronal and translational currency exposures

Interestrate risk

The Group has financal exposures to both UK and US interest,

rates anising primanly from the Group s long-term bonds and other
borrowings The Groups hedging policy requires that between 50%
and B5% of borrowings are held at fixed rates This:s achieved by
1ssuing fixed rate bonds and then using Interest rate swaps to adjust
the balance between fixed and floating rate debt The Groups bank
debt s at floating rates and when drawn means that the mix of fixed
and floating rate debt fluctuates and 1s therefore managed to ensure
comphance with the Group s hedging policy At 30 June 2014 80%

of barrowings were held at fixed rates after hedging (2013 80%)

The Group uses derivatives to convert all of its US dollar-denominated
debt and associated interest rate obligations to pounds sterling
(see section on foreign exchange risk for further detaill) At 30 June
2014 the Group had no net US dollar denominated interest rate
exposuUre on Its borrowings

The Group designates Its Interest rate swaps as farr value hedges
of interest rate risk. Movements in the fairvalue of the hedged
exposure are taken te the income statement and are offset by
movements in the fair value of the hedging instruments which

are also taken to the income statement. Any hedge ineffectiveness
13 recogrised directly in the Income statement In the year ended
30 June 2014 this amounted to £1 mition (2013 £2 milion)

At 30 tune 2014 and 30 June 2013 the Group s annual finance
costs would be unaffected by any change to the Groups credst
rating in either direction

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure ta interest rates for both denvatives and non-derivative
financial nstruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate
kabtitizs the analysis s prepared assuming the amount of kabality
outstanding at the balance sheet date 1s cutstanding for the
whole year

FAranwal statements - Notes ts the consolidated inandal statements

For each one hundred basis paint rise or fall in interest rates
at 30 June 2014 and if all other vanables were held censtant

The Groups profit for the year ended 30 June 2014 would increase
or decrease by £8 milion (2013 profit For the year would increase
or decrease by £9 milllon) The year-on-year movement 1s driven
by a decrease in the cash balance held

QOther equity reserves would degrease or Increase by £6 million
{2013 decrease or increase by £15 millon), ansing from movements
in cash flowhedges

A one hundred basis point rise or fafl in interest rates represents
alarge but realistic movement which can easily be multiphed to
give sensitivities at different interestrates

The sensitiity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should
be used with taution as the impacts provided are not necessarily
indicative of the actualimpacts that would be experienced because
the Group s actual exposure to market rates changes as the Groups
portfolio of debt cash and foresgn currency contracts changes

in addition the effect of a change in a particular market vanable

on fair values or cash flows 1s calculated without considesning
interrelationships between the vanous market rates or mitigating
actions that would be taken by the Group The changes in valuations
are estimates of the impact of changes in market vanables and are
not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses

Foreign exchange rnsk

A combination of cross-currency and interest rate swap arrangements
1s used to convert the Group s US dollar denorm:nated debt and
aszocated interest rate cbligations to pounds sterling at fixed
exchange rates At 30 June 2014 the sphit of the Group s aggregate
borrowings into their core currencies was US dollar 71% and pounds
sterbng 29% (2013 US dollar 73% and pounds sterling 27%) At 30 June
2014 100% of tha Group s long-term borrowings, after the impact of
derivatives are denominated 1in pounds sterling

The Group's revenues and operating expenses are substantially
denominated in pounds sterling A small proportion of operating
expenses Is denominated in US dellars while a small prapertion of
revenues 1s denominated in euras In the current year approximately
16% of eperating expenses (£1 043 millon) was denominated in US
doltars (2013 approxmmately 10% (E614 milhen)) and 5% of revenues
(£353 milbon) was denominated in euros (2013 5% (E392 milkan))

The US dollar expense relates mamly to the Group s programming
contracts with US supphers together with US dollar-denominated
set-top box costs The euro revenues primarily relate to subscribers
located i Ireland The Greup s exposure to euro-denominated revenue
15 offset to a certan extent by euro-denominated costs related manly
to certain transpander costs, the net position being a eure surplus
(2013 surplus)

The Group hedges currency exposures on US dollar and euro-
denorminated highly probable cash flows by using forward foreign
exchange contracts purchased up to five years ahead of the cash flow
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Finanaal statements - Notes to the consokdated finanoal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

22 Financial nsk management (continued)

It 1s the Group s pakey that all anticpated foreign currency exposures
are substantially hedged in advance of the year in which they occur

At 30 June 2014 the Group had purchased forward foreign exchange
contracts representing up te

Appraximately 95% of US dallar-denominated costs faliing
due within one year (2013 90%) and approximately 80%

of US doblar-denominated costs falling due within five years
(2013 approximately 80%) which are hedged wa

» Qutstanding commitments to purchase In aggregate
15$2,358 million (2013 US$1926 million) at an average
rate of US$160 to £100 (2013 US$H156to £100).

Approximately 5% of net euro-dencominated revenues faling

due within one year (2013 approximately 95%) and approximately
80% of net euro-denominated revenues falling due wathin four
years (2013 approximately 80%) which are hedged via

« Qutstanding commitments to sellin aggregate, €1,078 milhon
(2013 €1039 million) at an average rate of €118 to £100
(2013 €119 to £100)

+ Outstanding commitments to purchase 1n aggregate €11t milizsn
(2013 €1S milion) at an average rate of €118 to 100 (2N3 €116
to £100)

.

Two forward foregn exchange contracts fall due beyond five years
(2013 none)

The Group designates the followng as cash flow hedges for hedge
accounting purposes

+ Forward foreign exchange contracts

+ Cross-qurrency swaps where interest on both legs is at a fied
interest rate

As such, the effective portion of the gain or loss on these contracts
1s reported as a component of the hedging reserve outside the
ncome statement and is then reclassified to the income statement
1n the same periods that the forecast transactions affect the ncome
statement Ineffectiveness of less than £1 milllon was recognised

In the Income statement dunng the year (2013 £1 mulion)

A combination of US dollar denominated interest rate and US dollar/
pound stering cross-currency swaps 15 used to convert fixed dollar
dencrminated debt to floating sterling denominated debt The interest
rate swaps are designated as fair value hedges The asscoated
cross-currency swaps are not designated as hedging instruments

for hedge accounting purposes and as such, movements in their

value are recorded directly In the Income statement

Foreign exchange sensitivity

The followsng analyses details the Group s sensitivity to movements
in pounds sterling against those currencies in which it has significant
transactions The sensitivity analysis includes foreign currency
denominated assets and hiabilities at the balance sheet date and
outstanding foreign currency denorminated finanaal Instruments
and adjusts their translation at the penod end for a 25% change

in foreign currency rates

A 25% strengthening in pounds sterling againss the US dollar would
have the effect of reducing profit by £15 milllon (2013 reducing profit
by £21 million) of which losses of EI6 milon relate to non-cash
movements in the valuation of denvatives (2013 losses of £23 million)
The same strengthening would have an adverse impact on ather
equity of £288 millon (2013 adverse impact of £237 milkan)

A 25% weakening in pounds sterling against the US dollar would

have the effact of increasing profit by £25 mithon (2013 increasing
profit by £34 mifion) of which gains of £27 mibon relate te nen-cash
movements in the valuation of dervatives (2013 gains of £38 mithon)
The same weakening would have a benefioal impact on other equity
of E472 million (2013 benefioalimpact of £395 million)

A 25% strengthening in pounds sterhing against the euro would have
the effect of increasing profit by £2 miflion (2013 decreasing profit
by £1 million) None of this amount relates to non-cash movements
in the valuation of derivatives The same strengthening would have
a benefiaal impact on ather equity of £155 million {2013 benefical
impact of £157 mithon)

A 25% weakening In pounds sterling against the euro would have
the effect of decreasing profit by £3 milion (2013 increasing profit
by £1milion) None of this amount relates to non-cash movements
n the valuation of dervatives The same weakening would have

an acdverse impact on other equity of E253 million (2013 adverse
impact of £262 million)

The sensitity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should
be used wath caution as the impacts provided are not necessarily
inclcative of the actual impacts that would be expenenced betause
the Group s actusl exposure to market rates 15 constantly changing
as the Group s portfolo of debt. cash and foretgn currency contracts
changes In addition the effect of a change in a particular market
variable on fair values or cash flows is calculated without considerning
interrelationships between the various market rates or mitigating
actions that would be taken by the Group The changes invaluations
are estimates of the impact of changes n market, vanables and

are not a predicuon of future events or anticpated gains or losses

Hedge accounting

The interest rate and foreign exchange rate nisk sections above
outline the Groups palicies regarding use of denvative products
Further detail on valuations and the impact of hedge accounting
during the year are provided in nete 21

Credit rlsk

The Group 1s exposed to counterparty default nsk amounting
to invested cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits
and the positive farr value of derivative financial assets held

This nsk 1s deemed to be low Counterparty risk forms a central part
of the Group s Treasury policy, which s monitored and reported on
regularty The Group manages credit risk by diversifying its exposures
across awde number of counterparties such that the maxmum
exposure to any individual counterparty was 7% of the total asset
value of instruments at the end of theyear Treasury poliaes ensure
that all derwvative transactiens are only effected with streng
relationship banks and at the date of signing each carned a minimum
credit rating of “Baal” or equivalent from Standard & Poors To mitigate
remaining risks counterparty credit and sovereign rauings are closely
monitored and nomare than 10% of cash deposits are held with a
single bank counterparty (with the exception of overmght deposits
which are invested in a spread of AAAfrated hquidity funds),

The amount recogmsed Inthe Income statement 1n respect of
credit nisk for derwatives deemed held for trading ts il (2013 nil)

Credit nsk in our residential customer base s mitigated by billing
and collecting In advance for digital television subscriptions for
over 39% of our residential customer base The Group s maxirnum
exposure to credit nsk on trade recetvables is the carmying amounts
as disclosed innote 17
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Ligquidity nsk

Our principal source of iquidity 1S cash generated from operations combined with access toa £743 milion RCF which expires in October 2018
At 30 June 2014 this faciity was undrawn (30 June 2013 undrawn)

To ensure continuity of funding the Groups policy I1s to ensure that available funding matures over a period of years At 30 June 2014 29%
(2013 40%) of the Groups total available funding (including available undrawn amounts on our RCF) was dua to mature in more than five years

Full details of the Group s berrowings and undrawn faciities are shown in note 20 other than trade and other payables shown in note 18
and provisions shown in note 19

The followting table analyses the Group's nen-derivative financial hakilities, net settied dervative finantial instruments and gross settled financral
Instruments mto relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining penod at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and may therefore not reconcile to the amounts disclosed on the balance sheet
for borrowings denvative financial instruments provisions and trade and ather payables

Between Between
Less than oneand twoand  Morethan
2months twoyears fiveyears  fiveyears
£m £m £m Em
At 30 June 2014
Non denvatwve financial liabtiities
Bonds - USD nz 541 1002 947
Bonds - GBP 4 a1 500 444
Obhgations under finance leases and other barrowings n 12 27 139
Trade and other payables 1,686 99 3 -
Provisions 35 8 - 2
Net settled denvatives
Financial assets [&9)] (24} (41} -
Gross settled dervatives
Outflow 1356 1129 1867 960
Inflow 1327y 1121y (1865) {955)
Between Between
Less than one and twoand Morethan
2 months  twovyears fiveyears  five years
£m Em £m £m

At 30 June 2013
Non denvative financial labilities
Bonds - USD 125 125 1291 1490
Bands - GBP 41 a 5Q0 462
Obhgations under finance leases and other borrowings 1 n ry 144
Trade and other payables 1457 107 3 -
Provisions &6 4 1 3
Net settled denvatives
Financial assets (32) (3 (65) (6)
Gross settled dervatives
Outflow 1,020 160 1687 13B1
Inflow (1028} (775) {1876) aah
Capitat Risk Management

The Group s objectves when managing capital are to endeavour to ensure that the Group has the abxlity to access capital markets when necessary and
to optimise hquidity and operating flexibility through the arrangement of new debt, while seeking to minimise the cost of capital The Group monitors
13 quedity requirements regularly and 1s satisfied that it has access to sufficent iquidity and operating flexibiity to meet its capital requirements

The Group manages its short and long-term capital structure by seeking to maintain leverage ratios consistent with a long-term investment grade
credit rating (BBS- or better from Standard & Poor s and Baa3 or better from Moody's) The Group s current ratings are BBB+ {(Standard & Poor s)

and Baal (Moody ) The leverage ratios assessed by these rating agencies are those of Net Debt, EBITDA and Gross Debt EBITDA Net Debt is defined
as total borrowsngs including the cash flows ansing under operating leases and transponder prepayments less cash and cash equivalents excluding
dervatives Gross Debt does not reduce total borrowings by the inclusion of cash and cash equivalents

The Greup is also required to maintain a Net Debt EBITDA ratio below 300 1 and an EBITDA to Net interest Payable ratio at above 3501 under the
terms of its RCF The RCF definition of Net Debt does not require the inclusion of future operating lease or transponder cash flows

AL 30 June 2014 the Net Debt. EBITDA ratio as defined by the terms of the RCF was 071(2013 07 1) and the EBITDA to Net Interest Payable ratio
was1331(2013 1341
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
23 Share capital

2014 2013

Em £m

Allotted called-up and fully paid shares of 50p 1562 885 017 (2013 1593905182) 781 797
2014 203

MNumber of Number of

ordmary ordinary

shares shares

Allotted and fully paid duning the year

Beginrung of year 1593905182 1674454881
Shares repurchased and subsequently cancelled (3020165) (BOS49G699)
End of year 1562 885,017 1593,905,182

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry equal voting nghts and no contractual nght to recetve payment Full details of the
Company s share buy-back programme are prowded in note 24

Share option and contingent share award schemes
The Company operates vanous equity-settled share option schemes (the "Schemes”) for certain employees

The number of newly issued shares which may be allocated under the Schemes on any day shall not when aggregated with the number of
newly issued shares which have been allocated in the previous ten years under the Schemes and any other employee share scheme adopted
by the Company exceed such number as represents Five per cent of the ordinary share capital of the Company in issug immediately poior te
that day In determining this hmit no account shall be taken of any newly Issued shares where the nght to acquire the newly 1ssued shares was
released lapsed cancelled or otherwise became incapable of exercise Options and awards which will be satisfied by ESOP shares do not fall
within these headroom hrmits

The share awards outstanding can be summarnsed as follows

204 23

Number of Number of

ordinary ordinary

shares shares

Executive Share Option Scheme options!) 147020 931 247
Sharesave Scheme options™ 796924 7159954
Management LTIP award st 16056 961 24365112
LTIP awards®™ 5575000 8844132
Management Co-Investment LTIP awards® 2085719 1975705
Ca-investment LTIP awards™ 2235172 2068175

34056796 45,344,325

(1) Executive Share Option Scheme options
Ali Executive Share Option Scheme options outstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 have vested No options have been granted under
the scheme since 2004

Grants under the Executive Share Optien Scheme were made on an annual basis to selected employaes with the exerase price of options being
equal to the Company’s share price on the date of grant For those options with perfermance conditions growthn EPS had to exceed growth

In the Retail Prices Index plus 3% per annum in order for awards te vest Options vested on an accelerated basis over a penod of up to four years
From the date of grant The contractual ife of all Executive Share Option $cheme options 1s ten years

(i) Sharesave Scheme options

All Sharesave Scheme options outstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 have no performance cnteria attached other than the requrement
that the employee remains in employment with the Group Options granted under the Sharesave Scheme must De exercised vathin sixmonths

of the relevant award vesting date

The Sharesave Scheme s open to all employees Options are normally exercisable after either three or five years from the date of grant The price
at which options are offered s not 1ess than BO% of the mddle-market pnce on the dealing day immediately preceding the date of invitation
Its the policy of the Group to make aninvitation to employees to participate in the scheme following the announcement of the end of year results

(i} Management LTIP awards
All Management LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 vest only if performance conditions are met Awards granted under
the Management LTIP must be exerased within five years of the retevant award vesting date

The Company grants awards to selected employees under the Management, LTIP Awards under this scheme mirror the LTIP wath the same
performance conditions Awands exercaised under the Management LTIP can only be satisfied by the issue of market-purchased shares

(v} LTIP awards
AILTIP awards cutstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 vest only if performance conditions are met Awards granted under the LTIP must.
be exercised within five years of the refevant award vesting date
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The Company operates the LTIP for Executive Directors and Senior Executives Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of a nil-priced
option and are satisfied using market-purchased shares The awards vest in full or in part dependent on the satisfaction of specified performance
targets For awards maden 2008 and 2009 (1e awards that vested In2011), 30% of the award vested dependent on TSR performancea gvar
athreeyear performance penod relative to the constituents of the FTSE 100 at the time of grant, and the remaining 70% vested dependent

on performance against operational targets The TSR performance targets were not applicable to awards made between July 2010 and

March 2012 but have been re-introduced for awards granted from July 2012 onwards

(v) Management Co-Investment LTIP awards
Ali Managemens Co-Investment LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 vest only if performance conditions are met
Awards granted under the Management Co-inwvestment LTIP must be exercised within five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company grants awards to selected employees under the Management Co-Investment LTIP Awards under this scheme mirror the
Co-Investment LTIP with the same performance conditions

{w1) Co-Investment LTIP awards
All Co-investment LTiP awards outstanding at 30 June 2074 and 30 June 2013 vest anly i performance conditiens are met Awards granted
undler the Co-Investment LTIP must be exercised within five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company operates the Co-Investment LTIP award for Executive Directors and Semicr Executives Employees who partictpate in the plan
are granted a conditional award of shares based on the amount they have iInvested in the Company s shares The investment wall be matched
up to a maximum of 15 shares for every share invested subject o a three-year EPS performance candition

For the purposes of the disclosure below the Management LTIP, LTHP Management Co-Investment LTIP and Co-Investment LTIP awards
("Semor Management Schemes®) have been aggregated

The movement in share awards cutstanding 1s summansed in the following table

Senior management

Executive Scheme Sharesave Scheme Schemes Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average average

exercise exerarse exerase exergse

price price price price

Number E Number £ Number £ Number £

Cutstanding at 1 July 2012 2630435 584 7238348 494 25303300 000 35172083 145
Granted dunng the year - - 2,050 022 608 15012591 000 17071613 073
Exercised during the year (1599 B20) 588 1341667} 440 (1824 435) 000 (4765922 AN
Forfeited during the year (64334 604 (795749) 519  (1238332) 000  (2098415) 215
Expired dunng the year (35034) 530 - - - - (35034) 530
Outstanding at 30 June 2013 931247 579 7159954 534 37253124 000 45344325 096
Granted duning the year - - 30221 682 10068805 00 13091016 157
Exercrsed during the year (771806) 595 (1217391 496 (20763,738) 000  (22752935) a7
Farfewted during the year {0516) 503 (361166) 589 (625 339) QQo (1597021) 368
Expired dunng the year {1905) 662 (26 684) 447 - - (28 589) 461
Outstanding at 30 June 20714 147020 503 7976924 580 25532852 000 34056796 140

The weighted average market price of the Group s shares at the date of exercise for share options exernised dunng the year was £8 42 (2013 £783)

For those exercised under the Executive Scheme it was £8 48 (2013 £779), for thase exertised under the Sharesave Scheme it was EB 82(2013 £819)

and for thase exercised under the Senior Management Schemas it was £8 40 (2013 £760)
The middle-market closing price of the Company s shares at 27 June 2074 was £8 93 (28 tune2013 £792)

The foltowng table summarrses information about share awards outstanding at 30 June 2014

Seror management

Executive Scheme Sharesave Scheme Schemes Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average average

remaning remaining remamning remaining

contractual contractual contractual contractual

Iife Ife Ife Ife

Range of exeroise prices Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
£00Q0 - E100 - - - - 25932852 60 25932852 50
£300-£400 - - 28 381 01 - - 28383 o0
£400-£500 - - 339644 1 - - 339644 W
E500-£E600 147020 01 3239353 20 - - 31386373 19
E600-£700 - - 4 369,546 3N - - 4369546 31
147,020 o1 7976 924 25 250932852 60 34,056,796 52
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(continued)
23 Share capital continued)

The following table summarises information about share awards outstanding at 30 June 2013

Senlor management

Executive Scheme Sharesave Scheme Schernes Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average average

remaming remaining remaning remaining

contractual contractual contractual contractual

Iife life hfe hfe

Range of exerase pnces Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
EQOD-£100 - - - - 37253124 59 37253124 59
E3CO-£400 - - 410643 1 - - 410643 ER
E400 - £500 - - 440134 17 - - 440134 17
EE00-£600 485586 1 4387409 26 - - 4872995 25
E6 00 - £700 444163 02 1921768 35 - - 2,365931 29
E700-£800 1498 07 - - - - 1,498 a7
931247 07 7159 954 27 37253124 59 45344325 53

The range of exercise prices of the awards outstanding at 30 June 2014 was between niland E6 82 (2013 nil and £716) For those awards outstanding
under the Executive Scheme it was between £5 03 and £5 39 (2013 £5 03 and £716) for those outstanding under the Sharesave Scheme it was between
E372and £6 82 (2013 £3 72 and £6 08) and for all awards cutstanding under the Senior Management Schemes the exercise pnce was nif 2013 i)

The following table summanses additional information about the awards exer¢isable at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013

2014 2013

Average Average
remaining  Wesghted remaining  Weighted
contractual average contractual average
Options Iife of exercise Opliong life of axercise
exercisable  exerosable price  exercsable  exercisable prce
at 30 June optons [3 at 30 June options £
Executive Scheme 47020 01 503 531247 07 579
Sharesave Scheme 78 668 03 495 97457 01 449
Senior Management Schemes 872,229 35 coo 663972 37 Q00
1,087,917 28 103 1692 676 18 345

tnformation for awards granted during the year

The weighted average fair value of equity-settied share options granted during the year as estimated at the date of grant, was £5 53 (2013 £516)
This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share eption priong medel except for awards which have market-based performance conditions
where a Monte-Carlo simulation model was used and for grants of nil-priced options which were treated as the award of a free share The farr
value of ni-priced options granted during the year was measured on the basis of the market-price of the Company s shares on the date of grant,
discounted for expected dividends which would not be recetved over the vesting penod of the options

The Mante-Carto stmulation model reflected the historical votatiites of the Company s share price and those of all ather compantes to which
the Company s performance would be compared over a penod equal to the vesting period of the awards

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the historical volatiity of the Company s share price over a period equal to the expected Iife
of the options Expected life was based on the contractual ife of the awards and adjusted based on management s best estimate for the
effects of exercrse restrictions and behavioural considerations

(i) Sharesave Scheme
The weighted average far value of equity-settied share awards granted dunng the year under the Sharesave Scheme, as estimated at the
date of grant was £189 (2013 £157) This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share eption priang model

The following weighted average assumptions were used in caleulating these fair values

2014 2013
Share price £870 £751
Exercise price £682 E608
Expected volatility 22% 24 0%
Expected life 4Qyears 40years
Expected dvidends 33% 34%
fisk-free Interest rate 12% 0 4%
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(i) Semor management Schemes

The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year under the Senior Management Schemes, as estmated
at the date of grant was £6 62 (2013 £566) The far value of awards with market-based parformance conditions was cakculated using

a Monte-Carlo simulation model Awards granted as nil-priced opt:ons were treated as the award of a free share For all other awards,

farr value was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing model

The following weighted average assumptions were used in calcutating these fair values

20%4 203
Share price £828 ET6
Exercise price EQ Q0 £000
Expected volatility 191% 63%
Expected Iife 2lyears  3Q0years
Expected dividends 33% 36%
Risk-free interest rate Q4% 00%
24 Shareholders’ equity
204 2013
£m £Em
Share capital 781 797
Share premmum 1437 1437
ESOP reserve (145) (147)
Hedging raserve 20y n
Available-for-sale reserve 455 EL3 |
Other reserves 455 439
Retained earnings (1891) (1878)
1072 1012

Purchase of own equity shares for canceflation

On1 November 2012, at the Company’s AGM, the Company was granted the authonty to return £500 million of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme (the "Movember 2012 Autherity™) This authonty was subject to an agreement between the Company and Twenty-First
Century Fox Ine (formerly known as News Corporation) (and others) dated 28 July 2012 whereby following any market purchases of shares by
the Company, Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc would sell to the Company sufficient shares to maintain its percentage shareholding at the same
leve! as applied prior to those market purchases The pnice payable to Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc would be the price payable by the Company
inrespect of the retevant market purchases {the “2012 Share Buy-back Agreement”)

At the Company's AGM on 22 November 2013, the Company was granted the authority to return a further E500 million of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programme (the "November 2013 Authority™) This authority was subject to an agreement between the Cornpany and
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. (and others) dated 25 July 2012 on substantially the same terms as the 2012 Share Buy-back Agreement.

During the year the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 31,020165 ordinary shares at an average price of £8 53 per share, with a
nominal value of £16 milhon for a constderation of £266 milien Consideration included stamp duty and commission of £1 millon This represents
2% of called-up share capital at the beginning of the penod Of these purchases the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 12140586
ordinary shares from Twenty-First Century Fox Ing at an average price of £8 53 per share with a nominal value of £6 million for a consideration

of £104 milion Consideration included stamp duty of £1 milion

Dunng the pnor year the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 80 549 699 ordinary shares at an average price of £775 per share
with a nominaivalue of £40 milbion for a consideration of £627 milllon Consideraton included stamp duty and commission of £3 millon

This represents 5% of called-up share capital at the beginning of the penod OF these purchases, the Company purchased and subsequently
cancelled 31525314 ordinary shares from Twenty-First Century Fox Inc at an average price of £775 per share with a nominal value of £16 million
for a considerauon of £245 million Consideration included stamp duty of £1 million
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
24 Shareholders’ equity (continued)

The following table provides information about purchases of equity shares by the company including purchases by the Group s ESOP
during the fiscal year

Capital Capital

Total capital  Totalcaptal authonsedto authonsed to

returned retumed bereturned be returned

under the under the under the under the

Total Average November November November November

number of pnee paid 2012 03 202 2013

shares per shire Authonty Authority Authonty Authority

purchased® E Em? £mt EmBe £me?

July - - - - 61 -

August 20824829 838 7 - 44 -

September 815530 B854 - - 44 -

October - - - - A4 -
November 5464 285 LN 33 2 - 488 {

December £€,458 989 803 - 52 - 436

January 196152 825 - ¥ - 434

February 4250710 880 - 7 - 397

March 1694 462 97 - 16 - £

April 3560001 893 - 32 - 349

May 5482357 872 - 48 - 301

June 1807361 B - 16 - 285

Total for the year ended 30 June 2014 50,554 678 848 50 215 s 285

) Allshare purchases are Included in the month of setttemaent.
(1) The November 2012 Authority expired on 22 November 2013 Accordingly no more repurchases can take place under thus authority

Share premium and special reserve

On 10 December 2003 the High Court approved a reduction in the Company's share premium account of £1120 mullion, as approved by the
Company’'s shareholders at the AGM held on 14 November 2003 This amount was equal to the Company-only profit and loss account reserve

defiat at 30 June 2003 As part of the application the Company's balance sheet at 30 September 2003 was required to be presented At that date
the deficat on the Company-only profit and loss account reserve had recduced by £14 milion since 30 June 2003, to £1106 milllon As a condition of
the reduction the reductron in the share prermium account of £1120 mullion was permitted to be offset against the profit and loss account reserve
by the amount of the deficit at 30 September 2003 The excess of £14 milkon was credited to a special reserve, which 1s included in other reserves
and under the terms of the reduction will remain undistnbutable until all the ereditors of the Company and its guarantors (as at 10 December 2003)
are paid

ESOP reserve

The cost of the Company’s ordinary shares held by the Group s ESOP is treated as a deduction In arnving at total shareholders equity The movement
in the ESOP reserve was as follows

Number of Average
orchnary price pard
shares per share £m
At uly 2012 16293345 EEBS n2
Share aptions exercised during the year (4765522 £714 (34)
Shares purchased by the ESOP dunng the year 9000000 E769 69
At 30 June 2013 20527423 £715 147
Share options exercised during the year (22752935) £7.27 (166}
Shares purchased by the ESOP during the year 1953451 E8 40 164
At 30 June 2014 17308999 £840 145

Hedging reserve

Changes in the farr values of dervatives that are designated as cash flow hedgas are initially recogrused in the hedging reserve and subsequently
recognisedin the income statement when the related hedged items are recognised in the income statement In additon deferred taxation relating
tothese dervatrves 1s also initially recogrised in the hedging reserve pnor to transfar to the income statement

Available-for-sale reserve

Avallable-for-sale Investments are carned at far value where this can be reliably measured with movements In the far value recogrused directly
inthe avalable-for-sale reserve At 30 June 2014 the Group s avallable-for-sale reserve was £455 rmillion (2013 £351 million)
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The Groups other reserves include a capital redemption reserve, a merger reserve a foreign currency translation reserve and a special reserve
The capital redemption reserve was £190 million as at 30 June 2014 (2013 £174 million) The merger reserve was £222 million as at 30 June 2014
(2013 £222 milion) The special reserve was E14 millien as at 30 June 2014 (2013 £14 milhor) The foreign currency translation reserve was

£29 millon as at 30 June 2014 (2013 £29 millior)

Merger resarve

The merger reserve was created in accordance with the merger relief prowisions under section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 {as amended)
and section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 refating to the accounting for business combinations involving the issue of shares at a premium
Merger relief provided relief from the requirement to create a share premium accaunt in a parent company's balance sheet In prepanng
consohidated financial statements the amount by which the fair value of the shares issued exceeded their nominal value was recorded
within amerger reserve on consolidation rather than in a share premium account This merger reserve was retamed upon transition to

IFRS, as allowed under UK law

The merger reserve whichis included in othar reserves, was created as a result of the purchase by the Group of interestsin two entiues
S5IG was purchased on 12 July 2000, where consideration was paid by the 1ssue of equity shares tn the Company BB was purchased between
28 June 2001 and 11 November 2002, where consideration was paid by the issue of equity shares in the Company At 30 June 2014 the Groups

merger reserve was £222 milllon (2013 £222 mullion)

25 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement.

Reconclhiation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2014 2013
Em Em
Profit before tax 1082 1,257
Depreaation and impairment of praperty plant and equipment 208 176
Amortisation and impairment of intangivle assets 228 202
Share-based payment expense 60 80
Net finance costs 14 BO
Share of results of joint ventures and assooates (35) (46)
1657 1745
(Increase) decrease in trade and other recevables (28) 35
Increasein inventones - 93
Increase in trade and other payables 183 136
(Decrease) tncrease in provisions {“47) 52
Increase (decrease) in dervative finanaalinstruments 4 (2)
Cash generated from operations 1769 1877
26 Contracted commitments, contingencies and guarantees
a) Future minimum expenditure contracted for but not recognised in the financtal statements
Year Year Year Year Year
ending ending ending ending ending Total at Total at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June After5 30 June 30 June
2015 2016 207 2018 20019 years 04 2013
£m £m £m Em Em £m Em £m
Telewision programme nghts 1482 1374 562 410 197 369 4401 4763
Set-top boxes and related equipment 180 - - - - - 180 202
Third party payments®? 65 58 28 4 - - 155 189
Transponder capacity™ 78 75 | 64 64 167 519 634
Property plant and equipment 36 - - - - - 36 177
Intangible assets™ 31 26 24 18 5 - 104 nz
Smartcards™ 41 a2 42 43 10 - 178 232
Other 236 21 a9 53 5 7 52 574
2149 1696 533 592 281 543 6,094 6723

Foreign currency commitments are translated to pounds sterling at the rate prevaiiing on the balance shaet date

() Thethird party payment commitments are in respect of distribution agreements for the telewsion channe's owned and broadcast by third parues retailed by the

Group teretall and commercial subsenbers ("Sky Distnbuted Channals?)

() Transponder capacity comimitments are inrespect af the SES satelites that the Group uses for digital transmissions to bothretail subsenbers and cable operators
(u) Commitments inrelation to the prowision of smarteards Smartcards under development are included withn intangible assets The amounts included above are the

expacted ongoing smartcard ¢osts based on forecast customer levels
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

b) Contingencies and guarantees

Certain substdtaries of the Company have agreed to previde additional funding to several of therr investments in limited and unhmited companies
and partnerships in accordance with funding agreements Payment of this additional funding would be required if requested by the investees in
accordance with the funding agreements The maximum potenual amount of future payments which may be required to be made by the subsicharies
of the Company to thewr investments in both lmited and unlimited companies and partnerships under the undertakings and additiona! funding
agreements rs £17 million (2013 £25 million)

The Greup has guarantees in place relating to the Group s borrowings, see note 20

Ofcomdetermination
included within direct networks casts for the year ended 30 June 2013 1s a credit of £32million i1 relation to a credit note received from 8T

foltowang an Ofcom determination in 2012, which required BT to repay mones to Sky for overcharged-for Ethernet services (backhaul) between
2006407 and 200910 (2013 £32 millon) Sky BT and others have appealed Ofcom's determmation in the CAT

27 Operating lease commitments

The minimum lease rentals to be paid under non-cancellable operaung leases at 30 June are as follows

2014 2013

Em £m

Within one year a7 49
Between one and two years ] 42
Between two and three years 41 a5
Between three and four years 2 37
Between four and five years 14 18
After five years 33 45
157 226

The majonity of operating leases relate to property The rents payable under these leases are subject to renegotiation at the various intervals
specfiedin the leases

The minimum sub-lease rentals to be received under non-cancefiable operating sub-leases at 30 June are as follows

2004 2013
£m Em

Within one year 1 2
Between one and two years - 2
Between two and three years _ 2
Between three and four years _ 2
Between four and five years - 1
After five years - g
1 14

Sub-lease rentals primarily relate to property leases

28 Transactions with related parties and major shareholders

a) Entities with joint control or sigmficant influence

During the year the Group conducted business transactions with companies that form part of the Twenty-First Century Fox Inc group a major
shareholder in the Company

Transacuons with refated parties and amounts outstandingin relation to those transactions and with related parties at 30 June are as follows

2014 2013
£m Em
Supply of goods or services by the Group 82 89
Purchases of goods or services by the Group (27) (156)
Amounts owed to the Group 7
Amounts owed by the Group (134) {10%)

At 30 June 2014 the Group had expenditure commitments of £E99 mullion In refation to transactions with related parties (2013 £97 milion)
all of which related to minimum television programming nghts commitments
Goods and services supphed

Durning the year the Group supphed set-top boxes programming, airtime transmission marketing, consultancy servces customer relationship
management services and a licence to use the Sky brand to Twenty-First Century Fox Inc companies
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28 Transactions with related parties and major shareholders (continued)

Purchases of goods and services and certain other relationships
Curing the year the Group purchased programmung and technical and marketing services from Twenty-First Century Fox Inc. companies

There s an agreement between Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. and the Group pursuant to which it was agreed that for s long as Twenty-First
Century Fox Inc directly or indirectly holds aninterest of 30% or more in the Group Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc will not engage in the business
of satellte breadcasting i the UK or treland

Share buy-back programme

During the year the Company purchased, and subsequently cancelled 12,140 586 ardinary shares held by Twenty-First Century Fox Inc as part
of its share buy-back programme For further details, see note 24

b) Joint ventures and assoctates

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed
In this note Transactions between the Group and its joint ventures and associates are disclosed below

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, jont ventures and associates are disclosed in the Company's separate financial statements

2014 2013

Em £m

Supply of serwices by the Group 19 22
Purchases of goods or sennces by the Group (66) (65)

Armnounts awed by joint ventures and associates to the Group g8 g9
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates by the Group {0 )

Services supplied are primanly the prowision of transponder capadty marketing, airtime sales and support services Purchases represent fees payable
for channel carnage Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates include E1milllon (2013 £1 milkon) relating to loan funding

These loans bear interest at a rate of one month LIBOR plus 1% The maximum amount of loan funding outstanding i total from joint ventures and
assooates duning the year was E1 milhon (2013 £7 milhon)

The Group took out a number of forward exchange contracts with counterparty banks dunng the year on behalf of the joint venture AETN UK
On the same dates as these forward contracts were entered into the Group entered into equal and opposite contracts with AETN UK in respect
of these forward contracts

Consequently the Group was not exposed to any of the net gans or losses on these forward contracts The Face value of forward exchange contracts
with AETN UK that had not matured as at 30 June 2014 was £4 milhon (2073 £8 million)

During the year US$4 million (2013 US$4 million) was pard to the joint venture upon matunty of forward exchange contracts and less than
US$1 milien (2013 USHnil) was receved from the joint venture upon maturity of forward exchange contracts

During the year £3 mdlion (2013 £2 million) was received from the joint venture upon matunty of forward exchange contracts and £5 milion
(2013 £3 milhon) was paid to the joint venture upon matunty of forward exchange contracts

Dunng the year €5 million (2013 €4 milhon) was recerved from the joint venture upon matunty of forward exchange contracts and less than
€1 million (2013 €nil) was paid to the joint venture upon maturity of forward exchange contracts

At 30 June 2014 the Group had mmimum expenditure commitments of £3 milion (2013 £4 milion) with its joint ventures and assocates

¢) Other transactions with related parties

A close family member of one Director of the Company runs Freud Communications Limmited (*Freud™) which has provided external support
ta the press and publicity activities of the Group Dunng the year the Group incurred expenditure amounting to £1mdlion {2013 £1 millon)
with Freud At 30 June 2014 there was £1milien (2013 less than £1millior) due to Freud

In addition to the foregoing. the Group has engaged m anumber of transactions with companies of which some of the Company’s Directors
are also directors These do not meet the definition of related party transactons
d) Key management

The Group has a related party relatonship with the Directors of the Company At 20 June 2014 there were 15 {2013 14) members of key
management all of whom were Directors of the Company Keymanagement compensation 1s disclosed in note 6b
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
29 Events after the reporting period

On 17 July 2014 the Group sold a shareholding of approximately 6 4% in {TV ple, consisting of 259 820 065 [TV shares for an aggregate consideration
of approximately £481 million

The Company announced on 25 July 2014 that 1t has conditionally entered into share purchase agreements (the “"Acquisiion Agreements”™)

with Twenty-First Century Fox Ine (and its relevant subsidianes) to acquire 11s 100% stake in Sky itaha S and its 57 4% stake in Sky Deutschland AG
The Campany further announced its intention to make a voluntary cash offer (the "Offer™) to the minority shareholders of Sky Deutschland AG

The Acquisition Agreements and the Offer (together the “Transactions”) are conditicnal on amongst other things their approval by the Company's
independent shareholders and regulatory clearances

The total consideration for the acquisition of Sky Italia Is E2.45 billion with approximately £2 07 billion to be paid in cash and the balance to be
satisfied through the transfer of the Group s 21% stake in National Geographic Channel to Twenty-First Century Fox, In¢ {"21CF7) The acquisition
of 21CF's shareholding tn Sky Deutschland A G s for a consideration of £29 billion in cash valuing Sky Deutschland at €675 a share Subject to
the nurmber of Sky Deutschland A G minority shareholders that accept the Offer the total consideration for the transaction will range from
E£29 billion to £5 bithon

The total consideration payable for the Transactions will be funded in part by the proceeds of a placing of 156132 213new Ordinary Shares
representing approximately 999% of the existing Issued share capstal of the Company to both existing and new institutional investors which
was also announced on 25 July 2014 21CF which has a 3914% shareholding in the Company has undertaken to subscnbe for 61106 436 of the
shares being placed so as to maintain Its existing percentage shareholding in the Company following completion of the placing The remaining
consideration will come from a combination of new debt faclites (as descnbed below) and cash resources

On 25 July 2014 the Company entered into afaciities agreement (the “Faciities Agreement”) documentng a committed bridge lcan facility
€400 billion ("Term Loan A7) a term loan fachity of E450 mithon and €2 5 bilkan ("Term Loan B7) and a revoiving loan faality of E1 billion
(the "RCF7) The Faclities Agreement 1s unsecured but s guaranteed by vanous of the Company's subsidiaries

Term Loan A matures 12 months after the date of the Facilities Agreement subject ta an option at the Company's discretion to extend fora
further one-year period Term Loan B matures 36 months after the date of the Faciltties Agreement with a one-year extension penad available
at the diseretion of the lenders The RCF matures on 30 November 2013 subject to two one-year extension options at the discretion of the lenders

The Graup 1s subject to two financial covenants under the Facihitses Agreement a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum interest cover ratio
which are tested at the end of each six monthly period beginning on 30 June 2015 The key financial covenants are the ratio of Net Debt to
EBITDA (each as defined in the Faalities Agreement) and EBITDA to Consolidated interest Charges (as defined in the Faalities Agreement)
Net Debt to ERITDA must be no more than 4 00 1until 30 June 2016 and thereafter ne more than 3 501 EBITDA to Consolidated Interest
Charges must be atleast 3501

Term Loan A and Term Laan B are avalable to be used to fund among other things the consideration payable under the Acquisiion Agreements
and the consideration payable Lo the minarity shareholders of Sky Deutschiand AG pursuant to the Offer
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30 Group investments

Fnanaal statements - Notes to the consolidatied finanaal statements

The significant investments of the Company which prinapally affect the consolidated results and total assets of the Group are as follows

Country of Description and proportion

MName incorporation of shares held (%) Prinapal actaty

Subsidiaries

Direct holdings of the Company

Bntish Sky Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 10002,002 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Operation of pay television broadeasting
and home communications services in the
UK and Ireland

BSkyB Finance UK plc United Kingdom 50 000 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%) Finance company

Subsidianes.

tncirect hoidings of the Company

Sky Subscnbers Services Limited United Kingdom

Sky Holdings Limited
SkyIn-Home Service Limited

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

BSkyB Telecommunications
Services Limited

Sky Ventures Limited

The Cloud Networks Limited
Hestview Limited

Bonne Terre Liumited

Sky Flome Communications Limuted

United Kingdom

Uneted Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urited Kingdom
Alderney

United Kingdom

Joint ventures and assocates

Nickelodeon UK Limited® United Kingdom

AETN UK United Kingdom
Paramount UK Partnershipts United Kingdom
Austrahian News Channel Pty Austraha

Limited

NGC Network International LLC United States of
Amenca

United States of
America

United Kingdom

NGC Network Latin Amerca LLC
Attheraces Holdings Limited®
Sky News Arabra FZ-LLC United Arab Emirates

Investments

TV ple®™ United Kingdom

3 ordinary shares of £1each (100%)

6Q0 ordinary shares of £1 aach (100%)

+576 000 ordinary shares of £1each (100%)
5821764 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%)

912 ordinary shares of £1each (100%)

30 583 988 shares of £0 00025 per shara (100%)
108 ordinary sharas of £1 each (100%)

2504 ordinary shares of £1 each (300%)
9528124 ordinary shares of £1each{100%})

104 B Shares of £0 Q1 each (40%)

50 000 A Shares of £1 each (50%)
Partnership interest (25%)

1 ordinary share of AUD$1 (33 33%)
Partnerstup interest (21%)

Partnership interest (21%)

1502 ardinary shares of E1 each (45 9%),

20 Recoupment Shares of £0 55 each
26656 666 shares of LUSE1 each (50%)

Provision of anallary functions supporting

the pay television broadcasting, residential
broadband and telephene operations of

the Group

Halding company

Supply, instaltation and maintenance of satellte
television receving equipment, broadband and
wireless connactor equupment

Management of the network assets in the UK

Holding company

Prowision of telecommunications

Provision of sparts betting actvities

Prowsion of gaming actviies

Prowvision of residentiat broadband and telephone
operations

Transmission of children s television channels
Transmission of history cnme and investigation
television programming and the Lifetime Channel
Transmission of general entertanment comedy
channels

Transmission of news and business channels

Transmission of natural history and adventure
channels

Transmussion of natural history and adventure
channels

Transmission of a horse racing channel and
related onhne actvities

Transmission of Arabic News in the MENA region
(Middle East and Narth Afnica)

291684 730 ordinary shares of £010each (7 23%) Transmussion of free to-air channels

() These entities have an accounting reference date of 31 Dacember

(1) Thase entities have an acceunung reference date of 30 September
(i) The regrstered address of Paramount UK Partnership 1s 180 Oxford Street, London WID 1DS The Paramount UK Partnership 5. a jomt venture of the Group and
15 included within the consolhdated accounts n accordance with Note I(c)u). Consequently the Paramount UK Partnership has taken advantage of the exemption
withun tha Partnerships (Account €) Regutations 2008 (regulation 7) from filing annual financial statements
(v} On17?July 2014 the Group sold a shareholding of approximately 6 4% m [TV consisting of 259 820 065 1TV shares For further detans refer tonote 29
(v} This note sets out an abbreviated kst of the subsidianes of the Comparny A full kst will be fifed with Comparwes House in accordanca with section 4310

of the Compan:es Act 2006

The following companies are exempt from the requirements relating to the audit of ndiadual accounts for the yearipenod ended 30 June 2014 by virtue of section
4794 of the Companies Act 2006 BSkyB Finance Limited (02906994). Kidsprog Limited (02767224), Parthenon Media Group Linuted (06944197), SATV Publistung
Limited (81085375), Sky IP intermational Limited (07245844) and Sky Television Limited (01518707)
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Financal statements - Notes to the consobdated finanaal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
31 British Sky Broadcasting Group plc company only financial statements

Company Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2004 2013
Notes £m £m
Revenue 225 214
Operating expense 24 (40)
Operating profit 181 1ra
Divdend income from subsidiaries o} 622 947
Investment income =] 64 58
Finance costs a8 {81) (&1
Profit before tax C 786 1118
Taxation D (36) (30)
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 750 1088
The accompanying netes are anintegral part of this income statement
Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2014
204 2013
£m im
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 750 1,088
Other comprehensive Income
Amounts recognised directly In equuty that may subsequently be recyded to the income statement
{Loss) gain on cash flow hedges 79 3
Tax on cash flow hedges 8 U]
{61} 2
Amounts reclassified and reported in the snceme statement
Gain {loss) on cash flow kedges 97 (28)
Tax on cash flow hedges 22 7
75 [ed)]
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year (net of tax) 14 (19)
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders 764 1,069

All results relate to continuing cperations
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Fnandal MNotes Lo the consolidated finanaal st ts
Company Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2014
2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Nen-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries E 8146 8143
Other receivables G 2 3
Denvative finanoal assets J 175 4
8323 8487
Current assets
Other recevables G 3008 2967
Cash and cash equivalents 1 -
3009 2967
Total assets 1332 11454
Current habilties
Other payables | 1613 3434
Naon-current habihties
Berrowangs H 1557 g
Dervative financial lrabihties J 156 176
Deferred tax habilities F 4 1
117 1885
Total habilities 5330 5 329
Share capital L 781 797
Share premium L 1437 1437
Reserves 3784 38,
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 6002 6,125

Total habllites and shareholders equity

11332 11,454

The accompanying hotes are an integral part of this balance sheet

These financal statements of Briush Sky Broadeasting Group ple registered number 02247735 have been approved by the Beard of Directors

on 25 July 2014 and were signed on its behalf by

Andrew Gnffith
Chief Fina

Jeremy Darroch
ief.Executive Officer

f]

Company Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 203
Notes £m Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations M - -
Net cash from operating activities - -
Cash flows from financing actrities
Proceeds from the exerase of share optons n 5
Loan to subsidiaries [4[9)] (&)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities 1 (1)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 (]

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

- 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this cash flow statement,
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Finanaal statements - Notes ta the consoldated financal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
31 Brnitish Sky Broadcasting Group ple company only financial statements (continued)

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Capitat Total
Share Share Spectal redemption Capital £SOP  Hedgng Retamed Shareholders
capital premum  reserve reserve  resefve  reserve  reserve  earnings equity
£m £m £m £m £m Em Em £m £Em
At 1July 2012 837 1437 " 134 844 (112) ) 2,844 6104
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1088 1088
Recogmtion and transfer of cash flow hedges - - - - - - (25) - (25)
Tax onitems taken directly to equity - - - - - - 6 - 6
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (4] 1088 1069
Share-based payment - - - - - (35) - &1 26
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellatvon (80} - - 40 - - - (617} (617}
- Financial habiity for close peniod
purchases - - - - - - - (5) ()]
Didends - - - - - - - 441 (441)
At 30 June 2013 797 1437 “ 174 844 (147) 13) 3019 6125
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 750 750
Recogrition and transfer of cash flow hedges - - - - - - 13 - 18
Tax onitems taken directly to equity - - - - - - 1G] - (4)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 14 750 764
Share-based payment - - - - - 2 - (95) {93}
Share buy-back programme {see note 24)
- Purchase of awn shares for cancellation ('6) - - 16 - - - {250) (250}
- Finangial hability for close period
purchases - - - - - - - 59 (59)
Dividends - - - - - - - (485) {485)
AL 30 June 2014 781 1437 14 190 844 {145} 1 2,880 6002

For a description of the nature and purpose of each equity raserve seenote b

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement of changes in equity

A Accounting policies

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc (the “Company™) 1$ a public imited company incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered
n England and Wales

1} Basis of preparation
The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS consistent with the accounting policies set out
in note 1of the Group s consobdated financial statements

I1) Revenue

Revenue which excludes value added tax represents the gross inflow of economic benefit from the Company s operating activittes

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration recemved or recevable The Company's main source of reverue 1s from hicensing

tha Compatiy s brand name asset to subsidianes This revenue 1s recognised on an accruals basis under the terms of refevant icensing agreements

) Investment in subsidianes

An investment in a subsidiary is recogmised at cost less any provision for impairment As permitted by section 133 of the Companies Act 2006
where the relief afforded under section 131 of the Camparies Act 2006 apples costis the aggregate of the nominalvalue of the relevant number
of the Company’s shares and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the share capital of the subsidiary undertakings
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B Investment income and finance costs

Financial statements - Notes to the conscidated finanaal statements

2014 2003
Em Em
Investment income
Investment iInceme from subsidiaries £4 58
204 2013
£m £tm
Finance costs
- interest payable and similar charges
Revolving Credit Facility {*RCF”) (2) (73]
Guaranteed Notes {see note H) (BO) (76)
(82 78)
- Cther finance income (expense)
Remeasuremnent of borrowings and borrowings-related dervative financial instruments (not qualifying for hedge accounting) - 16
Lass ansing on dervatives in a designated farr value hedge accounting relationship (4 (22)
Gain ansing on adjustment for hedged item in a designated fair value hedge accounting relationship 15 23
1 17
(81) [(1h]
C Profitbefore taxation
Employee benefits
The Company had nil employees (2013 nilyduring the year
Key management compensation
Amaunts paid to the Directors of the Company are disclosed in the Report on Directors remuneration on pages 53 to 76
D Taxation
i) Taxation recognised in the income statement
204 203
£m Em
Current tax expense
Current year 37 37
Adjustment in respect of prior years - (U]
Total current tax charge 37 26
Deferred tax expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (¢} 4
Total deferred tax (credit) charge [ 4
Taxation 36 30
n} Deferred tax recognised directly sn equity
2014 2013
£m £m
Deferred tax charge (credit) on hedg:n_s actvities 4 (5)
Iiiy Reconcillation of effective tax rate
The tax expense for the year s lower 2013 lower) than the expense that would have been charged using the blended rate of corporation
taxin the UK (22.5%) applied to profit before tax The applicable enacted or substantrvely enacted effectve rate of UK corporation tax
for the year was 22 5% (2012 23 75%) The differences are explained below
2014 2013
tm £m
Profit before tax 786 ms
Profit befare tax multphed by blended rate of corporation tax in the UK of 22 5% (2013 23 75%) 177 266
Effects of
Mon-taxable income (140 (225)
Tax rate change [¢)] -
Over provision In respect of prior years. - ()
Taxation 36 30

All taxation relates to UK corperation tax
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Financial statements - Notes to the consobdated finanaalstatements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

31 British Sky Broadcasting Group plc company only financial statements (continued)

E Investments in subsidianes

Em
Cost
AtT July 2012 9377
Additions 573
Disposal (702)
At 30 June 2013 9,148
Additions 3
At 30 June 2014 9151
Provisicn
AL 1 July 2012, 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014 1005
Carrying amounts
At 1.July 2012 8272
At 30 June 2003 B143
At 30 June 2014 8146
Cuning the prior year the Company purchased 100% of the share capital of BSkyB LLU Assets Limited from its direct subsidhary BSkyB Finance UK ple
The Company subsequently transferred its investment in BSkyB LLU Assets Limited to its direct subsidiary British Sky Broadcasting Limited
See note 30 for a List of significant Investments of the Company
F Deferved tax
Recopnised deferred tax liabilities
Finanaal
Instruments
temporary
differences
£m
AL1Jaty 2012 €Y
Charge taincome @
Credit to egurty 6
At 30 June 2013 [0}
Credit tomeome 1
Charge toc equity )
At 30 June 2014 (4)
At 30 June 2014 a deferred tax asset of £244 milion (2013 £278 million) has not been recognised in respect of caprtal losses related to the
Group s holding In ¥&irchPayTV on the basis that utiisauon of these temporary differences s net probable At 30 lune 2014 the Company
has also not recognised a deferred tax asset of £5 million (2013 €7 million) relating to capital losses and provisions inrespect of football
club investments on the basis that it 1s not probabie that they will be utiised
G Other receivables
2014 203
Em £m
Amounts recervable from subsidianes 3008 2966
Prepayments and other receivables - 1
Current other receivables 3008 2.967
Non-current prepayment 2 3
Total other receivables 3010 2,970

0On 26 November 2012, the Company 1ssued US$BO0 million Guaranteed Notes with a coupon rate of 3125% and loaned proceeds to
British Sky Broadcasting Limited Bnitish Sky Broadcasting Limited pays the same annual effective Interest rate to the Company

On 5 March 2009 the Company made a loan of £694 million to Bntish Sky Broadcasting Limited which 1s repayable on demand and bears
interest at arate of 6 menth LIBOR ptus 075% In October 2009 tha Company assigned £604 million of this loan to settle payables
with BSkyB Finance Limited
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Financial statements —Notes to the consolidated financal statements

©On 13 January 2009 the Company made a loan of £252 million to British Sky Broadcasting Limited This loan bears interest at arate
of & month LIBOR plus 1 00% and is repayable on demand

©n 13 January 2009 the Company made a loan of £51 milhon to Sky In-Home Service Linuted This Joan s repayable on demand and
bears interest at a rate of 6 manth LIBOR plus 100%

Qn 24 November 2008 the Company 1ssued US$600 milion Guaranteed Notes with a coupon rate of 8 5% and loaned the proceeds
to BSkyB Finance Limited BSkyB Finance Limited pays the same annual effective interest rate to the Company

0On 29 June 2008 the Company entered into loan agreements with British Sky Broadcasting Limited for £142 million and £109 million,
both bearing interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus 0 75% These loans are repayable on demand

On 29 June 2008, Sky Ventures Limited transferred its £1 million loan receivable from BSkyB Finance Limited to the Company
This loan bears interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus 0 75% and 1s repayable on demand

0On 29 June 2008 the Company entered into a RCF with BSkyB Finance Limited worth £40 million Amounts |oaned under this facility
bear interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus O 75% and are repayable on demand

On 15 February 2008, the Company issued US$750 million Guaranteed Notes with a coupon rate of 6100% and loaned the proceeds
to Briush Sky Broadeasting Limited British Sky Broadcasting Limited pays the same annual effective interest rate to the Company

Allother amounts receivable from subsicharies are non-interest beanng and are also repayable on demand
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of other recevables approximates ther far values

The Company's credit nsk 1s primanly attributable to its other recevables The majonty of its other recervables balance 1$ due from
British Sky Broadcasting Lmited The nsk of this entity defaulting on amounts owed s considered low due to its successful operation
of pay television broadcasting and home communications services in the UK and ireland

H Borrowings

2014 2013
£m £m
Non-current borrowings
US$750 mullion of 6 100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 442 498
US$582.8 milhon of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2018 353 404
US$EB00 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable In November 2022 466 520
E300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 296 296
1,557 1,718
See note 20 for details of the Company s Guaranteed Notes and RCF and note 22 for details of Capital Risk Management
| Other payables
2014 2013
£m £m
Other payables
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 3536 3398
Amounts owed to other related parties 23 5]
Other 36 10
Accruals 18 20
3,613 3434

Amounts payable to subsichanes are non-interest beanng and repayable on demand The balance compnses £2 164 miltion of non-interest bearing

loans (2013 E1 898 million) and £1 372 million of other payables (2013 £1500 milliorn) The Directors consider that the carrying amount of other payables

approximates their farr values
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Fnandal statements - Notes 1o the consckdated finanaal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

31 British Sky Broadcasting Group plc company only financial statements (continued)

J Dernvatives and other financial instruments

Fair values
Set out below 1s a companson of the carrying values and the estimated fair values of the Company s finanaal assets and financial habilities
at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013

204 2014 2013 FE]

Carrying Far Carrying Fawr

value value value value

Em £m £m Em

Financial assets and lizbiities held or Issued to finance the Company’s operations

Quoted bond debt (1557) (1740} (178} {1915)

Derwvative financtal instruments 19 19 165 165
Cther pavables and recevables (605) (603) {467y a67)

The fair values of finanaal assets and financial kabihties are detarmined as detailed in note 21 and all items held at farr value are dassifted
as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy

Set aut helow are the dervative financral Instruments entered into by the Company to manage Its interest rate and foreign exchange nsk

2014 2013
Asset Liability Asset Liabtity
Fau Value Notional Fair Valug Notional far Value Notionat Fair Value Mot onal
Em £m £m £m £&m £Em £m £m
Faur value hedges
Interest rate swaps 51 452 - - 65 505 - -
Cash flowhedges
Cross-currency swaps a5 290 {36) 503 86 746 - 47
Dervatives not in a formal hedge relationship
Interest rate swaps 31 574 (26) N4 43 605 42y 345
Cross-currency swaps 48 725 (94) 1018 147 725 (134) 1018
Total 75 2,041 {156) 1,835 341 2,581 {176) 1410

Note 21 provides further details of the Group s denvative and other financial instruments

The matunty of the dervative financial instruments ss shown below

2014 2013
Asset Lizbility Asset Liability
Em Em Em im
Between one and two years 33 (33) - -
Between two and five years 122 &7) 242 12)
In more than five years 20 (56) 99 (64)
Total 175 (156) 38 (176)

K Financial nsk management

Interest rate and foreign exchange risk management

The Company manages 1ts exposure to interestrates and foretgn exchange movements which anse from the Company's sources of finance
by selectively entening into dervative financial Instruments to manage its exposure The Company has also entered into derivative contracts
an behalf of its subsidiary BSkyB Finance UK ple, and has back-to-back intercompany contracts

Foraign exchange nsk

The following analysis details the Company's sensitivity to movements in pounds sterling against all currencies in which it has significant
transactions The sensitmity analysis indudes only outstanding foreign currency denominated financial instruments and adjusts their
translation at the pernod end for a 25% change In foreign currency rates

A25% strengthening in pounds sterling against the US dollar would have an adverse impact on profit of £16 million (2013 adverse impact
of £22 milhan) relating to non-cash movements in the valuation of derivatives The same strengthening would have an adverse impact
on other equity of £21 militon (2013 adverse impact of £25 million)

A 25% weakening 1n pounds sterling aganst the US dollar would have a benefical impact on profit of £26 milton {2013 beneficial impact
of £36 million} relating to non-cash movements in the valuation of derivatives The same weakening would have a benefical impact
on other equity of E36 million (2013 beneficial impact of E42 milion)
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Intergstrate nsk

The sensitvity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both denvatives and non-dervative financial
Instruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate habilities, the analysis 1s prepared assumimg the amount of hability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year

For each one hundred basis point nse or fall in interest rates at 30 June 2014 and\if all other variables were held constant the Company's profit
for the year ended 30 June 2014 would decrease arnerease by £3 million (2013 decrease of Increase by £3 mullion) and other equuty reserves
would decrease or increase by £1 milion (2013 decrease orincrease by £4 mitlion)

Aoné hundred basis point nise or faltin interest rates represents a large but realistic movement which can easiiy be multipled to give sensitivities
at different interest rates

The sensitivity analyses prowided are hypothetical only and should be used with caution as the iImpacts provided are not necessanly indicative
of the actual mpacts that would be expenenced because the effect of a change in a particular market vanabte on fair values or cash flows 1s
calculated without considering interrelationships between the vanous market rates or miigating actions that would be taken by the Company
In addition, the Company’s actual exposure to market rates changes as the Company’s portfolio of debt changes

The changes In valuations are esumates of the impact of changes 1n market vanables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated
gains or losses

Liquidity risk
See note 22 for the Company s policy on liquidity management,

The follow:ng table analyses the Company s non-derivative financial habiities net settled interest rate swaps and gross settled currency
swaps and collars into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining penod at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and may therefore not reconaile to the amounts disdosed
on the balance sheet for borrowings denvative financial instruments and other payables

Between Between
L ess than oneand twoand Morethan
12months  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears
£m Em Em Em
At 30 June 2014
Non-dernvative financial habilities
Baonds - USD 74 74 962 521
Bonds - GBP 18 18 54 444
Other payables 3613 - - -
Net settled denvatives
Financral assets (15) [s) (36) -
Gross settied denvatves
Outflow 63 62 930 560
Inflow (56) (56) (920) (521)
Between Between
Less than one and twoangd  More than
1Zmonths twoyears fiveyears fiveyears
£m £m £m £m

At 30 June 2013
Nan-derwative financial Labihtes
Bonds - USD 83 83 740 999
Bonds - GBP 18 18 54 462
Other payables 3434 - - -
Net settled denvatives
Financial assets 7} () [6Y)] (&)
Gross settled denvatives
Outflow 62 62 574 878
Inflow (63} {63) (682) (926)

AL 30 June 2014 the Company had an undrawn £743 million RCF with a matunity date of 31 October 2018 See note 20 for further information
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Finanaal statements - Notes to the consobdated finanoal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

31 Brtish Sky Broadcasting Group plc company only financial statements (continued)

L Notesto the Company statement of changesin equity |
For details of share capital share premium the specal resarve the capital redemption reserve and the hadging reserve see notes 23 and 24

For details of the Company's share buy-back programmes see note 24

For details of dividends see note 9

Capitalreserve

This reserve arose from the surplus on the transfer of trade and assets to a subsichary undertaking

M Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2004 2013
Em £m
Profit before tax 786 1118
Dwvidend income (622) (947) {
Net finance costs 17 3
Increase in other recelvables (181 (174

Cash generated from operations - -

N Contingent habilities and guarantees

The Company and certain of its subsidianes have undertaken in the normal course of business to prowvide support to several of the Group s
investments in both lmited and unhmited companies and partnerships to meet their labilities as they fall due Several of these undertakings
contain maximum finanaal imits These undertakings have been given for at least one year from the date of the signing of the UK statutory
accounts of the related entity Apayment under these undertakings would be required in the event of an investment being unable to pay its labiliues

The Company has provided parent company guarantees in respect of the vanous contracts entered into with the Premier League by British Sky
Broadcasting Limited covening the 2013/14 to 201516 football seasons In each case the guarantee covers all payment obligations now or in the
future due owing or Incurred by British Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts and all habilities now or in the future ansing or incurred |
under the indemnity given to the Premier League by Bntish Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts

The Company has provided a parent company guarantee in respect of the contract entered into with Britssh Sky Breadeasting Limited and |
Stanhope plcin relation to the construction of a new corporate headquarters at the Osterley Campus The guarantee covers all performance
obligations and payment cbligations impesed on British Sky Broadcasting Limited under that contract

The Company has guarantees in place relating to the Groups borrowings see note 20 and In relation to audit exemptions see note 30

O Transactions vath related partes and major shargholders

201 2013

£m £m

Supply of services to subsidianes 225 214

interest received from funding to subsidianies 64 58

Amounts owed by subsidiaries 3008 2966
Amounts owed to subsidiaries {3,536) (3.398)
Amounts cwed to other related parties ()] (6)

The Company has related party transactions with (ts subsidianes by virtue of its status as parent company of the Group n particular 1 normal
treasury practice for the Company to lend and borrow cash to and from its subsidianes as required Under this policy Bntish Sky Broadcastng
Limited settled habilittes of £83 million {2013 E74 mullion) on behalf of the Company dunng the year Interest is earned on certain loans to subsidiaries

The Company recognised £225 milion (2013 £214 million) for licensing the Sky brand name to subsidianes
The Company recognised dividends dunng the year from subsidianes totalling E622 million (2013 £947 milion)

Share buy-back programme
Dunng the year the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 12140586 ordinary shares held by Twenty-First Century Fox, In¢ as part
of its share buy-back programme For fusther detals see note 24

The Greup s related party transactions are disclosed innote 28

P Events after the reporung penod

For details see note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
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Group financial record
Unaudited supplemental information

Consolidated results

Financial statements - Group financial record

Below s selected financial mformation for the Group under IFRS as at and for each of the five years ended 30 June 2014

Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2014 203 2012 20m 2010
Consolidated Income Statement Em £m £m £m Em
Continuing operations
Retail subscniptien 6255 5951 5593 547 4778
Wholesale subscripaon 422 396 351 323 238
Advertsing 472 440 240 458 340
Installation, hardware and service a5 87 98 12 174
Other 398 361 309 233 179
Revenue™ 7632 7235 677 5557 5709
Operating expenset? (647 (5944) (5548) (5,524) (4865}
Liugation settiement income - - - - 269
Operating profit 11561 1291 1,243 1073 1113
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 35 46 39 34 32
Investment iIncome on htigation settlement - - - - 49
Investment income 25 28 18 9 3
Finance costs (140} (108) oy any 122)
Profit on disposal of avallable-for-sale investment - - - 9 ns
Profit before tax 1082 1,257 1189 1014 1190
Taxation (217 (278) (283) (256) 294)
Profit for the year from conunuing operations 865 879 906 758 896
Discontinued operaticons
Profit (loss) for the year from discontinued operations - - - 52 8y
Profit for the year 865 979 906 810 878
Net profit (loss) recognised directly in equity 73 129 64 (8) &1
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 938 1108 7o B0O2 939
Earnings per share from profit for the year (in pence)
Basic 55 4p 607 526p 455p 504p
Diluted 549p 59 7p 522p 459p 501p
Dividends per share (in pence) 320p 300p 254p 233p 194p
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2014 2013 2012 20 om0
Consolidated Balance Sheet Em Em Em Em Em
Non-current assets 3876 377 3234 3025 2818
Current assets 2573 2569 2275 2329 1936
Total assets 6449 6 345 5509 5354 4804
Current habilities (2519) @2,317) {2,098) (1912) (707)
Non-current habilities (2,858) {3.016) (2.467) (2407 (2537
Net assets 1,072 1012 ga4 1035 560
Number of shares in issue (in milions) 1563 1594 1674 1753 1753
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Financia! statements - Group financal record

Group financial record eontinvea
Unaudited supplemental information

Consolidated results

Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
04 2013 2012 201 2010
Statistics (000) {000) {000} (000) (000Q)
Preducts
™ 10686 10422 10 288 10187 9850
Sky+HD 5242 4786 4,343 33822 2939
Muitiroom 2559 2489 2402 2250 2
Sky Go Extra 177 166 - - -
Broadband 5247 4306 400 3335 2,624
Telephony 4982 450 3768 3100 2367
lane rental 4882 4364 3563 2,680 1686
Taotal pard-for subscription products 34775 31634 28 365 25,375 21 597
Customers 1
Retal customers 11495 N153 10606 10294 9868
Wholesale customers* 4,041 3677 3672 3522 3.27N
Total customers 15536 14 830 14,278 13816 13,139
Average number of full-time equivalent employees 20841 19413 17937 16006 16 439

) Included within wholesale subseription revenuse for the year ended 30 June 201315 a €15 milhon credit recerved followng the termination of an estrow agreement with
acurrent wholesale operator

() Included withunaperating expanse for the year ended 30 June 2(N4 are casts of £22 milion relaung o the acquisiion and integgration of the O2 consumer broadband and
fixed-ling talephony business costs of £40 milllon relatng to a corporate restructuring and efficiency programma and £2 million as aresutt of the termmnation of an escrow ’
agresment with a current wholesale operator
Inckuded within operating expensa for the year ended 30 June 2013 15 a credit of £32 mithion inrelation o a credit note recerved following an Ofcom daterrnination, a cradit of £33
mullion relating to the final settlement of dsputes with a former marufacturer of set-top baxes {net of assocated cast s). costs of £31 milion relating to one-of fupgrada of set-top
Bewes, costs of E33 milion relating to a corporate efficiency programme and costs of £15 mallion relating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed line
telephory business Alsoincluded are casts of E25 mifion relating to the programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies qustomers i
included within operating expens4 for the year ended 30 tune 2012 15 a credit of £31 millkon in felation to the News Corparation (subsequently renamed Twenty First Century Fex Inc)
prapasalin 207 consisting of costs ncusred offset by the receipt of the break fee Also included are restructunng costs of £1 million which comprise severance payments in relation
to approxmataly 35 seruor roles as part of a restructuning watiatrve to smprove operating «ffiaency
Inciuded within operating expense for the year endad 30 June 20This £26 mulion of restructunng costs ansing on the acquistion of Lving TV which comprise prinaipally redundancy
payments and the early terrwnation of a pre-acquisition contract, £15 millon of costs i relation to the News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox Lnc)
proposaland a aredhit of £41 million nrelation to the refund of import duty o set-top boxes paid outin pries years. This duty was recovered due to the judgment gven by the ECJ
o 14 Apnl 20M
Included within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 2010 s E32 milhon of expense relating to a restructunng exerase of which £22 milhon related to the rmpairment
of assets assonated with Pricruc (the potential launch of a subscription television service on DTT)and E10 millen related ta reorgansation costs and redundancy payments.
Alsoincluded withuin eperating expense for tha year ended 30 June 2010 15 £1 mifion of expense relating to legalcosts incumed on the Group s dtaim against EDS which proveded
services 1o the Group as part of the Groug s snvestment in customer management systems sof tware and infrastructure and a £5 milthan credit related to the cancellation of
accounts payable on settiement of the claim against EDS

(w) Wholesale customers are customers who take apackage fromone of Sky s Wholesale Partriers i which they recerve ait least one pad for Sky channel

Factors which matenally affect the comparability of the selected financial data

Discontinued cperations
During fiscal 2011 the Group soid 1Ls business to-bustness telecommunications operation Easynet to LDC

EDS Litigation settlement
Dunng fiscal 2010 EDS and the Group fully and finally settled the itsgation between them and all related daims (including for damages costs and interest)
for a total amount of £318 million

Avalable-for-sale investment
During fiscal 201) the Group disposed of its equity nvestment in Shine and recognised a profit of £9 million

Dunng fiscal 2010 the Group disposed of part of its equityinvestment in ITV and recognised a profit on disposal of £115 million For further details see
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

Business combinations

Dunng fiscal 2043 the Group completed the acquisition of the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business from Telefénica UK compnsing
100% of the share capital of Be Un Limited The resuits of this acquisiuon were consolidated from the date on which control passed to the Group

(30 April 2013)

Ounng fiscal 207 the Group completed the acquisitions of Living TV and The Cloud The results of these acquisitions were consolidated from the date
on which control passed to the Group (12 July 2010 and 23 February 2011 respectively}

Exchange rates

Asignificant partion of the Group s habiliies and expenses associated with the cost of programming acquired from US film licensors together with
set-top box costs are denominated m US dollars For a discussion of theimpact of exchange rate movements on the Group s financial condian
and results of operations see note 22 to the consolidated financial statements
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Non-GAAP measures

Unaudited supplemental information

Consolidated Income Statement - reconciliation of statutory and adjusted numbers

Finanol statements - Nor-GAAP rmeasures

2014 2013
Adjusting Adjusting
Statutory Items  Adjusted Statutory fterns  Adjusted
Notes £m Em Em £m Em Em
Revenue
Retall subscription 6255 - 6255 595t - 5951
Wholesale subseription A 422 (15) 407 396 - 396
Advertising a72 - 472 440 - 440
Installation hardware and service 85 - 85 87 - 87
Other 398 - 398 361 - 361
7632 (15) 7617 7235 - 7235
Operating expense
Programming B (2652) - {2.662) (2,487) 1 (2486)
Direct networks C (850) 3 (819) (686) (29) (A15)
Marketing D (1215) 16 (1199) a7y 1 (ine)
Subscriber management and supply chain E (694) [ (688) (673) 26 (B47)
Transmission technology and fixed networks F {460) 13 (447) (405) 4 oy
Admintstration G (590) 48 (542) (576) 36 (540)
(6471 14 (6,357} (5944) 39 (5905)
|EBITCA 1597 Fis} 1667 1669 23 1692 |
Cperaung prafit 1161 k] 1260 1291 39 1330
Share of results of joint ventures
and asscclates H 35 - 35 46 (&)} az
Investment income 26 - 26 28 - 28
Finance costs | 140y 5 (135} (108) (23) {131
Profit before tax 1082 104 1186 1257 7 1264
Taxation J (217 (32) {229} (278) [{s) (295)
Profit for the year B65 72 937 979 (10) 969
[Earnings per share (basic) 85 4p 4 6p 80 0p 507p O7p  &00p |

Notes explanation of adusting items for the year ended 30 June 2014
Reverue of E15 million retating to credit recelved fallowing termination of an escrow agreement with a current wholasale operatar
Costs of £31 mdlion relating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-ine telephany business

Costscf £15 milhon in relation Lo a corporate restructurning and efficiency programme and costs of £1 mifion ralating te the acquisiion and integration of the

A
[
[»]

E

]
4

02 consumer broadband and fixed-tne Lelephony business

Costsof E3 million relating to the acquisibion and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-bne telephony business and costs of E3milioninrelation
to a corparate restructunng and efficlency programme (principally an impairment of £2 rulhon in relation to assocated ntangible and tangibie assets)
Costs of £13million relating to the acquisition and integration of the O2 consurner broadband and fixed-ine tatephany business (ncuding amortisation of £4 million

i relation to associated intangible assets)

Costs of £24 million relating to the acquisiion and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed ine telephony business (including amorusation of £23 million
n relation to associated INtangibile assats), costs of £22 millon relating to a corporate restructunng and efficency programme and costs of £2 mition relating to an

experse as a result of the termination of an escarow agreement with a current wholesale operator
Remeasurement of all dertvative inanaat instruments not qualfyng for hedge accounting and hedge weffectrveness

Tax agjusting wems and the tax affact of above items

Notes explanationof adjusting tems for the year ended 30 June 2013
Cests of E1miliion relating to a corporate efficiency programme
Cradst of £32 mulion refating to a credit note recenved following an Ofcom deterrmination and costs of E3 milllon relating to tha acquisition and integration of the

B
C

D
E

02 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business.

Costs of E1meion relating to a corparate effioency programmae,
Cradit of £33 mitlion relating to the final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes (net of associated costs and Including an iImparment

of £6 mellioninralation to assoaated ntangible assets) costs of £31 millon relating to one-off upgrade of set top boxes, costs of £25 rilhon relating to a programme
to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers costs of £2 million relating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and
fixed-tne telephony business and costs of £1 milion relating to a corperate efficiency programme
Costs of E1milkon relating to a corporate effioency programme, significantly animpairment of assoaated ntangible and tangible assets and E3million relating
to the acguisiuon and Integration of the C2 censumer broadeand and fixed-ling telephony business
Costs of £29 million refatirg to a corporate efficency programme primanly redundancy costs and including an impairment of £5 milion in relation to assocatad
Intangble and tangible assets, and £7 mullion relating te the acquisition and integration of the (2 ¢consumer broadband and fised-line tetephony business,
Inciuding amoctisation of £4 rrllion in relation Lo assooated ntangible assets.

Profit ondispesal of the Groups mterest sn MUTV Limited

Remeasurement of alt dervative financial nstruments not qualifying for hedge accounting and hedge meffectrveness

Tax adustung items and the tax effect of above items
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Finanaal statements « Non-GAAP measires

Non-GAAP measures ontinued)
Unaudited supplemental information

Reconcilation of cash generated from cperations to adjusted free cash flow

for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
Note £m Em
Cash generated from operations 25 1769 1877
Interest receved 27 29
Taxation paid (240) (300)
Dividends receved from joint ventures and assocates 32 43
Net funding to joint ventures and assocates &) (4)
Purchase of property plant and equipment (241) (203)
Purchase of intangible assets (302) (251}
Interest paid (137 (128)
Free cash flow 902 1063
Raceipt following termination aof an escrow agreement with a current wholesale operator O -
Receipt following final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes!? (&) 10y
Cash paud relating to a corporate efficiency programme®? 12 4
Cash patid {receipt) following an Ofcom determination® 4 (28)
Cash paid relating to one-off upgrade of set-top boxest? 16 7
Cash paid relating to programme to offer wireless connectors to sefected Sky Movies customers? 16 1
Cash paid relating to the acguisition and integration of the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-line
telephony business™ 22 4
Receipt on disposal of joint venture - 3
Adjusted free cash fiow 944 1,028

{1) Netofapphcable corporauon tax.
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Shareholder information

Shareholder information

Annual General Meeting

The venue and timing of the Company 5 2014 AGM 15 detailed in the
notice convening the AGM which wall be avallable for download fram
the Company s corporate website at skycomfcorporate

Financial calendar
Results for the financial year ending 30 June 2015 will be published in

October 2014*
February 2015
May 2015*
August 2015

* Prowisional dates

The Sky website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit the Sky website sky com which
has a wealth of information about the Company There s a section
designed specifically for investors at skycom/corporate where investor
and media infermation can be accessed This year s Annual Report and
Notice of AGM together with prior year documents can be viewed
there along with information cn drvidends share price and avoiding
shareholder fraud

Managing your shares and shareholder
communications

The Cormpany's shareholder register (s maintaned by its Registrar
Equanti Infermation on haw to manage your shareholdings can be
found at help shareview co uk

Shareholders can contact Equinitiin relation to all admimistrative
enquines relating to thetr shares such as a change of personal details
the loss of a share certificate cut-of-date dividend cheques, change
of dividend payment methods and how to apply for the Dividend
Remvestment Plan

Shareholders whe have not yet alected to receve shareholder
documentation in electronic Form can sign up by registenng at
shareview co uk Should Shareholders who have elected for electronic
communications require a paper copy of any of the Company's
shareholder documentation or wish to change theirinstructions
they should contact Equirvti

Shareholder Contact Centre

Equsnits Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex

BN99 6DA

Telephone 0871384 2091

Telephone number from outside the UK +44 121 415 7567

* Lines are open Monday to Friday 8 30amte 5 30pm excluding UK Bank Holdays
Calls ta 3871 numbars cost Bp par minute ptus nétwork extras

Dmdend tax vouchers

A consolrdated tax voucher service s available for shareholders who
have chosen to receive dwdends directly into their bank account.

A single consolidated tax voucher will be mated by the end of
November each year to coinade with the final dvidend payment

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Company operates a Dmdend Reinvestment Plan ("DRIP™) which
enables shareholders to buy the Company’s shares on the London
stock market with therr cash dividend Further information about
the DRIP 1s available from Equiniti

ShareGift

Shareholders who only have a small number of shares whose value
makes it uneconomic to sell them may wish to consider donating them
to charity through ShareGsift, the independent chanty share donation
scheme (regstered chanty no 1052686) Further information may

be obtained from ShareGift on 020 7930 3737 or at sharegift org

Shareholder fraud

Fraud is on the increase and many shareholders are targeted every
year If you have any reascn to believe that you may have been the
target of a fraud or attempted fraud in relation to your shareholding,
please contact Equinitiimmediately

Amencan Depaositary Receipts ("ADRs")

The Companys ADR programme trades on the over-the-counter
{"OTCT) market in the US More information can be obtained from
the Company's corporate website at sky comfcarporate

Alf enguines relating to the Company’s ADRs should be addressed to

BNY Mellon

PO Box 43006 Providence RI 02940-3006 US.A
USresidents (888) 269 2377

Ifresident outside the US +1201 680 6825
emaill shrrelavons@bnymellon com

Company's registered office

Grant Way

Islewaorth

Middlesex

TW75QD

Telephone 0333100 0333
Overseas +44 333100 0333

Company registration number
2247735

Auditor

Delortte LLP

2 New Street Square
London

ECA4A 3BZ
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Glossary of terms

Glossary of terms :

Useful Defintions

Description

Churn

The number of total customers over a given period that termnate their subscription in its entirety net of former customers
who reinstated their subscription in that peried (where such reinstatement Is wathun a 12-month penod of the termination
of their onginal subscrnption) expressed as an annualised percentage of total average customers for the penod

DTH Direct-1o-Home the transmission of satelite services and functionality with reception through a sateflite dish
"DTH customer” means a subscriber to one or more of our retaled packages of televiston channels made available via DTH

DTT Digital Terrestnal Television digital signats delvered to homes through a conventional aenal converted through a set-top
box or integrated digtal television set

EPG Electronic Programme Guide

P Internet Protocol a mechamism by which data packets may be routed between computers on a network

IPTV Internet Protocol Television

Multiscreen Installation of an additional set-top box in the household of an existing DTH customer Sky Go Extra is included at no extra
cost for Multistreen custormers on an opt-in basis

NOWTY The Groups over the top streaming service available on a vanety of devices including NOW TV Box, offering monthly
subsenptions for Sky Mowvies or Entertainment and transactional Sky Sports Day Passes

On Demand Sky's On Demand service offenng a selection of content from across the Sky platform available for customers to watch
whenever they want The full On Demand service 15 available to customers that have an active broadband connection

MR Personal Video Recorder satellite decoder which utihises a bullt-in hard disk dnve to enable viewers to record without
videotapes pause hive television and record one programme whi'e watching ancther

Set-top box Digital satelite equipment, responsible for receving converting and sending the picture and sound of a broadcast
to the associated television set !

Skyt Sky's fully-integrated PYR and satellite decoder

SkytHD High Definuon set-top box with PYR funcuonality

Sky Bet Sky s betung services provided through set-top boxes the internet and wa phone |

Sky Broadband Home broadband service

Sky Go Sky s retalled packages of telewision channels and on demand content made avaitable via a broadband connection
including the version made available to mobile dewices via a wireless or 3G connection

Sky Go Extra Selected content inchuded wathin Sky's retailed packages of television channels and on demand content made avatlable
to download enabling customers to watch the content when and wherever they want without the need for a broadband,
wireless or 3G/4G connection

Sky Store Our pay-per-view on demand mowvies rental service available via Sky On Demand and Sky Go

Sky Talk Home telephony service

Sky WiFi Sky s seamless wireless internet access provided at over 20000 The Cloud hotspots in the UK

Standalone home Sky s retailed packages of broadband talk and Iine rental when taken without a tefevision subscnption package

communicaticns
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Accessibiity

If you would like advice regarding accessibility of this document,
please contact the Accessible Customer Service team on 03442 410333
or Textphone on 0844 241 0535

Customers in RO! should use telephone number OB18 71 98 09 and
Textphone number 0818 7198 49

We can also be contacted by email accessiblecustomerservice@bskyb com
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